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cHApter 1

LEgiSLATivE MANdATE

the Commission derives its mandate from the Constitution of the republic of south africa act no. 108 of 1996 as amended 

sections 220, 221 and 222 as well as related sections 214(2), 219(5), 228(2)(b), 229(5), 230(2), 230a(2) and 230a(2) provide 

among others that the Commission is an independent, objective, impartial and unbiased advisory institution that has to be 

consulted by government with regard to division of revenue among the three spheres of government and in the enactment of 

legislation pertaining to provincial taxes, municipal fiscal powers and functions, and provincial and municipal loans.

the mandate of the Commission is enabled through the intergovernmental fiscal relations act no. 97 of 1997 as amended, 

the financial and fiscal Commission act no. 99 of 1997 as amended, the Money Bills amendment procedures and related 

Matters act no. 9 of 2009, the Municipal systems act no. 32 of 2000 as amended, the provincial tax regulation process 

act no. 53 of 2001 as amended, the Municipal finance Management act no. 56 of 2003 as amended, the intergovernmen-

tal relations framework act no. 13 of 2005 as amended, and the Municipal fiscal powers and functions act no. 12 of 2007.
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cHApter 2

ChAirpErSON/CE’S rEviEw

My term of office as Commissioner and Chairperson of the financial and fiscal Commission comes to an end on august 31 

2010. it has been an eventful, exciting and challenging time for the Commission and this country.

the key milestones that the Commission achieved during this period included:

•	 	 A	15	Year	Review	of	the	Commission	and	its	work.

•	 	 	The	development	and	institutionalising	of	a	coherent	corporate	strategy	formulation,	 implementation,	monitoring	and	

review processes.

•	 	 	The	development	and	institutionalising	of	coherent	planning	and	budget	formulation,	 implementation,	monitoring	and	

review processes.

•	 	 	A	comprehensive	review	of	the	mandate	of	the	Commission	that	was	informed	by	among	others	the	pre-1994	history	

of this country, post-1994 legislation, the decisions of the Courts, ongoing developments in the area intergovernmental 

relations, and the changing environment.

•	 	 	A	comprehensive	review	of	the	governance	structures	of	the	Commission	which	culminated	in	the	development,	adoption	

and implementation of among others.

  o   a Corporate governance Code that is informed by among others the 2009 king Code on Corporate governance for 

south africa; 

  o  a Code of ethics; and 

  o  revised Commission secretariat governance structures, policies and practises.

•	 	 	The	adoption	of	a	5	Year	Research	Strategy	premised	on	seeking	to	identify	a	broader	set	of	institutional	and	governing	

arrangements that are capable of achieving positive public expenditure outcomes.

•	 	 	A	deliberate	attempt	to	enhance	modeling	capacity	and	begin	to	question	the	initial	parameters	that	condition	equitable	

sharing of national revenue.

•	 	 	The	development	of	world	class	analytical	 tools	such	as	the	Constitutionally	Mandated	Basic	Services	Model	 (CMBS),	

macro-meso-micro	 frameworks	such	as	 the	energy	Computable	General	Equilibrium	Model	 (CGE),	and	 the	2010	FIFA	

world Cup social accounting Matrix (saM) model which have enabled the Commission to not only replicate its findings, 

but has also positioned it to scientifically evaluate ex ante government decisions and proposals
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•	 	 	Recognition	 by	 stakeholders	 that	 the	 Commission’s	 recommendations	 are	 informed	 by	 up	 to	 date	 analytical	 tools	

especially within the macro and fiscal policy areas.

•	 	 	Support	from	the	Parliamentary	Ad	Hoc	Committee	on	Chapter	9	and	Associated	Institutions	for	the	continued	existence	

of the Commission and recognition of the important role that the Commission plays in the strategic evolution of intergov-

ernmental fiscal relations, and that its pivotal role in maintaining the balance between fiscal decentralization and the 

unitary state. 

•	 	 	Assisting	other	African	countries	in	their	thinking	around	their	own	intergovernmental	fiscal	relations	systems	and	efforts	

at fiscal decentralisation. these countries included nigeria, sudan, democratic republic of Congo, Malawi, tanzania, 

sierra Leone, ghana and uganda.

•	 	 	The	development	of	a	comprehensive	Communication/Stakeholder	Management	Strategy,	Policy	and	Programme	that	

aims to proactively engage all Commission stakeholders.

the challenges as listed in the body of the report however still remain but despite these constraints, i am certain that the 

Commission will continue to do its best to deliver policy-relevant, evidence-based recommendations and insightful policy 

advice based on sound and innovative research and strives to meet the expectations of its key stakeholders. it is the Commis-

sion’s fervent hope that these will enhance the developmental impact of the intergovernmental fiscal relations system. 

i wish to express my sincere thanks and appreciation to all fellow-Commissioners, past and present. i will always value 

the dedication and commitment that they have demonstrated. their involvement and concern has always given me the 

assurance that the financial and fiscal Commission is well on its way to being a world-class institution capable of delivering 

world-class products. i also wish to express my appreciation to current and past members of the secretariat. it was an honour 

to	work	with	them.	The	demands	that	were	placed	on	them	were	heavy	but	they	acquitted	themselves	well.		I	admire	their	

dedication and cooperation.

 

 

dr Bethuel setai  

Chairperson / Chief executive
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A. ACHiEvEmEnTs
 

•	 	 	The	Commission	met	all	constitutionally	mandated	requirements.	The	Commission	timeously	submitted	its	recommen-

dations on the division of revenue for 2010/11 in May 2009; its first ever comments on the Medium term Budget policy 

statement in november 2009; its comments on the division of revenue Bill in february 2010; its first ever comments on 

the fiscal framework in March 2010 and; its first ever comments on the appropriations Bill in april 2010.

•	 	 	Over	the	period	under	review,	the	Commission	has	had	to	increasingly	deal	with	cross-cutting	policies	which	must	be	

addressed by all three spheres of government such as fiscal frameworks, issues related to poverty reduction and pinning 

down precisely notions of progressive realisation of rights, environmental issues and so on. furthermore, the Commission 

has also had to deal with important changes to the environment especially increases in volume of work where it has 

been asked to respond to policy and legislation referred to it. in particular, the recent changes in legislation relating to the 

processing of money bills by parliament imply higher volumes of work for the Commission. to respond to this changing 

environment, the Commission undertook an extensive research strategy formulation and research policy development 

and started restructuring its research and recommendations programme to respond to these new developments. in 

particular, discussions with national treasury and the department of public service administration in 2009 culminated 

in a revised organizational structure which in a nutshell expanded the budget analysis unit into three (national, provincial 

and	local)	and	introduced	a	local	government	sub	unit.	Staffing	requirements	and	structure	were	worked	out	and	it	was	

agreed that these will be gradually phased in. Most importantly, the Commission deliberately beefed up its modelling 

capacity so that it was able to respond rapidly and effectively to technical demands. as a result of these proactive and 

ongoing restructuring efforts, the Commission was able to meet not only its usually mandated deliverables on time of the 

annual submission on the division of revenue and submission on the division of revenue Bill for the year under review 

but also made its first comment on (i) the Medium term Budget policy statement (ii) the fiscal frameworks and revenue 

proposals, and (iii) the appropriation Bill. these new reports were very well received by the stakeholders and enjoyed 

extensive coverage by both the print and electronic media.

•	 	 	The	Commission	has	responded	timeously	to	all	requests	from	stakeholders	in	line	with	the	requirements	of	the	Financial	

and fiscal Commission act. the Commission has also strengthened its engagement with parliament and with provincial 

legislatures over the reporting period. stakeholder engagements included presentations to key stakeholders, attendance 

at hearings, and research seminars to mention but a few.

•	 	 	In	 addition	 to	 complying	 with	 constitutionally	 mandated	 obligations,	 the	 Commission	 has	 also	 published	 research	

reports, made supplementary submissions, provided advisories and detailed technical comments on important pieces 

of legislation. see paragraph 5.8 and appendix B for details.

   in particular, Commission staff had their papers accepted for presentation at the prestigious conferences. among 

these were hammed amusa who presented a paper titled “approaches to tax reform: the Case of post-democratic 

south africa” at the “effective audit and investigation for improved tax Compliance africa 2009” conference on held in 

highLighTS/AChiEvEMENTS ANd ChALLENgES 
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abuja, nigeria in May 2009; and hélène Maisonnave who presented a draft paper titled “the impact of the international 

economic Crisis in south africa.” at a conference on “rethinking african economic policy in Light of the global economic 

and financial Crisis” hosted by the african economic research Consortium (aerC) in nairobi, kenya in december 2009.

•	 	 	Researchers	 have	 published	 articles	 in	 local	 and	 international	 accredited	 journals	 and	 contributed	 book	 chapters	 in	

the field of intergovernmental fiscal relations as by-products of the technical work that the Commission does. the 

Commission through the dissemination of its research continues to contribute to the still emerging body of knowledge 

on developmentally oriented intergovernmental relations.

•	 	 	In	the	spirit	of	NEPAD,	the	Commission	has	assisted	other	African	Countries	in	thinking	around	their	own	intergovernmen-

tal fiscal relations systems and efforts at fiscal decentralization

•	 	 	The	Commission	has	maintained	 its	 profile	 as	 one	of	 the	best	 practice	 institutions	 in	 the	world	 in	 the	 area	of	 fiscal	

decentralization and intergovernmental fiscal relations. its newly formulated research strategy responds to the 

changing political, institutional and socio-economic environment by sketching a five-year research trajectory that will 

extend the Commission’s focus from first generation issues relating to revenue sharing formulae to include second 

generation issues relating to the impact of the intergovernmental system on development outcomes. the research 

strategy will also be the platform for collaborative research in intergovernmental fiscal relations and related.  

B. CHAllEngEs
 

Human Resources

•	 	 	Despite	 the	 fact	 that	 the	Commission	has	employed	a	Corporate	Services	Manager	 to	 take	 responsibility	 for	among	

others the Management of its human resources; that it is well on its way to implementing its recently developed talent 

management strategies, policies and systems; and that the tide appears to have been arrested against the flight of scarce 

but essential skills, the attraction, development and retention of appropriate skills continues to be a challenge.

Research

•	 	 	The	Commission	has	had	to	scale	down	on	certain	necessary	research	projects	while	others	have	had	to	be	put	on	hold	

because they could not be accommodated in the existing resource envelope. included among these are:

  o  primary health Care, Concurrent functions and funding

  o  financing and implementation of inclusive education in the south african schooling system

  o  Municipal water pricing and finance

  o   spatial perspective of unemployment and the epwp incentive grant

Institutional

•	 	 New	challenges	have	emerged	on	the	institutional	front:	

  o   implementation of the Money Bills amendment procedures and related Matters act no. 9 of 2009 and the demands 

that have been placed on the Commission by stakeholders have put additional strain on the Commission’s already 

overextended resources. this situation has been  exacerbated by:  

  o   the performance Monitoring and evaluation approach based on twelve key outcomes which has been recently 
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adopted	by	Government	will	require	a	review	of	the	broader	intergovernmental	transfer	system	in	view	of	the	cross-

cutting nature of outcomes and the concomitant budget implications. 

Compliance

•	 	 	The	Commission	is,	irrespective	of	size,	obliged	to	comply	with	several	pieces	of	legislation.	These	would	include	inter	

alia the promotion of access to information act and the national archives act. Compliance attracts significant budget 

implications.

•	 	 	Compliance	with	legislated	auditing	requirements	requires	an	ever	increasing	investment	in	internal	and	external	audit	

fees currently standing at in excess of five percent (5%) of the Commission’s current budget.

•	 	 	Compliance	with	the	Constitution	of	1996,	the	Public	Finance	Management	Act	of	1999;	the	Supply	Chain	Management	

regulations of 2003; the preferential procurement policy framework act 2000; and the Broad Based Black economic 

Empowerment	Act	of	2003	requires	an	investment	in	both	expertise	(permanent	human	resource	capacity)	and	systems.

Capex

Premises

•	 	 	The	implementation	as	of	April	01,	2006	of	the	Framework	for	the	Devolution	of	Budgets	and	Associated	Accommoda-

tion Charges which was approved by treasury has devolved the maintenance; property rates; municipal services and 

leasing budgets to user entities such as the financial and fiscal Commission from the department of public works where 

these previously resided. no budgetary provision has to date been made for the assumption of this responsibility by the 

Commission nor has the Commission been advised of any transitional arrangements that have been put in place. 

funding

Allocation

•	 	 	The	Commission	received	an	increase	in	funding	for	the	financial	year	and	over	the	MTEF.	The	reprieve	is	viewed	by	the	

Commission as being transient since the bulk of the resources went towards addressing past problems. due to the fact 

that for a prolonged period the Commission was losing staff and also not investing in new iCt infrastructure (austerity). 

The	challenges	going	 forward	are	still	a	 reality.	This,	Coupled	with	 the	 tight	national	fiscal	 framework	will	 require	 the	

Commission to try and do more with less resources like all other organs of state. 

adMinistration Costs

Travel

•	 	 	As	stated	in	the	previous	reporting	period,	budget	constraints	and	the	imposition	of	austerity	measures	have	severely	

limited interaction with stakeholders with the result that research, consultation, ongoing interaction, and stakeholder 

needs assessment has all but been in name only. the situation has been exacerbated by new demands relating to the 

implementation of the Money Bills amendment procedure and related Matters act which has exponentially increased 

the need the Commission’s stakeholder interaction. 

ICT

•	 	 	Though	 an	 increase	 in	 funding	 has	 enabled	 the	 Commission	 to	 upgrade	 its	 antiquated	 basic	 ICT	 infrastructure	 and	

systems, the Commission still the Commission is still faced with the challenge of finding resources and investing in 

research related software and iCt. while it is possible to some extent to defer this investment, there is the risk that the 

quality	of	Commission	research	may	be	compromised.	The	Commission	will	however	continue	to	closely	monitor	and	

manage this risk. 
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4.1  ComPosiTion

the Commission comprises of the following nine (9) persons:

1.  a Chairperson and deputy Chairperson; 

2.   three (3) persons,  appointed after consultation with the premiers of provinces , from a list compiled in accordance with 

a process prescribed by national legislation; 

3.   two (2) persons, appointed after consultation with organised local government, from a list compiled in accordance with 

a process prescribed by national legislation; and 

4.  two other persons. 

Commissioners are appointed in terms of the Constitution and the financial and fiscal Commission act as amended.

all appointments are made by the president of the republic of south africa.

appointments may not exceed a period of five (5) years but Commissioners are eligible for reappointment. neither the Consti-

tution nor the financial and fiscal Commission act state whether and to what extent the appointments are full- or part-time. 

the Chairperson and deputy Chairperson are in the full-time employment of the Commission.

Commissioners embody the corporate values and principles underlying the identity of the Commission and its role in the 

intergovernmental fiscal relations system. the Commission’s shared values include among others empowerment, pro-activi-

ty, communication, teamwork, creativity, cooperation, integrity, objectivity, innovation and leadership excellence.

ThE COMMiSSiON
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Chairperson/Chief exeCutive  

dr BethueL setai

Dr Bethuel Setai is the Chairperson and Chief executive of the financial and 

fiscal Commission. he formerly served as director-general of the free state 

province. dr setai possesses extensive lecturing experience, having taught inter 

alia at the universities of California in santa Cruz, Lincoln university in pennsylva-

nia university of vermont in Burlington, vermont, and the national university of 

Lesotho. he is a presidential appointee and is currently serving a five-year term of 

office at the ffC. he was appointed as 01 september 2005 and his term of office 

expires on august 31 2010.

4.2  CommissionERs

deputy Chairperson  

Bongani khuMaLo

Bongani Khumalo was appointed deputy Chairperson of the financial and fiscal 

Commission as of 01 March 2008. he was previously the program Manager for 

fiscal policy in the secretariat of the Commission. he has worked on a variety of 

areas within the south african intergovernmental fiscal relations system, including 

the design of revenue sharing formulae, the financing of education, health care 

and social assistance, and sub national borrowing and taxation issues and on the 

design of conditional grants. upon completing a Master of science (economics) 

degree from the university of Zimbabwe, Bongani khumalo lectured at the same 

university in the areas of international trade and development and public finance. 

he then moved to rhodes university in grahamstown in 1994 where he lectured 

public policy, international trade policy and development economics until 1999 

when he joined the financial and fiscal Commission as a researcher. he has 

published articles and contributed book chapters on intergovernmental fiscal 

relations and on public finance. his term of office expires on 28 february 2013.
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CoMMissioner  

david savage

David Savage is specialist in intergovernmental fiscal relations and local service 

delivery. he has worked in the ngo sector, for the national treasury, and for the 

world Bank in south asia on issues of local government finance, service delivery 

and institutional restructuring. he has served as a director of the Municipal 

infrastructure investment unit and currently advises on issues of sub-national 

finance and service delivery both in south africa and internationally. he holds a 

Masters in public administration and policy from the London school of economics, 

and a Masters in City and regional planning from the university of Cape town. 

he is a national nominee appointed as of 01 March 2008 and will serve on the 

Commission until 28 february 2011.

CoMMissioner  

neLisiwe sheZi

Neli Shezi holds a Masters in social science (economics) from the university 

of natal (pietermaritzburg). she is currently the head of ithala development 

finance Corporation Limited’s Micro finance and Co-operatives division. she was 

previously an economics tutor and research assistant at the university of natal; 

research assistant at the financial and fiscal Commission and co-author of the 

Commission’s work on public expenditure on Basic social services in south africa; 

Manager of the Budget office at (kwaZulu-natal’s provincial treasury; and process 

Manager: entrepreneurial development and Black economic empowerment at 

Msunduzi Municipality. she was appointed Commissioner as of 01 december 2006 

and her term of office expires on June 30 2009.

CoMMissioner  

tania aJaM

Tania Ajam is a public finance economist. she is the director of the knowledge 

Centre at the applied fiscal research Centre (afreC) (pty) Ltd, a uCt affiliated 

company and the Managing director of pBs (pty) Ltd which implements performance 

budgeting systems. tania serves on the financial and fiscal Commission as a 

provincial nominee. she was reappointed as Commissioner as of 01 July 2009 and 

her extended term of office ends on 30 June 2014.
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CoMMissioner  

krish kuMar

Krish Kumar commenced work as a trainee accountant with the erstwhile 

durban City Council in 1981 and progressed through the ranks to City treasurer 

of the north and south Central Local Councils in 1997. in addition thereto, he was 

appointed as City treasurer of the durban Metropolitan Council in 1999 and in 

2001appointed as deputy City Manager: treasury. a member of south african 

Local government association’s (saLga) finance working group, fellow of the 

institute of Municipal finance officers (iMfo), chairman of Metro’s Cfo forum, 

past president of iMfo, member of the accounting standards Board, project 

champion of new erp billing system that is being built locally by the municipality 

and which it intends rolling out to other municipalities on a non-profit basis. also 

chair of the ethekwini risk and Managing the Municipality Committee. he was 

appointed Commissioner commencing on 01 March 2008 and his term ends on 28 

february 2011.

CoMMissioner  

LuCienne aBrahaMs

Luci Abrahams is director of the Link Centre of the university of the witwatersrand 

(Johannesburg), a public interest research centre, focusing on themes in social and 

economic change in an emerging paradigm of ‘network knowledge economies’.  

she teaches public policy, strategy, innovation theory, knowledge management 

and e-government, all incorporating an iCt focus. she conducts research on 

‘institutions and economic sectors in the network knowledge economy’.  Luci 

serves on the Council on higher education.  she has also served in various other 

capacities. these include Council Member of the national advisory Council on 

innovation; Board Member of the national research foundation, the state 

information technology agency and the development Bank of southern africa; 

Commissioner in the gauteng provincial government; and director-general of the 

department of welfare and population development (now social development). 

she was appointed as a Commissioner commencing on 01 July 2009 and her term 

of office expires on 30 June 2014.

CoMMissioner  

Martin kusCus

Martin Kuscus is Chief executive of the south african Bureau of standards (saBs). 

prior to that, he was MeC of finance in north west province for 10 years. in 2004 

he was appointed as a Commissioner on the ffC. in 2006, he was elected to the 

Council for international standards (iso). in 2005 he was appointed as Chairperson 

of the Board of trustees for the government employees pension fund (seventh 

biggest pension fund in the world) and also serves on the Board for un principles 

for responsible investment - a united nations global Compact initiative. he is a 

provincial nominee appointed as of 01 July 2004. his term of office expired on June 

30 2009.
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CoMMissioner  

BLake MosLey-LefatoLa

Blake Mosley-Lefatola is an honours graduate from wits university, in industrial 

sociology. he is a local government specialist having worked in and with the public 

sector for 16 years. he is the former Municipal Manager of the City of tshwane 

Metropolitan Municipality, and presently the group Chief executive of the akani 

group holding Company. he is a nominee of saLga appointed as of 01 July 2004 

and his term of office expired on 30 June 2009.

CoMMissioner  

Bongiwe kunene

Bongiwe Kunene was appointed as a Commissioner commencing on 01 July 

2009 and her term of office expires on 30 June 2014.

CoMMissioner  

risenga MaLuLeke

Risenga Maluleke graduated from the university of the north in 1991. since 

december 2001 he has been working at stats sa as an executive Manager in the 

office of the statistician-general, where he provides strategic support to the statisti-

cian-general and the executive Management team. he also served as Chairperson 

of the advisory Board for statistics in africa. he is a provincial nominee appointed 

as of 01 July 2004 and his term of office expired on 30 June 2009.
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4.3  sTRUCTURE

Commission

Commission
Secretary

Stakeholder
Liaison

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Research and Recommendations
ProgrammeFinance Corporate Services

Deputy
Chairperson
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4.4  CoRPoRATE govERnAnCE

sound corporate governance structures and processes have been put in place at by the Commission since its inception. they 

are constantly reviewed and adapted to accommodate internal corporate developments and reflect national and interna-

tional good practice 

the Commission endorses the principles of the south african Code of Corporate practices and Conduct as recommended by 

the king Committee on Corporate governance. 

the Commission has adopted a Corporate governance Code that is benchmarked against the recommendations of the 2009 

king report on governance for south africa. 

The	 Commission	 considers	 corporate	 governance	 as	 a	 priority	 that	 requires	 more	 attention	 than	 merely	 establish-

ing	 the	 steps	 to	 be	 taken	 to	 demonstrate	 compliance	 with	 legal	 and	 regulatory	 requirements.	 Issues	 of	 governance	

will continue to receive the Commission’s and its committees’ consideration and attention during the year ahead.  

4.5  Commission CommiTTEEs 

4.5.1 Audit Committee

Membership

Jerry Sithole (independent Chairperson of Committee)

Tania Ajam (Commissioner)

Mkuseli Bashe (independent)

Martin Kuscus (Commissioner whose term of office and membership of Committee expired on June 30 2009)

all the members of the Committee are either independent non-Commissioners or part-time Commissioners.

all audit Committee members have extensive audit Committee experience and are financially literate. the audit Charter 

adopted	by	the	Commission	requires	that	the	Chairperson	and	Deputy	Chairperson	attend	Audit	Committee	meetings	by	

invitation.

the audit Committee was established primarily to assist the Commission in overseeing:

•	 	 	Quality	and	integrity	of	the	Commission’s	financial	statements	and	public	disclosures	thereof;

•	 	 	The	scope	and	effectiveness	of	the	external	audit	function;	and

•	 	 	The	effectiveness	of	the	Commission’s	internal	controls	and	internal	audit	function.

the Committee meets the Commission’s external and internal auditors and executive management regularly to consider risk 

assessment and management, review the audit plans of the external and internal auditors and to review accounting, auditing, 

financial reporting, corporate governance and compliance matters. it approves the external auditors’ engagement letter and 
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the terms, nature and scope of the audit function and the audit fee. the internal audit charter, internal audit plan and internal 

audit conclusions are similarly reviewed and approved by the audit Committee.

the function of the Committee is therefore to ensure that the Commission’s network of risk management, control, and 

governance	processes,	as	designed	and	represented	by	management,	is	adequate.

4.5.2 Remuneration and Performance Review Committee 

Membership

Nelisiwe Shezi - part-time Commissioner and Chairperson

Krish Kumar - part-time Commissioner

Mpho Letlape - independent Member

Risenga Maluleke - Commissioner whose term of office and Committee membership expired on June 30 2009

Blake Mosley-Lefatola - Commissioner whose term of office and Committee membership expired on June 30 2009

all the members of the Committee are independent part-time Commissioners.

the role of this Committee is to: 

•	 	 	Provide	guidance	to	the	Commission	with	respect	to	the	remuneration	of	full	time	Commissioners,	non-full	time	Commis-

sioners and employees of the Commission

•	 	 	Facilitate	and	promote	communication	regarding	the	above	and	any	other	related	matters

•	 	 	Expedite	matters	referred	to	it	by	the	Commission	or	requiring	decisions	on	behalf	of	the	Commission

•	 	 	Receive,	 process	 and	 interpret	 inputs/reports/advice,	 from	 Commissioners,	 Committees	 of	 the	 Commission,	 or	 the	

Chairperson/Chief executive, and

•	 	 	Undertake	 any	 other	 activity	 as	may	 be	 required	 by	 the	 Commission	 or	 Chairperson/Chief	 Executive	 Officer	 in	 the	

pursuance of its mandate

4.5.3 Research Committee

Membership

Professor Bethuel Setai - Chairperson of Commission

Tania Ajam - Commissioner and Committee Chairperson

Nelisiwe Shezi - Commissioner

Bongani Khumalo - deputy Chairperson of Commission
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Commissioners Commission Research Audit REMCO

Number of Meeting Days 7 3 4 1

prof. B setai 7 2 4 -

Bongani khumalo 6 2 3 -

tania ajam 7 3 3 -

Martin kuscus - - 1 -

risenga Maluleke - - - -

Blake Mosley-Lefatola - - - -

nelisiwe shezi 4 3 - -

krish kumar 7 2 - 1

david savage 7 3 - -

Lucienne abrahams 7 1 - -

Bongiwe kunene - - - -

Non-Commissioners

Jerry sithole - - 4 -

Mkuseli Bashe - - 11 -

4.6  ATTEnDAnCE oF mEETings

1  Appointed in January 2010

Krish Kumar - Commissioner

David Savage - Commissioner

Lucienne Abrahams - Commissioner

the Commission established a research Committee in 2002. the intention was to provide high-level support and oversight 

for	the	research	work	of	its	Research	and	Recommendations	Programme.	Meetings	are	held	on	a	quarterly	basis,	or	more	

frequently,	if	needed.	Activities	involve	the	monitoring	of	research	plans,	resources,	outputs	and	external	inputs,	as	well	as	

the acceptance and reviewing of research proposals, and providing strategic direction and guidance during the research 

process. 

the role of the Committee is to perform the following functions:

•	 	 	Provide	guidance	to	the	Commission	and	oversee	the	activities	of	the	Secretariat	relating	to	research	undertaken	and	

recommendations made by or on behalf of the Commission by the secretariat ensuring that projects are consistent with 

overall programme direction of the Commission

•	 	 	Review	and	assess	all	research	plans	and	timeframes	to	ensure	that	they	are	relevant	and	timeous.

Through	the	institution	of	a	quality	assurance	regime,	ensure	that	research	outputs	are	of	a	quality	and	standard	commen-

surate with the high level of rigor expected of/by the Commission, and comparable with international and national standards 

in terms of best practice.
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4.7  REmUnERATion oF CommissionERs
 

though both section 221(3) of the Constitution and section 8 of the financial and fiscal Commission act deal 

with the tenure of office of Commissioners, and section 9 of the latter enjoins the president to determine their 

remuneration, allowances and other benefits after taking due consideration of certain matters, such determina-

tion has invariably been made without reference to a framework envisaged in section 219(5) of the Constitution.  

 4.8 sUsTAinABiliTY

4.8.1  Funding

the funds of the financial and fiscal Commission consist of money:

1.   appropriated by parliament for the purpose of the Commission;

2.  earned on investments;

3.   obtained by the alienation or letting of movable or immovable property;

4.  accruing to the Commission from any other source; and

5.  otherwise becoming available to the Commission.

4.8.2  Risk Management

the Commission has developed and implemented a comprehensive risk Management framework.

4.8.3  Fraud Prevention 

the Commission has a fraud prevention plan which is reviewed annually, and which constitutes a significant portion of the 

Commission’s risk Management framework.

4.8.4  Performance Budgeting and Management

the Commission has customized and adopted the National Treasury Framework for Managing Programme Performance 

Information.

4.8.5  Balanced Scorecard Business Planning 

the Commission has adopted and implemented the Balanced scorecard approach for strategic and business planning 

purposes.

4.8.6  Code of Ethics

the Commission has developed and adopted a Code of ethics.

4.8.7  Internal Controls

a comprehensive system of internal controls has been developed and implemented. 

4.8.8  Stakeholder Relations

the Commission has developed, adopted and implemented a Communication/stakeholder Management strategy which 

is supported by comprehensive Communication/stakeholder Management policies and procedures as well as a detailed 

Communication/stakeholder Management programme. 
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the relationships with parliament, particularly with its finance Committees, has been consolidated and intensified. More 

provincial legislatures have shown an interest in engaging with the Commission on its recommendations on the annual 

division of revenue and other matters that fall within the mandate of the Commission. the relationship that the Commission 

has with the secretariat of organised local government continues to mature though concern remains about the lack of 

engagement at institutional level. the Commission has engaged with members of the public with the object of exposing them 

to, emphasizing the importance of, and generating interest in, the south african system of intergovernmental fiscal relations. 

the Commission hosted a delegation from Malawi and views were shared on the approaches of the two countries to intergov-

ernmental fiscal relations.

4.8.9  Research Programme

Over	 the	 years,	 the	Commission	 has	 developed	 quantitative	modelling	 approaches	 to	 inform	 its	 recommendations.	 This	

approach has in the past been used to look at the impact of the 2010 fifa world Cup; assessing the impact of electricity 

pricing; assessing the economic impact of public infrastructure investment; as well as assessing the impact of oil price shocks 

on the economy. in the year under review, the Commission developed such an approach to assess the impact of the global 

recession on children. this was done in collaboration with uniCef and was presented internationally. 

4.8.10 Corporate Services

The	 Commission	 has	 recently	 acquired	 the	 services	 of	 a	 dedicated	 Corporate	 Services	Manager	who	 has	 assumed	 full	

responsibility	for	the	Information	Technology,	Human	Resources	and	Facilities.	The	upgrade	of	the	Commission’s	antiquated	

information technology infrastructure and the implementation of the Commission’s recently developed talent management 

strategies, policies and systems are now receiving priority. with regard to facilities, challenges remain with the financial 

implications of the framework for the devolution of Budgets and associated accommodation Charges as funding for that 

purpose has not been forthcoming.

4.8.11  Finance

the finance division of the Commission has recently upgraded its financial management system to pastel evolution; has 

conducted a comprehensive review of its policies and procedures; is at an advanced stage of establishing a compliant 

procurement	function;	and	was	at	the	forefront	of	guiding	the	Commission	through	austerity	and	to	another	unqualified	audit.	

the Commission remains committed to fiscal discipline.

4.8.12  Performance Information

the Commission has adopted and customized the national treasury framework for Managing programme performance 

information.
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

provide research 
excellence on 
current issues 
affecting igfr

Local government 
Budget analysis

report stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

provincial 
government 
Budget analysis

report stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

Measuring 
sub-national 
government 
fiscal effort

report Contribution to 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue 2011 - 
2012

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

options for 
institutionalizing 
and funding rural 
development

first draft Contribu-
tion to future 
recommenda-
tions on the 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue 

March 2010 •	Achieved

•	Long-term	
research

financing and 
implementa-
tion of inclusive 
education in the 
south african 
schooling system

report Contribution to 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue 2011 - 
2012

March 2010 discontinued

provincial 
government 
Equitable	Share	
review

report Contribu-
tion to future 
recommenda-
tions on the 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 ongoing research 
and consultation 
with stakeholders

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

5.1  FinAnCiAl AnD FisCAl Commission 2009 – 2010 
   PERFoRmAnCE inFoRmATion

cHApter 5

pErFOrMANCE 
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

provide research 
excellence on 
current issues 
affecting igfr

performance of 
public hospitals: 
an evaluation 
of nhi policy 
proposal

report Contribu-
tion to future 
recommenda-
tions on the 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories 

March 2010 •	On	hold	pending	
declaration of 
government 
approach and 
position on nhi

•	Ongoing	
research

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

analysis of 
provincial 
administration 
departments 
against 
governance, 
accountabil-
ity and transpar-
ency in the igfr 
system

report stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

Local government 
Equitable	Share	
review

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved Compromise 
on discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

the fiscal 
impact on Local 
government in 
providing free 
Basic services

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

the intergov-
ernmental 
grant system: 
assessment 
of allocations 
Against	Equity

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

impact of 
occupation 
specific dispensa-
tion on provincial 
Budgets

report stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

the intergov-
ernmental 
grant system: 
assessment and 
proposed policies

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 ongoing research 
and consultation 
with stakeholders

assessing the 
performance of 
Local government 
Capacity Building 
programmes and 
grants in south 
africa

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 on hold pending 
government 
response to 
recommendations 
made in Commis-
sion’s  2010/2011 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

provide research 
excellence on 
current issues 
affecting igfr

Municipal water 
pricing and 
finance

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 •	On	hold

•	Capacity	
constraints

determining an 
Adequate	Level	
of funding for 
financing Basic 
education in 
south africa 

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 •	Third	draft	
report

•	Ongoing	review	
of report

are Conditional 
transfers to 
provinces Best 
options to 
foster service 
delivery, Better 
performance and 
accountability

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

financing and 
delivery of 
government’s 
public transport 
plans in south 
africa

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

funding and 
delivery of 
housing in south 
africa: Location 
and funding of 
housing in south 
africa

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 ongoing research 
and consultation 
with stakeholders

Modelling impacts 
of public spending 
in education 
sector on growth 
and poverty 
reduction

submission 
document

submission to 
parliament

May 2010 •	Third	draft	
report

•	Ongoing	review	
of report

spatial 
perspective of 
unemployment 
and the epwp 
incentive grant

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 •	On	hold

•	Capacity	
constraints

Macroeco-
nomic effects 
of fiscal policy 
in sa (aka the 
global economic 
Crisis, fiscal 
frameworks 
and Coping with 
vulnerabilities)

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

provide research 
excellence on 
current issues 
affecting igfr

quantifying the 
efficiency and 
Equity	Effects	
of social grants 
(and proposed 
social security 
reform) in south 
africa (aka social 
assistance 
reform during a 
period of fiscal 
stress)

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

options for 
reforming social 
assistance 
to address 
unemployment 
induced gaps (aka 
social assistance 
reform during a 
period of fiscal 
stress)

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

the output 
effects of public 
infrastructure 
using var

report stakeholder 
advisories

april 2009 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

exogenous price 
shocks and the 
economy

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 •	Terminated

•	Capacity	
constraints

assessing 
development 
strategies to 
achieve the 
Mdg’s in south 
africa

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 •	Terminated

•	Incorporated	in	
other projects

the efficiency 
of regionalis-
ing Municipal 
services: 
electricity

report Contribution 
to 2011 – 2012 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue and 
stakeholder 
advisories

March 2010 achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

develop Concept,  
theme and 
project portfolio 
for 2010/2011 
research

document approval •	March	2010

•	90%

achieved strategic direction 
for 2010/2011 
research

Comply with 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate and 
accountabilities

seventeenth 
Constitution 
amendment 2009

submission stakeholder 
advisories

•	November	2009

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

Comply with 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate and 
accountabilities

eighteenth 
Constitution 
amendment

submission stakeholder 
advisories

•	November	2009

•	70%

on hold at the 
request	of	the	
department 
of Justice and 
Constitutional 
development

Commission 
response to 2009 
MtBps

submission stakeholder 
advisories

•	February	2010

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

Continuation 
and/or Lapsing 
of Municipal 
taxes (other than 
property rates) 
that existed prior 
to the Municipal 
fiscal powers and 
functions act

submission stakeholder 
advisories

•	February	2010

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

Commission 
response to 2010 
dor Bill

submission stakeholder 
advisories

•	February	2010

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

Commission 
submission 
on 2010 fiscal 
framework 
and revenue 
proposals

submission stakeholder 
advisories

•	March	2010

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

2010/ 2011 – 
2012/2013 MtBps

submission Compliance 
with financial 
and fiscal 
Commission act 
and pfMa

•	July	2009

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

Compliance

2009/2010 Budget 
adjustments

submission Compliance 
with financial 
and fiscal 
Commission act 
and pfMa

•	August	2009

•	70%

•	Achieved

•	100%

Compliance

quarterly 
financial 
reporting

quarterly reports Compliance with 
national treasury 
Requirements

quarterly achieved Compliance

2008/2009 
annual financial 
statements

report Compliance 
with financial 
and fiscal 
Commission act 
and pfMa

May 31 2009 achieved Compliance

2008/2009 
performance 
information

report adherence to 
national treasury 
framework for 
the Management 
of performance 
information and 
compliance with 
auditor-general 
Requirements

May 31 2009 achieved Compliance
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

Comply with 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate and 
accountabilities

2008/2009 annual 
report

report Compliance 
with Constitu-
tion, financial 
and fiscal 
Commission act 
and pfMa

May 31 2009 achieved Compliance

2010/2011 
submission on 
the division of 
revenue

submission Compliance with 
Constitution and 
intergovernmen-
tal fiscal relations 
act

•	May	2009

•	70%

achieved discharge of 
Constitutional 
and Legislative 
Mandate

2010/2011 
Business plan

plan Commission 
approval

March 2010 achieved Compliance

2010/2011 Budget Budget Commission 
approval

March 2010 achieved Compliance

Commissioner 
engagement 
and Collective 
decision-Making

Minimum of four 
(4) Meetings

Compliance 
with financial 
and fiscal 
Commission act

2009/2010 achieved Compliance

develop and 
implement

Compliance and 
good governance

eCM Capability •	Strategy

•	Policies	and									
procedures

Compliance •	March	2010

•	70%

achieved

review of 
eCM email 
archiving policy, 
e-communica-
tions records and 
paia policies 

reviewed policies Compliance •	March	2010

•	90%

achieved

records 
Management 
policy and 
procedures

recordkeeping 
plan 

Compliance •	March	2010

•	60%

•	50%

•	Capacity	
Constraints 

file plan Compliance •	March	2010

•	60%

•	50%

•	Capacity	
Constraints 

development of 
a Comprehen-
sive talent and 
human resource 
approach

human resource 
strategy 
development and 
implementation

•	Strategy

•	Implementation	
plan

adoption •	March	2010

•	100%

achieved talent 
Management

human 
resource policy 
development

performance 
Management and 
Bonus system

adoption •	March	2010

•	100%

achieved talent 
Management

adopt a prudent 
and transparent 
approach to the 
Management of 
finances

Budget 
management

actual versus 
budgeted 
expenditure 

% deviation for 
auditor-general 
norm

+/-5% achieved good governance

performance-
Based Budgeting 
(inclusive of 
Cost-Centre 
Budgeting)

alignment of 
budget with 
the strategic 
and business 
plans as well as 
performance 
contracts, 

% alignment 70% achieved

Budgeting under 
austerity

Cost efficiency savings +5% -5%
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

adopt a prudent 
and transparent 
approach to the 
Management of 
finances

develop and 
implement 
appropriate 
financial  
Management 
systems

rollout of pastel 
evolution

% system efficacy 90% achieved good governance

review policies 
and procedures

revised

risk strategy and 
plan

adoption 90% 80%

fraud prevention 
plan

adopt a prudent 
and transparent 
approach to the 
Management of 
finances

review policies 
and procedures

revised financial 
policies and 
procedures

adoption 90% achieved good governance

develop 
innovative 
revenue alterna-
tives

•	Collaborations

•	Partnerships

•	Donations

Leveraging of 
resources

5% of allocation 2.25% of 
allocation (unicef)

exploitation of 
economies of 
scale

develop, 
implement 
and Maintain 
appropriate 
internal Business 
systems

2009/2014 
research Matrix

Matrix research 
dashboard

•	March	2010

•	80%

achieved strategic direction 
for Long-term 
research

develop and 
implement 
results-based 
Management 
framework 

framework proposal •	March		2010

•	60%

achieved structured 
approach to 
development of 
project portfolios 

develop and 
implement 

•	a	Comprehen-
sive approach to 
the Management 
of Communication

•	Strategy

•	Policy

•	Programme

•	Website	
upgrade

approval •	March	2010

•	100%

achieved stakehold-
er-centric 
approach to the 
Management of 
Communication

•	Governance	
Code

•	Code approval •	March	2010

•	100%

good Corporate 
governance

•	Code	of	Ethics •	Code approval •	March	2010

•	100%

achieved good Corporate 
governance

•	Divisional	
Business plans

•	Plans alignment 
with Corporate 
strategy and 
Business plan

•	March	2010

•	100%

75%

•	Library	Support •	Knowledge	and	
data resources

accessibility of 
resources

•	March	2010

•	65%

•	60%

•	Resource	
constraints

knowledge 
Management
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Strategic 
Objective

Project/
Activities 

(Input)

Output 
(Deliverable)

Key 
Performance 

Measure/
Indicator

Target Actual Outcome

develop, 
implement 
and Maintain 
appropriate 
internal Business 
systems

•	Electronic	
repository

•	Capability knowledge 
sharing

•	March	2010

•	50%

•	40%

•	Capacity	
Constraints 

•	Institutional	
repository

•	Capability preservation 
of institutional 
Memory

•	March	2010

•	50%

•	40%

•	Capacity																												
Constraints 

review of 
facilities 
Management 
policies and 
procedures

•	Revised	Policies	
and procedures

approval •	March	2010

•	70%

achieved Creation of 
environment 
that is conducive 
to superior 
performance

•	Code	of	Ethics •	Code approval •	March	2010

•	100%

achieved good Corporate 
governance

•	Divisional	
Business plans

•	Plans alignment 
with Corporate 
strategy and 
Business plan

•	March	2010

•	100%

75%

•	Library	Support •	Knowledge	and	
data resources

accessibility of 
resources

•	March	2010

•	65%

•	60%

•	Resource	
constraints

knowledge 
Management



33CHAPTER 5: Performance  |   33

5

5.2  2009 Commission RECommEnDATions FoR THE 2010/2011 Division 
   oF REvEnUE

the proposals contained in the Commission’s 2009 submission for the 2010/2011 division of revenue dealt with recommended 

reforms	 to	 the	provincial	 equitable	 share	 (PES;	 recommendations	on	public	 infrastructure	 scale	up,	 social	 grants,	health,	

rental housing and roads local government issues of water and sanitation and capacity building which cut across all three 

spheres of government and are both reactive and prospective with respect to pressing policy challenges. 

the following were the key recommendations:

On principles

a.   expenditure assignments between provinces and national government should be clarified beyond what is covered under 

Schedule	4	of	the	Constitution:	A	concerted	effort	is	required	to	make	a	distinction	between	delegated	responsibilities	

(for which the national government still retains a strong interest in performance) and own or devolved responsibilities 

of the provincial governments. there is also a need to emphasise exclusive assignments, as opposed to concurrent 

assignments to increase accountability.

b.   there should be a clear separation of instruments in the transfer system. the following principles should be observed: 

	 	 i.	 	The	equalisation	grant	should	equalise	on	the	basis	of	differences	between	expenditure	needs.

  ii.  there is a need to establish a system of conditional grants, which has performance aspects, and that clearly support 

the delivery of delegated responsibilities by sub-national governments. 

  iii.  there is a need for other transfers for regional development, including capital grants that need not be conditional.

c.   provincial governments should be encouraged to exercise the revenue powers conferred to them through section 228 of 

the Constitution and the provincial tax regulation process act of 2003.

d.   the ability of provinces to borrow should be carefully facilitated and linked to their revenue-raising capacity as a way to 

close the infrastructure gap in a responsible and incentive-compatible fashion.

On reform options for the PES and formula 

Option 1: The Short-Term Solution

in the short term, the Commission recommends that the reform of the pes formula stay within the confines of the current 

constitutional dispensation. the Commission further recommends that: 

a.   the pes formula should retain for the most part its current structure, and only be reformed to bring it closer to a conven-

tional	equalisation	grant	which	equalises	both	expenditure	and	revenue.	

  i.  Both the expenditure needs and the fiscal capacity of each province should be defined by means of objective criteria 

that	properly	represent	the	objectives	of	horizontal	equalisation.	

	 	 ii.		Expenditure	needs	should	be	derived	on	all	expenditure	responsibilities	of	the	provinces.	Expenditure	can	be	quantified	

on the basis of an explicit per client financial norms, determined in the annual budget cycle for the national government, 

or the costed norms approach. 
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  iii.  the computation of the fiscal capacity must take into account the direct forecast receipts from revenue sharing for 

each province and the estimated potential revenues from own revenues, including the piggyback personal income tax 

and fuel levy if they were introduced. 

b.   the pes formula should be divided into a number of components, in pursuit of clear and separate objectives. 

  i.  the ‘economic activity’ component of the pes formula should be removed to become a straightforward conventional 

form of revenue sharing, allocated either on a derivation basis or according to some other criterion such as the share 

of gross domestic product. 

  ii.  another part would be allocated for a system of conditional capital grants, mainly targeting backlogs in capital 

infrastructure and capital investment needs of provinces, especially for those that are not expected to be financed 

through borrowing, and should build on the current infrastructure grant for provinces. 

	 	 iii.		Most	 importantly,	another	component	would	be	dedicated	to	 implementing	a	system	of	unconditional	equalisation	

grants that takes into account differences in expenditure needs and differences in fiscal capacity. the latter assumes 

that none of the expenditure assignments to the provincial governments (in particular education, health, and social 

welfare) are delegated. this would allow provinces complete autonomy to set priorities within the parameters of 

the Constitution, i.e. respecting the role of national government. an incentive system of matching grants should be 

developed to support the implementation of national priorities. 

c.   that institutional weakness in the budget process should be addressed as a matter of urgency to enhance cooperation 

between the two spheres, improve enforcement of norms and standards, and increase the capacity of national 

departments to monitor and build capacity of provincial counterparts. the role of the ffC, as defined in the Constitution, 

should be strengthened within the institutions dealing with division of revenue matters.  

Option 2: Medium- to Long-Term Solution

 

in the medium to long term the Commission recommends that the reforms should depart from the realisation that fixing 

the	PES	as	a	pool	requires	the	fixing	of	other	aspects	of	the	current	fiscal	decentralisation	system.	Specifically,	the	reform	

of	 the	PES	will	 require	 the	 reform	of	 current	 expenditure	 and	 revenue	assignments	between	 the	national	 and	provincial	

governments.	The	implementation	of	this	option	will	require	significant	changes	in	the	current	legislation	and	amendments	to	

schedules 4 and 5 of the Constitution in order to enable the conversion of several functions into delegated functions. 

the Commission further recommends that this option should be considered with utmost caution owing to the inherent risks, 

relating to transition costs and the potential to compromise service delivery. it will be necessary to have a dedicated intergov-

ernmental committee that will oversee and manage the transition process as well as identify potential risks.   

a.   taking the education and health services out of the pes, and converting those components into separate block, conditional 

grants from the national government to the provinces. under a block grant, the provincial governments will have the 

obligation to spend the grant in the particular expenditure area (for example, primary education), but they will also be 

free to determine how the funds are used within that area. education and health services will remain concurrent respon-

sibilities of the national government and the provinces. in the reformed expenditure assignment system, these services 

will be explicitly recognised as ‘delegated’ responsibilities from the national government to provinces (as opposed to 

provincial government’s own responsibilities and concurrent functions but not delegated responsibilities). under this 

redefinition,	 the	 national	 government	will	 have	 explicit	 responsibility	 for	 securing	 adequate	 funding	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	

provinces for the provision of these services. provincial governments will use their discretion to add their own funds for 

improved financing and speed up service delivery. the national government will also have responsibility for establish-

ing performance standards for the delegated services. the necessary level of funding for the delegated responsibilities 
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in education and health will be determined in the annual budget of the national government by using financial per client 

norms	or	 any	other	 expenditure	quantification	 criteria.	 The	quantification	of	 expenditure	needs	 can	be	 improved	by	

adjusting the norms for differences in the costs of provision across jurisdictions. 

b.   removing the ‘economic activity’ component from the pes formula and converting it into a revenue-sharing pool. 

Because provincial governments will have added expenditure responsibilities, the current levels of revenue sharing will 

be maintained. this will be a mechanism to close the vertical gap between expenditure needs and financing ability of 

the provinces. revenue sharing on a stable basis will increase the fiscal stability of provincial governments and will also 

be a way to let less poor, sub-national governments receive their share in the wealth/revenues collected within their 

boundaries. 

c.   increasing the revenue autonomy of provincial governments by fully implementing the provisions of section 228 of the 

Constitution and the provincial tax regulation process act of 2003.  

d.		 an	equalisation	grant	with	the	following	features:	

  i.  a predetermined fixed funding rule, which allows beneficiary provinces to anticipate and plan, based on the funding 

that will be available from this grant from year to year; and 

  ii.  a distribution formula for the available funds, proportionate to the fiscal gap computed for each province, on the basis 

of the difference between allowable expenditure needs and fiscal capacity. unlike the first option, expenditure needs 

will be a derivative of all expenditure responsibilities for provinces other than the delegated responsibilities (education 

and health), which are already minimally financed by the block grants. 

With respect to public infrastructure investment

1.		 	The	government	should	review	upwards	the	departmental	baselines	and	increase	the	quantum	of	appropriate	investment	

in public infrastructure (national, provincial and municipal): Macro-micro modelling done by the Commission, as well as 

international experience, has shown that investment in appropriate infrastructure leads to reduced unemployment and 

poverty. the Commission recommends that increased funding be directed towards infrastructure programmes that are 

linked to basic services including water, health, electricity, roads, transport and communication.

2.		 	For	 funds	 already	 in	 the	 system,	 the	 Commission	 recommends	 that	 the	 government	 should	 improve	 the	 quality	 of	

targeted outcomes of infrastructure investment towards employment creation and poverty reduction. Leveraging from 

efficiency gains throughout all baselines of departments should be made an ongoing exercise, as it strengthens the link 

between planning and spending, especially within the provincial sphere of government.

3.   the Commission recommends that the government should implement a fully comprehensive national infrastructure 

maintenance strategy, especially for those infrastructure classes with a high impact on unemployment and poverty, with 

dedicated maintenance objectives. to achieve sustainable outcomes, the government must improve management of 

infrastructure	investment	by	building	in/safeguarding	adequate	future	lifecycle	replacement	and	maintenance	provision	

of the infrastructure.

4.   the Commission recommends that government develops appropriate funding mechanisms through intergovernmental 

coordination	to	facilitate,	integrate	and	sequence	infrastructure	planning	and	delivery.	Such	planning	should:

  a.   support stronger municipal management, especially for capital expenditure and maintenance programmes, and 

resolve lingering policy uncertainty. a case in point relates to the regional electricity distribution reforms which have 

stalled	and,	as	a	consequence,	are	currently	undermining	municipal	investment	in	infrastructure	and	maintenance.
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  b.  improve long-term planning for state investments:

    i.    use best practice from effective state owned agencies for infrastructure planning, management, spending and 

maintenance. 

    ii.    Complete comprehensive infrastructure monitoring and evaluation system.

    iii.  use common methodologies for calculating costs and benefits for project appraisal.

With respect to social assistance grants

1.   the government should increase the rollout of social grants to cushion poor people from the effects of the economic 

downturn. however, there are risks and opportunities associated with the scaling up of social grants. the government 

needs to make trade-offs between coverage and grant amounts, taking into consideration affordability, incentive effects 

and the net effect across all grants. there is an inherent trade-off within programmes in attempts to scale up social 

grants, as the resource envelope is not without limits. past experience at provincial level has illustrated that increases in 

social grants may ‘crowd out’ other forms of social expenditure, leading to the rationing of other non-cash social services 

(such as increased waiting times in health clinics, reduced welfare services etc.). 

2.   social assistance should be managed in such a way as to eventually reduce dependency on the social grants. the issue 

of fiscal risk is linked to issues of fiscal sustainability of scaling up conditional cash transfers (CCts). fiscal risk arises when 

such CCts give the receiver an impression of entitlement, which will be hard or impossible to reverse in the future. in 

the presence of revenue decline or volatility, the fiscal rigidities of entitlement spending may exacerbate fiscal risk. as a 

starting point, social grants on the demand side appear to be working well and can be scaled up in the short term but 

those on the supply side are not working well and will need to be shrunk. 

3.   the government should use infrastructure expansion to provide opportunity for workfare programmes as well as activities 

identified in the expanded public works programme (epwp). the government should consider the epwp to pilot workfare 

immediately.

With respect to the performance of public hospitals

1.   whilst recognising the provisions of the national health act (2004) and current norms guiding the primary health care 

(phC) system, there is a policy gap in respect of legislative provisions and norms and standards for a well-functioning 

public hospital system. in addressing the identified gap, the government must develop norms and standards that should 

address the following issues in relation to the public hospital system:

	 	 a.		 	The	specification	of	minimum	service	requirements;

  b.  the establishment of minimum input norms;

	 	 c.		 	The	establishment	of	a	workable	quality	assurance	framework;	

  d.   the establishment of a transparent reporting system focusing on:

    i.   inputs 

    ii.  processes
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    iii. outputs, and

    iv. outcomes;

	 	 e.		 The	identification	of	governance	requirements;	

  f.   the establishment of governance norms and standards; 

  g.   a strategic planning framework which outlines the medium-/long-term vision of the hospital system, expressed in 

terms that are implementable and auditable. 

  h.   a need exists for a mix of hard (codified by legislation) and soft norms (guidelines to aid departments) and standards. 

hard norms and standards should be set by national government, codified by statute and be enforceable in relation to 

allocations set to achieve this objective. soft norms and standards can be expressed as guidelines to assist delivery 

agencies in motivating for resources. provinces should be allowed to contextualise soft norms and standards which 

suit their needs/socio-economic circumstances. 

2.   it is recommended that the government needs to standardise and institutionalise budget formats processes across all 

hospitals. in effecting these considerations, the following issues are pertinent:

  a.   setting individual hospital budgets: 

    i.   in relation to an agreed set of services with due consideration to the unit cost per service and needed activities;

    ii.  subjected to a substantial and informed negotiation process between the province and the hospital;

    iii.  which include agreements on how to deal with unforeseen and unavoidable expenses so that services are not 

disrupted; and

    iv.  that ultimately address how case mix-based budgets can be deployed (that are consistent with international best 

practice). By defining the cost-drivers within a case mix, it is possible to mitigate against avoidable variances that 

currently occur between hospitals. 

  b.   Consistent with hard norms and standards, allocations should be determined by differentiating by hospital type i.e. 

central, regional and district hospitals; acute psychiatric and chronic hospitals; and infectious disease hospitals.

With respect to rental housing

1.  there should be relaxation and flexibility on the:

  a.   eligibility criteria for accessing the social housing Capital restructuring grant to allow projects falling outside the  

designated restructuring Zones to access funding;

  b.   number of designated restructuring Zones to respond to excess demand for rental housing;

  c.   Minimum unit size for redevelopments of existing buildings.

2.   the process of disbursing funds for rental housing within the housing sector should be made shorter to minimise time 

lags following the submission of approved project plans.
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3.   the social housing regulatory authority should improve the inter-sectoral coordination between various government 

departments responsible for integrated human settlement.

4.		 	The	qualifying	income	bands	should	be	reviewed	to	ensure	that	individuals	are	not	unfairly	excluded	from	benefiting	from	

the subsidy (due, for example, to increases in the cost of living). 

With respect to the management and financing of road infrastructure

1.   there should be an increased and stable flow of funds for maintenance, rehabilitation and addressing backlogs in the 

long-term. potential policy proposals to ensure that this is achieved can include:

  a.   formulating pricing and cost-recovery policy for roads that generate sufficient revenues for authorities to maintain 

and operate their road infrastructure network on a sustainable basis; 

  b.   earmarking a portion of road-related user charges and taxes;

	 	 c.		 	Explicitly	 including	 a	 road	 infrastructure	 component	within	 the	provincial	 and	 local	 government	 equitable	 share	

formulae;

  d.   expanding the role of development institutions and capital market in funding road infrastructure investment 

especially at sub-national spheres.  

2.   there should be greater coordination of road management functions across the three spheres of government. in this 

regard, the revision and modification of the inter-road authority coordinating model proposed by the national department 

of transport [see appendix a] should be carried out with a view for possible future implementation. 

3.   priority should be given to addressing the lack of technical skills in the road management sector of sub-national 

governments. attaining this objective can be done through the introduction of a separate conditional grant, specifically 

targeted at building technical capacity within the road management sector of sub-national governments. 

With respect to water and sanitation

1.   the Commission recommends that there must be a review of the free basic water and sanitation subsidy as well as a 

review of water tariff structures, to ensure that the shortcomings implicit in the current subsidy system do not outweigh 

the benefits. at present, there is no coherent framework of oversight for how water service authorities manage trade-offs 

in the design and determination of their water tariffs. the tariff structures (that is, the number of customer classes or 

consumption blocks and the level of tariffs for each of the classes or blocks), which are different in various municipalities, 

have a substantial impact on the pricing of water. principles and practices guiding both tariff and subsidy structures and 

price levels should be made clear and routinely monitored. 

2.   in order to sharpen the focus of public expenditures on expanding access to sanitation services and improving sanitary 

outcomes, the Commission recommends that:

  a.   the sanitation strategy should target behavioural change in relation to sanitation practices by households, rather 

than the provision of infrastructure alone, premised on attaining certain health outcomes. this can generally be 

achieved through establishing targets and providing funding in a manner that creates incentives for community-level 

behavioural changes, while providing households with greater discretion on selecting sanitation technologies that 

meet their needs. 
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  b.   greater consideration should be given to household affordability constraints that may affect the long-term sustain-

ability of sanitation investments. high service levels (such as in-house flush toilets) put significant ongoing pressure 

on household and municipal budgets, without a significant proportional improvement in public health outcomes. 

this limits the pace at which sanitation backlogs can be addressed, and may create significant fiscal risk for service 

providers over the longer term, as assets must be maintained and replaced. 

3.   the Commission recommends that there be a separation of policy function from the regulatory function within the 

water services sector. this should help to improve institutional accountability for performance and the achievement of 

policy goals. the current overlapping of capacity support, oversight and policy-making functions within the department 

of	Water	Affairs	and	Forestry	(DWAF)	has	led	to	a	situation	where	policy	targets	are	inadequately	monitored,	and	simply	

shifted in the case of under-performance. following on this recommendation, the Commission would like to propose 

that the government consider establishing an independent national water regulator that would report to parliament. its 

functions, amongst others, will be to:

  a.  regulate the entire water supply industry.

  b.   issue licences, regulate tariffs, and monitor water integrated resource plans for infrastructure investments.

  c.   regulate compliance to industry norms and standards.

	 	 d.		 	Regulate	the	supply	of	water	and	sanitation	services	and	their	compliance	to	quality	standards.	

  e.   regulate water efficiency and demand-side management.

  f.   develop regulatory frameworks for public private partnerships and alternative service delivery models in the water 

sector.

  g.   ensure regulatory instruments support the achievement of universal access to water and sanitation services.

  h.   Monitor supply and demand trends in the water supply industry.

With respect to local government capacity building

1.   for their own improvement, local government should be central to setting the agenda for capacity-building programmes. 

this recognises the fact that municipalities remain accountable for their own performance until such time as section 139 

of the Constitution is invoked. to achieve this, the Commission further recommends that: 

  a.   Capacity programmes should be informed by a local government performance management system which is driven 

by their key performance indicators. 

  b.   prior to capacity programmes being developed and implemented at local government level, a comprehensive 

assessment and design process should be undertaken.

  c.   Capacity-development programmes should be aligned to each stage of the developmental transition of municipali-

ties. there should be a differentiated approach in building capacity.

  d.   Capacity-development programmes should be comprehensive and not only focus on training of personnel and 

deployment of experts within municipalities. they must also focus on other organisational, fiscal and institutional 

constraints that impact on the overall performance of municipalities.
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2.   the government must establish an intergovernmental-wide framework for understanding what constitutes a lack of 

capacity within the context of local government. 

3.   when capacity-building interventions are undertaken with respect to different functional areas, there should be a clear 

separation of responsibilities, as well as coherent interface, between service authority and the service providers. 

4.   it is also recommended that replication of poorly defined roles and responsibilities between national, provincial and 

district municipalities in the policy framework should be eliminated. this is necessary to create clear lines of respon-

sibility and accountability for spheres of government or sector departments over their capacity-building roles in local 

government.

5.   each capacity-building programme must have a clear outline of measurable objectives, targets and timelines. these must 

detail conditions under which a programme can be withdrawn from a respective municipality and following a detailed 

monitoring and evaluation of success factors, failures with possible suggestions for sustaining the programme. the 

method	of	implementing	capacity	programmes	should	be	changed	from	a	standard	stop-gap	package	to	a	more	unique	

incremental solution, focusing on the identified problems within the municipality and identifying key leverage points 

where capacity programmes can make a difference.

6.   a variety of grant instruments should be used for addressing different capacity challenges within different functional 

areas. such grants should only be devolved to sector departments once they have demonstrated the capacity to manage 

such grants and capacity programmes in an intergovernmental relations (igr) system effectively. the Commission 

further recommends that appropriations for siyenza Manje should be allocated through the division of revenue as done 

for other capacity grants. this will promote order, transparency and accountability.
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5.3   2010 govERnmEnT REsPonsE To THE Commission’s 2009 
RECommEnDATions FoR THE 2010/2011 Division oF REvEnUE

 

Section	214	of	the	Constitution	and	section	9	of	the	Intergovernmental	Fiscal	Relations	Act	(1997)	require	the	FFC	to	make	

recommendations in april every year, or soon thereafter, on the division of revenue for the coming budget. the ffC complied 

with this obligation by tabling its submission for the division of revenue 2010/11 to parliament in May 2009. this part of the 

explanatory memorandum complies with the Constitution and section 10 of the intergovernmental fiscal relations act by 

setting out how government has taken into account the ffC’s recommendations when determining the division of revenue 

for the 2010 Mtef.

the 2010/11 recommendations are divided into eight chapters covering a wide range of issues across the three spheres.

CHAPTER 1: REvIEW OF THE PROvInCIAl EquITABlE SHARE (PES) FORMulA

 

The	FFC’s	recommendations	on	the	provincial	equitable	share	formula	deal	with	principles,	as	well	as	short-	and	medium-term	

solutions to the reform of the formula. 

Principles

the ffC recommends that there should be clarity on expenditure assignments between provinces and national government, 

especially distinguishing between delegated and own or devolved responsibilities of the provincial governments. More 

emphasis should also be placed on exclusive assignments, as opposed to concurrent assignments, to increase accountabil-

ity. there should be a clear separation of instruments in the transfer system. the following principles should be observed: (a) 

the	equalisation	grant	should	equalise	on	the	basis	of	expenditure	need;	(b)	there	is	a	need	to	establish	a	performance	based	

conditional grant system; and (c) there is a need for other transfers for regional development.

provinces should be encouraged to exercise their legislative revenue powers. further, provincial borrowing should be carefully 

facilitated and linked to their revenue-raising capacity to close the infrastructure gap.

Option 1: The Short-Term Solution

The	FFC	recommends	that	the	reform	of	the	provincial	equitable	share	formula	stays	within	the	confines	of	the	current	consti-

tutional	dispensation.	The	provincial	equitable	share	formula	should	retain	for	the	most	part	its	current	structure,	and	only	be	

reformed	to	bring	it	closer	to	a	conventional	equalisation	grant,	which	equalises	both	expenditure	and	revenue.	The	provincial	

equitable	share	formula	should	be	divided	into	a	number	of	components	in	pursuit	of	clear	and	separate	objectives	as	follows:

•	 	 	The	economic	activity	component	should	be	removed	to	become	a	straightforward	conventional	form	of	revenue	sharing,	

allocated either on a derivation basis or some other criterion such as share of gross domestic product.

•	 	 	A	component	dealing	with	a	system	of	conditional	capital	grants,	mainly	targeting	backlogs	in	capital	infrastructure	and	

capital investment needs of provinces, especially for those that are not expected to be financed through borrowing, and 

which should build on current infrastructure grants for provinces.

•	 	 	A	component	dedicated	to	implementing	a	system	of	unconditional	equalisation	grants,	taking	into	account	differences	

in expenditure needs and fiscal capacity. the latter assumes that none of the expenditure assignments to the provincial 

governments (and in particular, education, health, and social welfare) are delegated. this would allow provinces complete 

autonomy to set priorities within the parameters of the Constitution, i.e. respecting the role of national government. an 

incentive system of matching grants should be developed to support the implementation of national priorities.

institutional weakness in the budget process should be addressed as a matter of urgency to enhance cooperation between 

the national and provincial spheres, improve the enforcement of norms and standards and increase the capacity of national 
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departments to monitor and build capacity of provincial counterparts. the role of the ffC, as defined in the Constitution, 

should be strengthened within the institutions dealing with division of revenue matters.

Option 2: The Medium- To long-Term Solution

The	FFC	recommends	that	the	reform	should	depart	from	the	realisation	that	fixing	the	provincial	equitable	share	as	a	pool	

requires	the	fixing	of	other	aspects	of	the	current	fiscal	decentralisation	system.

The	reform	of	the	provincial	equitable	share	will	require	the	reform	of	current	expenditure	and	revenue	assignment	between	

the	national	and	provincial	governments.	The	 implementation	of	this	option	will	 require	significant	changes	 in	the	current	

legislation and amendments to schedules 4 and 5 of the Constitution to enable the conversion of several functions into 

delegated functions. this option should be considered with utmost caution owing to the inherent risks related to transition 

costs and the potential to compromise service delivery. it will be necessary to have a dedicated intergovernmental committee 

that will oversee and manage the transition process as well as identify potential risks.

The	FFC	recommends	that	the	education	and	health	services	should	be	taken	out	of	the	provincial	equitable	share,	and	that	

those components be converted into separate block: conditional grants from the national government to provinces. under 

a block grant, the provincial governments will have the obligation to spend the grant in the particular expenditure area (for 

example, primary education) but they will also be free to determine how the funds are used within that area. education and 

health will remain concurrent responsibilities of the national government and the provinces. in the reformed expenditure 

assignment system, these services will be explicitly recognised as “delegated” responsibilities from the national government 

to	provinces.	Under	this	redefinition,	the	national	government	will	have	explicit	responsibility	for	securing	adequate	funding	

on behalf of the provinces for the provision of these services. provincial governments will use their discretion to add their 

own funds for improved financing and speeding up service delivery. the national government will also have responsibility for 

establishing performance standards for the delegated services. the necessary level of funding for the delegated responsibili-

ties in education and health will be determined in the annual budget of the national government, by using financial per client 

norms	or	any	other	expenditure	quantification	criteria.	The	quantification	of	expenditure	needs	can	be	improved	by	adjusting	

the norms for differences in the costs of provision across jurisdictions.

The	FFC	also	recommends	that	the	“economic	activity”	component	be	removed	from	the	provincial	equitable	share	formula	

and be converted into a revenue-sharing pool. also, the revenue autonomy of provincial governments should be increased 

by fully implementing the provisions of section 228 of the Constitution and the provincial tax regulation process act (2003).

Lastly,	an	equalisation	grant	with	the	following	features	should	be	introduced:	(a)	a	predetermined	fixed	funding	rule,	which	

allows beneficiary provinces to anticipate and plan, based on funding that will be available from this grant from year to year; 

and (b) a distribution formula for the available funds, proportionate to the fiscal gap computed for each province, on the 

basis of the difference between allowable expenditure needs and fiscal capacity. unlike the first option, expenditure will be 

a derivative of all expenditure responsibilities for provinces other than the delegated responsibilities (education and health) 

which are already minimally financed by the block grants.

Government response

In	2007,	government	endorsed	a	comprehensive	review	of	 the	provincial	equitable	share	 formula.	A	task	 team	consisting	

of the ffC, national treasury, provincial treasuries and relevant sector departments is conducting this review and should 

complete its work in time for the 2011 Mtef. the recommendations of the ffC will be considered as part of this review.

CHAPTER 2: PuBlIC InFRASTRuCTuRE InvESTMEnT

 

the ffC recommends that increased funding be directed to infrastructure programmes that are linked to basic services 

including water, health, electricity, roads, transport and communication. for funds already in the system, government 

should	 improve	the	quality	of	 targeted	outcomes	of	 infrastructure	 investment	 towards	employment	creation	and	poverty	
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reduction. Leveraging from efficiency gains throughout all baselines of departments should be made an ongoing exercise, as 

it strengthens the link between planning and spending, especially within the provincial sphere of government.

the ffC also recommends that government should implement a fully comprehensive national infrastructure maintenance 

strategy, especially for those infrastructure classes with a high impact on unemployment and poverty, with dedicated 

maintenance objectives. to achieve sustainable outcomes, the government must improve management of infrastructure 

investment	by	building	in/safeguarding	adequate	future	lifecycle	replacement	and	maintenance	provision	for	the	infrastruc-

ture. government should develop appropriate funding mechanisms through intergovernmental coordination to facilitate, 

integrate	and	sequence	infrastructure	planning	and	delivery.

Government response

government agrees that investment should be targeted towards infrastructure that supports basic needs. informed by the 

medium-term strategic framework (Mtsf), which covers the period 2009-2014, government will continue with the infrastruc-

ture	investment	programme	aimed	at	expanding	and	improving	social	and	economic	infrastructure	to	increase	access,	quality	

and reliability of public services.

this will boost economic activity and create jobs. infrastructure expenditure continues to be one of the fastest-growing 

items in provincial and municipal expenditure. provinces will spend r146.4 billion on education, health, roads and agriculture 

infrastructure over the next three years. Municipalities will spend r147.8 billion on infrastructure that supports basic services, 

roads and housing over the next three years.

Government	is	also	taking	active	steps	to	ensure	that	these	large	investments	result	in	increased	access	to	quality	services.	

through the siyenza Manje and idip programmes, government aims to improve infrastructure management. this includes 

ensuring that budgeting for infrastructure includes full lifecycle costing.

CHAPTER 3: EFFICIEnCy And EquITy EFFECTS OF SOCIAl GRAnTS

 

the ffC recommends that government should increase the rollout of social grants to cushion poor people from the effects of 

the economic downturn. there is, however, a trade-off between coverage and grant amounts given limited resources. past 

experience at provincial level has illustrated that increases in social grants may crowd out other forms of social expenditure. 

social assistance should be managed in such a way as to eventually reduce dependency on the social grants. fiscal sustain-

ability of scaling up conditional cash transfers needs to be carefully managed. as a starting point, social grants on the 

demand-side appear to be working well and can be scaled up in the short term, but those on the supply side are not working 

well and will need to be scaled down. government should use infrastructure expansion to provide opportunities for workfare 

programmes, and consider an immediate pilot of workfare in the expanded public works programme.

Government response

government agrees that the social grants system should be managed in a manner that does not compromise fiscal sustainabil-

ity. social grants are an important mechanism to cushion the most vulnerable in times of economic contraction. government 

has succeeded in containing the cost of the social grant system without compromising coverage and crowding out other 

areas of spending.

in addition through its large capital investments and expanded public works programme, government is taking active steps 

to increase employment.

CHAPTER 4: PERFORMAnCE OF PuBlIC HOSPITAlS

 

the ffC recommends that while recognising the provisions of the national health act (2004) and current norms guiding 

the primary health care system, there is a policy gap in respect of legislative provisions and norms and standards for a 
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well-functioning public hospital system. to close the gap, government must develop norms and standards that should 

address	the	following	issues	in	relation	to	the	public	hospital	system:	(a)	specification	of	minimum	service	requirements;	(b)	

establishment	of	minimum	input	norms;	(c)	establishment	of	a	workable	quality	assurance	framework;	(d)	establishment	of	a	

transparent	reporting	system	focusing	on	inputs,	processes,	outputs,	and	outcomes;	(e)	identification	of	governance	require-

ments; (f) establishment of governance norms and standards; (g) establishment of a strategic planning framework which 

outlines the medium/long-term vision of the hospital system, expressed in terms that are implementable and auditable; and 

(h) development of hard (codified by legislation) and soft (guidelines to aid departments) norms and standards. provinces 

should be allowed to contextualise soft norms and standards which suit their needs/socio-economic circumstances.

government needs to standardise and institutionalise budget format processes across all hospitals.

Consistent with hard norms and standards, allocations should be determined by differentiating by hospital type: central, 

regional and district hospitals; acute psychiatric and chronic hospitals; and infectious disease hospitals.

Government response

the recommendations are in line with government’s vision to improve the country’s entire health system. the department 

of health’s 2009/10 strategic plan offers a comprehensive set of programmes intended to overhaul the health system, with 

public hospitals a key area of focus. factors such as norms and standards, enhanced management and training, delegation of 

authority,	appropriate	levels	of	autonomy,	human	resources	for	health,	quality	assurance,	quality	improvement	and	monitoring	

will be looked at. although the department of health recognises that norms and standards are an important tool in reforming 

the health system, it is important that these norms and standards be informed by the available resource envelope.

CHAPTER 5: REnTAl HOuSInG

 

Relaxation and flexibility

the ffC recommends relaxation of and flexibility towards the (a) eligibility criteria for accessing the social housing capital 

restructuring grant to allow projects falling outside the designated restructuring zones (drZs) to access funding; (b) number 

of drZs to respond to excess demand for rental housing; and (c) minimum unit size for redevelopments of existing buildings. 

the process of disbursing funds for rental housing within the housing sector should be made shorter to minimise time lags 

following the submission of approved project plans.

Government response

the social housing programme is a targeted programme – rather than a mass housing delivery programme – with specific 

restructuring objectives. the restructuring aims to facilitate the further provision of rental accommodation by the private 

sector	in	areas	where	no	or	minimal	investment	in	rental	housing	is	occurring,	but	it	is	required.

The Social Housing Regulatory Authority and Inter-Sectoral Coordination

the ffC recommends that the social housing regulatory authority (shra) should improve the intersectoral coordination 

between departments responsible for integrated human settlement.

Government response

the shra was established to focus on the regulation of the social housing sector to protect government’s investment in rental 

housing. in terms of the social housing act and the rental housing act, national government should ensure that national 

departments and all spheres of government are aligned to enable and support the development of rental/social housing.

qualifying Income Bands

The	FFC	recommends	that	the	qualifying	income	bands	should	be	reviewed	to	ensure	that	individuals	are	not	unfairly	excluded	

from benefiting from the subsidy (due, for example, to increases in the cost of living).
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Government response

government acknowledges that there is great demand and need for affordable rental housing. it is important to note that the 

institutional	subsidy	qualifying	criteria	does	not	apply	when	the	SHRCG	is	used	in	the	social	housing	programme.	There	are,	

however	requirements	to	ensure	that	government’s	investment	does	benefit	targeted	income	groups	(those	below	R3	500-R1	

500) through cross-subsidisation with middle- and higher-income groups.

CHAPTER 6: MAnAGEMEnT And FInAnCInG OF ROAd InFRASTRuCTuRE

the ffC recommends that there should be an increased and stable flow of funds for maintenance, rehabilitation and 

addressing road infrastructure backlogs in the long-term. potential policy proposals to ensure that this is achieved can include 

explicitly	providing	for	a	road	infrastructure	component	within	the	provincial	equitable	share	formula.

there should be greater coordination of road management functions across the three spheres of government. in this regard, 

the revision and modification of the inter-road authority coordinating model by the national department of transport, which 

proposed a roads coordinating body comprised of metropolitan municipalities, district municipalities, local municipalities and 

saLga should be carried out with a view to possible future implementation. priority should be given to addressing the lack 

of technical skills in the road management sector of sub-national governments. attaining this objective can be done via the 

introduction of a separate conditional grant specifically targeted at building technical capacity within the road management 

sector of sub-national governments.

Government response

This	proposal	will	be	dealt	with	as	part	of	the	review	of	the	provincial	equitable	share	formula.

the proposal to expand the existing roads Coordinating Body (rCB) may have merit as it could improve intergovernmental 

coordination and resolve issues such as roads infrastructure framework of south africa (rifsa). including metros and saLga 

seems realistic, but including all municipalities may not be viable logistically. funding through a separate grant should not 

be necessary as capacity building and staff development should be part of the department’s budget already. government, 

through its idip and siyenza Manje programmes, is stepping up efforts to build infrastructure capacity in provinces and 

municipalities.

CHAPTER 7: ASSESSMEnT OF unIvERSAl ACCESS TO WATER And SAnITATIOn SERvICES

 

Free Basic Water and Sanitation Subsidy

the ffC recommends a review of free basic water and sanitation subsidy and water tariff structures, to ensure that the 

shortcomings of the current subsidy system do not outweigh the benefits. at present, there is no coherent oversight 

framework for how water service authorities manage trade-offs in the design and determination of their water tariffs. the 

tariff structures, which vary across municipalities, have a substantial impact on the pricing of water. principles and practices 

guiding both tariff and subsidy structures and price levels should be made clear and routinely monitored.

Government response

government agrees with the proposal for a review of the water tariff structures. specific legislation, regulations, policies 

and guidelines have been developed on water tariffs. at present municipalities set tariffs and the national treasury and 

department of water affairs only oversee and comment on such tariff setting. therefore, government supports the need for 

strengthened regulation on water tariffs and monitoring.

Expanding Access to Sanitation Services and Improving Sanitary Outcomes

the ffC recommends that the sanitation strategy should target behavioural change in relation to sanitation practices by 

households, rather than the provision of infrastructure alone, premised on attaining certain health outcomes. greater consid-
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eration should also be given to household affordability constraints that may affect the long-term sustainability of sanitation 

investments.

Government response

government agrees and already implements a holistic sanitation strategy that includes behavioural change. in determining 

appropriate sanitation investments, affordability and safety are considered.

Establishment of a national Water Regulator

the ffC recommends that government should consider establishing an independent national water regulator that would 

report to parliament. its functions would include regulating the entire water supply industry; issuing licenses, regulating 

tariffs and monitoring integrated resource plans for infrastructure investments; regulating compliance with industry norms 

and	standards;	regulating	the	supply	of	water	and	sanitation	services	and	their	compliance	with	quality	standards;	regulating	

water efficiency and demand-side management; developing regulatory frameworks for public-private partnerships and 

alternative service delivery models in the water sector; and ensuring regulatory instruments support the achievement of 

universal access to water and sanitation services.

 Government response

government agrees to the ffC’s recommendation on the establishment of an independent national water regulator subject 

to its cost and affordability. any lessons learnt from the regulation of both bulk and retail electricity should be taken into 

account.

CHAPTER 8: ASSESSMEnT OF THE InSTITuTIOnAl And FISCAl CAPACITy SuPPORT MECHAnISMS OF lOCAl 

GOvERnMEnT

 

the ffC recommends that local government should be central to setting the agenda for capacity-building programmes in 

recognition of the fact that municipalities remain accountable for their own performance until such time as section 139 of the 

Constitution is invoked. Capacity programmes should be informed by a local government performance management system 

which is driven by key performance indicators.

prior to capacity programmes being developed and implemented at a local government level, a comprehensive assessment 

and design process should be undertaken. Capacity-development programmes should be aligned to each stage of the 

developmental transition of municipalities. there should be differentiated approaches in building capacity. Capacity-develop-

ment programmes should be comprehensive and not only focus on training of personnel and deployment of experts within 

municipalities. they must also focus on other organisational, fiscal and institutional constraints that impact on the overall 

performance of municipalities.

the ffC also recommends that government must establish an intergovernmental framework for understanding what 

constitutes a lack of capacity within the context of local government. the replication of poorly defined roles and responsi-

bilities between national and provincial government and district municipalities in the policy framework should be eliminated. 

this is necessary to create clear lines of responsibility and accountability for spheres of government or sector departments 

over their capacity building roles for local government. each capacity building programme must have a clear outline of 

measurable objectives, targets and timelines. these must detail conditions under which a programme can be withdrawn from 

a respective municipality and, following a detailed monitoring and evaluation of success factors and failures, suggestions for 

sustaining the programme. the method of implementing capacity programmes should be changed from a standard stop-gap 

package to an incremental solution focusing on the identified problems within the municipality, and identifying key leverage 

points where capacity programmes can make a difference.

a variety of grant instruments should be used to address different capacity challenges within different functional areas. such 

grants should only be devolved to sector departments once they have demonstrated capacity to manage effectively such 
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grants and capacity programmes in an igr system.

the Commission further recommends that appropriations for siyenza Manje should be allocated through the division of 

revenue like other capacity grants. this will promote order, transparency and accountability.

Government response

government agrees that local government capacity should be streamlined to enhance its performance.

through various initiatives, such as the local government turnaround strategy and implementation of municipal budgeting 

and reporting reforms, government is looking at measures to improve service delivery at local level.

the current local government capacity grant frameworks have clear outlines of measurable objectives, targets, conditions 

and timelines.

government does not agree with the recommendation that siyenza Manje be allocated through the division of revenue. this 

is because the funds are allocated to the development Bank of southern africa (dBsa) to perform local government capaci-

ty-building on behalf of national government, and one-third of the funding comes from dBsa’s own revenues. in addition, 

the dBsa has the capability to source this expertise much faster than government. it needs to be noted that given the need 

for in-year intervention, it is not possible to allocate these funds to specific municipalities from the start of the financial 

year.	Government	agrees	however,	that	more	transparent	reporting	of	where	funds	have	been	used	is	required.	  



 |  FFC - Annual Report 2009/1048

5.4   Commission REsPonsE To Division oF REvEnUE Bill 2010/2011
 

1. Introduction

the Commission is of the view that the dorB represents a strategic document capable of linking priorities with outcomes. 

in its 2009 submission on the dorB, the Commission noted that the division of revenue act (dora) was becoming increas-

ingly complex, voluminous and too wide-ranging in terms of the issues it covers. the potential danger of the act becoming a 

“hold-all” document, and thus losing strategic focus and transparency, was identified. the Commission recommended a review 

of the Bill with a view to streamlining and reducing its volume. the Commission also notes that the dora (first introduced 

in 1998) preceded other pieces of legislation relating to the management of public finances such as the public finance 

Management act of 1999, Municipal finance Management act of 2003 and the intergovernmental relations framework act 

of 2005. Certain issues that have since been addressed in this legislation may still be finding their way into dora, which could 

be addressed through the proposed review. for example, an important issue that this review will need to consider is whether 

the annual dora is simply meant to address the technical elements of the division of revenue and not with any elements of 

responsibility or accountability for the use of funds. in this case the current “objects” section needs no review. however, if the 

legislation is interpreted to include responsibility and accountability for use of the funds transferred there is a need to review 

and probably expand the objects section of the legislation). the Commission is of the latter view.

the Commission welcomes the fact that the 2010 Bill is significantly streamlined, without having lost strategic coherence. 

in the current Bill for example, a number of specific clauses that deal with allocations are now appropriately dealt within the 

relevant grant frameworks. 

following consultations with the Ministry of finance, it has been agreed that the Commission will lead a process for a compre-

hensive review of the division of revenue Bill in preparation for the 2011 division of revenue. it has been further agreed that 

the work should be completed by June 2010. 

2. Commission Comments on the 2010 Fiscal Framework 

five key priorities underlie government policy over the Medium term expenditure framework (Mtef) all of which have been 

mapped to section 214 (a) to (j) of the constitution namely:

•	 	 Improvement	in	education	and	skills	development

•	 	 Enhancing	the	quality	of	health	care

•	 	 Fight	against	crime	and	corruption

•	 	 Employment	creation	and

•	 	 Rolling	out	a	comprehensive	rural	development	strategy

the Commission notes the priority areas guiding government’s allocation decisions over the 2010 Mtef. a concern from 

the Commission is the apparent lack of intergovernmental structures such as MinMecs and Clusters for coordination of the 

employment creation and rural development priority areas. these two priority areas are both very important and cut across 

the	three	spheres	of	government.	As	such	they	require	very	strong	intergovernmental	structures	to	coordinate	the	various	

strategies from the different sectors and spheres of government.

More broadly, the view of the Commission is that the impact and aftermath of the global recession just witnessed has added 

further challenges to attainment of government’s priority objectives. as part of its work for the 2011 division of revenue, the 

Commission is investigating measures that could assist in the cushioning of the impact of similar recessions while at the same 

time preparing the country for future growth through the division of revenue process. 
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another key aspect in ensuring progress in the attainment of these objectives is in the area of actual service delivery. as part 

of its work, the Commission has developed a budget analysis tool that allows it to assess performance amongst the three 

spheres of government. 

Finally,	improved	health	care	and	the	fight	against	HIV	and	AIDS	require	that	personnel,	utilities	and	infrastructure	in	the	area	

health are able to cope with the demands placed upon them. the anticipated introduction of the national health insurance 

scheme has the potential to be a key input in this. however, it should be noted that the details of the system have not been 

made available to the Commission. the Commission can only comment once the formal proposal has been forwarded to it 

by government. 

what follows now are the Commission’s comments regarding the fiscal framework as it applies to the national, provincial and 

local government spheres of government.

for the 2010 budget, an additional r112 billion has been added to the fiscus to finance the priorities. of this, r33.3 billion (or 

38.3 per cent) goes to national government, r 45.5 billion (or 52.3 per cent) to provinces and r7.8 billion (or 8.9 per cent) to 

municipalities. the Commission’s reaction to this division of revenue amongst the three spheres is that:

•	 	 	Whilst	 the	 local	government	sphere	receives	 the	smallest	share	of	 total	 revenue	relative	 to	 the	other	 two	spheres,	 it	

exhibits the fastest growth

•	 	 	With	respect	to	provinces,	conditional	grant	allocations	grow	faster	than	allocations	made	via	the	provincial	equitable	

share

•	 	 	Allocations	to	national	departments	are	expected	to	show	an	annual	average	growth	rate	of	4.7%.

the Commission notes that there is an increase in the debt service cost compared to other items of the budget. in this respect 

it is also important to note the rapid increase in the public sector wage bill. this scenario might imply that significant amounts 

of the debt service costs increases are driven by personnel expenditure. if this is indeed the case, it would be important that 

this development is reversed as soon as possible. Large amounts of debt that are driven by current consumption as opposed 

to the financing of capital assets are known to ultimately compromise future economic growth and destabilise the domestic 

financial system. the Commission’s submission for the 2010 division of revenue emphasised the need to, where possible, 

restrict long term borrowing to the financing of infrastructure investment in order to secure a better life for future generations.

2.1  Comments on the national Allocations

the additional r33.3 billion to the national sphere is mainly to deal with the new defence force remuneration system, the 

occupation specific dispensation (osd) for Correctional services and additional policing personnel under the area of Justice, 

Crime prevention and policing. an additional r3.7 billion is added to drive nationally managed employment creation initiatives 

that include the textile sector, an automotive production incentive and bio-security.

2.2  Comments on the Provincial Allocations

the provincial total expenditure, including conditional grants made by provinces, for 2010/11 amounts to r322 billion. this 

represents	an	upward	revision	of	oR45.5	billion	in	transfers	to	provinces.	Of	this,	R33.9	billion	is	allocated	using	the	equitable	

share. this is largely intended for improvements to staff conditions of service. in turn this is intended to attract and retain skills 

in	the	health,	education	and	social	development	sectors,	and	improve	the	quality	of	service	delivery.	Part	of	this	adjustment	

is meant to assist provinces in accommodating the higher than anticipated osd wage settlements.

r1 billion over the Mtef is made to accommodate the shifting of the further education training (fet) function from provinces 

to national government. government indicated that as part of the preparatory stage to shifting the function, an amount spent 

by every province on this grant was ring fenced to create the base line for the new national grant. Because all provinces 
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are	guaranteed	to	receive	back	the	amount	ring	fenced	out	of	their	equitable	share	there	should	be	no	direct	impact	on	the	

spending	to	this	area,	except	that	the	change	equates	to	conditionalising	part	of	the	equitable	share.	It	is	the	Commission’s	

view that the constitutionality of such an exercise can be challenged. government argues that this is done in order to prepare 

for the shift in this function from the provincial to the national sphere of government (as fet moves to higher education). 

further, it is recognised that this skills training through fet has become a national priority and would benefit the other 

schemes like the setas and related industrial training. this would mean the grant will most likely enjoy increased funding 

as the purpose and scope will widen beyond that which would be the case if it were to remain located at a provincial level. 

With	respect	to	the	distribution	of	the	equitable	share	between	provinces	the	Commission	notes	and	agrees	with	the	updating	

of the relevant information used in the allocation formula. these include accounting for the re-incorporation of Merafong into 

gauteng from the north west. the Commission has always held the view that the data used in the revenue sharing formulae 

should be the most recent available and in this regard, the revisions to the pes formula have been consistent with the 

Commission’s recommendations.

however, the Commission cautions government against the risk of increasing demand for bail-out money when demarcation 

related decisions are taken. in its recommendations after the 2005 demarcation process, the Commission indicated that 

such processes tend to have vertical fiscal externalities since the decision is taken from the centre in an environment where 

norms and standards are not consistent across provinces or municipalities. in this respect the Commission recommended 

the use of conditional and performance-based transitional transfers to assist negatively affected provinces or municipalities 

adjust to their new boundaries. in order to avoid unrealistic expectations it would make more sense to build in incentives for 

sub-national governments to make necessary expenditure adjustments. this could be done through better structured transi-

tional transfers, wherein a province would need to use funding to take the right decisions however hard they may seem in 

terms of their budgets.

2.3  Comment on the local Government Allocations

the 2010 Mtef will see an additional r10.3 billion allocated to the local government sphere. the bulk of this increase (r6.7 

billion)	is	in	respect	of	the	local	government	equitable	share.	The	Commission	commends	the	increase	to	the	local	government	

equitable	share	baseline	and	government’s	acknowledgment	of	the	need	to	both	ensure	continued	expansion	of	access	to	

basic services and to assist municipalities in dealing with increases in the cost of purchasing bulk electricity. the remainder 

of the r10.3 billion will be allocated to infrastructure grants. 

With	respect	to	the	local	government	equitable	share	formula,	the	Commission	would	like	to	raise	two	areas	of	concern.	The	

first relates to the data underpinning the formula, whilst the second relates to the potential unconstitutionality of the revenue 

raising component of the formula.  

•	 	 	Data	underpinning	the	Local	Government	Equitable	Share	(LES):	 In	the	2008	MTBPS	and	the	2009	DORA,	government	

stated that it would explore updating the Les with the 2007 Community survey. however, after several statistical tests 

and analysis, the degree of error on the survey is deemed too large to be used to allocate funds for the Les. although such 

a decision should be supported as only the most accurate of data can be used for a fiscal function of such magnitude, 

it	raises	the	question	of	the	current	design	of	the	formula.	Given	the	dynamic	demographics	situation	faced	by	munici-

palities,	 it	 is	pivotal	that	the	data	are	updated	as	frequently	as	possible	in	order	to	fund	municipalities	accurately	and	

efficiently and prevent large shocks in allocations that an update in data every decade will have. the current design of 

the formula only allows for an update in the data every 10 years with a census. government needs to urgently explore 

technical	changes	to	the	formula	and	the	data	required	so	as	to	ensure	a	constant	as	possible	update	to	the	formula	using	

international best practice. 

•	 	 	Revenue	Raising	Component	(RRC)	is	potentially	unconstitutional:	The	RRC	serves	as	a	correction	mechanism	to	account	

for a municipality’s own revenue potential in the allocation of funds via the Les formula. once a municipality’s allocation 

through the Basic services (Bs) and institutional (i) components is calculated, the rrC mechanism would subtract funds 
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from this initial allocation to calculate a municipality’s final allocations through the Les formula. section 227(2) of the 

Constitution states that “additional revenue raised by provinces or municipalities may not be deducted from their share 

of	revenue	raised	nationally,	or	from	other	allocations	made	to	them	out	of	national	government	revenue.	Equally,	there	is	

no obligation on the national government to compensate provinces or municipalities that do not raise revenue commen-

surate with their fiscal capacity and tax base” (rsa, 1996). according to this section, an individual municipality’s own 

revenue	ability	or	other	allocations	from	national	government	to	municipalities	should	not	be	deducted	from	its	equitable	

share allocations. however, in the current Les formula, a municipality’s ability to generate its own revenues is taken into 

account	through	the	RRC	Component,	which	clearly	contradicts	the	Constitutional	requirement	in	Section	227(2).	

2.4  Revisions to Conditional Grants 

2.4.1 Provincial Grants 

this year sees the introduction of at least 4 new conditional grants to provinces, despite previous recommendations of the 

Commission’s highlighting the need to reduce the number of conditional grants. two of these new grants are in the education 

sector. other new grants are the expanded public works programme for the social sector (a once off allocation of r57 million 

in 2010/11), the secondary school recapitalisation grant and dinaledi schools grant for the purchasing of mathematics and 

science teaching material, and the grant (discussed previously) to facilitate the transfer of fet colleges to national government. 

the Commission welcomes funding of the epwp incentive grant for the social sector. however, it must emphasize that 

caution needs to be exercised to avoid asymmetry in the expenditure patterns within the grant framework. there will be a 

need to standardise the employment framework for the sector including conditions, wages and progression across provinces 

and municipalities. the Commission is also concerned with the difficulties still being experienced with the transfer of the 

expanded public works programme incentive grant to Local and provincial governments.  in the 2009/10 certain provinces 

(e.g. western Cape) raised a concern that they received transfers outside the ambit of the division of revenue and can’t spend 

the money because it is not properly appropriated through various legislatures. 

the general challenge with this grant is that provinces and municipalities still find it difficult to integrate it through their 

infrastructure programmes. Labour intensive infrastructure projects must be planned, costed and scheduled properly. it 

should be noted that not all projects will yield the same labour intensity, so targets must be set by project type and category. 

some projects will better lend themselves to labour intensive methods than others. this must be factored into the budget 

allocations and monitoring of the grant.

the Commission welcomes the certainty in funding shown by firm allocations for public transport improvement & systems 

grant over the Mtef. however, the Commission is still concerned about the vague allocation criteria for this grant. in the past 

the select Committee has raised its reservations about the performance of this grant, especially with regard to deliverables 

such	as	bus	stations,	pavements,	pedestrian	and	bicycle	ways	constructed,	for	which	there	has	been	inadequate	reporting	

on non-financial performance. of importance is that funding for the transport sector needs to be urgently reviewed. there 

are	pockets	of	funding	for	transport	in	the	fiscal	framework	(Equitable	Shares,	Infrastructure	Grant	to	Provinces,	Municipal	

infrastructure grant, rural transport services and infrastructure grant and the ptis), yet no coherent fiscal strategy for the 

long term sustainability of public transport services is in place.

the Commission is currently reviewing the whole system of conditional grants and will be making recommendations in the 

submission for the 2011 division of revenue.

2.4.2  Revisions to the Local government conditional grants allocations

key developments with respect to local government conditional grants include the discontinuation of three grants and the 

introduction of one new grant. each is considered in turn:

the Backlogs in water and sanitation at schools and Clinics: this grant was implemented during the 2007/08 financial year 

as a three-year grant with the intention of providing funding for the eradication of water supply and sanitation backlogs at all 
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clinics and schools. More specifically, it was envisaged that, by 2008/09, 465 clinics would be supplied with basic sanitation 

facilities and 719 clinics would be supplied with water supply. with respect to schools, 170 were targeted for supply with safe 

water and sanitation facilities. a total of r665 million was made available over the 2007 Mtef cycle to ensure that all identified 

clinics and schools would be granted access. the Commission notes that it is not clear whether all outputs associated with 

this grant have been reached.

the Backlogs in the electrification of Clinics and schools grant: similar to the Backlogs in water and sanitation at schools 

and Clinics grant, this particular grant was introduced into the system in 2007/08. it was an in-kind allocation that aimed to 

implement the integrated national electrification programme through the provision of capital subsidies to eskom in order to 

address the electrification backlog of schools and clinics. r285 million was made available to fund this intervention that was 

meant to connect 6928 schools and 411 clinics with electricity by 2009/10. the Commission again notes that it is not clear 

whether all outputs associated with this grant have been reached.

the electricity demand side Management grant: this grant was introduced as recently as 2008/09. the intention was that 

the programme would run until the 2014/15 financial year. the purpose of the grant was to implement an energy efficiency 

demand side management (eedsM) programme by providing capital subsidies to licensed distributors to address eedsM in 

residential dwelling, community and commercial buildings in order to mitigate the risk of load shedding and supply interrup-

tions. it is now intended that as of 2012/13, it will be discontinued. when this grant was first introduced, the Commission 

cautioned against the introduction of any financial instrument to encourage energy efficiency in the absence of first identifying 

areas causing high energy intensities and waste. at that point the Commission noted that it seemed that the magnitude of the 

problem	was	not	yet	identified	and	quantified.	The	Commission	re-iterates	the	sentiment	expressed	last	year	that	investment	

decisions should be based on a thorough interrogation of costs and benefits before spending decisions are taken. this will aid 

the achievement of greater value for tax-payers’ money.

over the 2010 Mtef period, one new conditional grant is introduced, namely the rural households infrastructure grant. this 

grant will be funded through savings that were realized from the lower than anticipated electricity tariff increase. the intended 

purpose of the grant is to facilitate the provision of rural sanitation and rural water in villages and homesteads to existing 

households through the use of on-site solutions. allocations to this grant over the 2010 Mtef amount to r1.2 billion – r100 

million in 2010/11, r350 million in 2011/12 and r750 million in 2012/13. the grant will be located within the human settlements 

department. the Commission is concerned with the institutional location of the grant and its link to the interventions of, for 

example, the department of rural development and Land reform and infrastructure-related grants such as the Municipal 

infrastructure grant (Mig). Mig also has a focus on the provision of capital finance for basic municipal infrastructure for poor 

households, some of which can be on-site technologies. in addition, it is not yet clear that sufficient rigour has gone into 

the design of this programme, given that its creation was a function of savings from lower than anticipated electricity price 

increases. 

in general, with respect to conditional grant allocations the Commission recommends that as a matter of standard and 

ongoing practice: 

•	 	 	Independent	 exit	 reviews	 of	 discontinued	 grants	 be	 conducted	 in	 order	 to	 evaluate	 their	 performance	 relative	 to	

objectives, and provide lessons for the ongoing improvement to other conditional grant programmes

•	 	 	A	 design	 and	 implementation	 planning	 review	 be	 conducted	 for	 new	 grants	 (in	 this	 instance	 the	 Rural	 Households	

infrastructure grant), and  

•	 	 	There	be	independent	mid-term	grant	performance	reviews	for	all	grants	in	the	system.

as raised in the Commission’s response to the division of revenue for 2010, concern exists around continued delays in the 

implementation of policy in key service delivery sectors and the impact that this has on the intergovernmental system. this is 
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raised specifically in the context of the restructuring of the electricity distribution industry (edi) and the proposed establish-

ment of regional electricity distributors (reds). in addition to the political, economic and social changes that have transpired 

since	the	reform	process	was	 initiated,	and	which	bring	 into	question	the	current	assumptions	underpinning	the	restruc-

turing process, the current hiatus with respect to the implementation of the reds continues to generate new costs. the 

Commission	continued	to	believe	that	this	requires	a	total	re-evaluation	of	the	costs	and	benefits	of	the	restructuring,	relative	

to what were anticipated at the conception of the idea.

3. Comments on Government’s response to the Commission’s recommendations

in 2009 the financial and fiscal Commission made recommendations in 8 areas of government spending as follows;

•	 	 The	review	of	the	provincial	equitable	share

•	 	 Funding	for	public	infrastructure

•	 	 Funding	for	social	security

•	 	 Performance	of	public	hospitals

•	 	 Funding	for	rental	housing

•	 	 Financing	and	management	of	roads	infrastructure

•	 	 	Assessment	of	universal	access	to	water	and	sanitation	services	and,	

•	 	 	Assessment	of	institutional	and	fiscal	capacity	support	mechanism	for	local	government.

the Commission’s reaction to government’s response that is contained in annexure w1 can be summarised as follows:

•	 	 	The	Commission	welcomes	the	fact	that	Government	has	accepted	almost	all	of	its	recommendations.

•	 	 	Furthermore	the	Commission	is	committed	to	ensuring	ongoing	improvements	with	respect	to	the	relevance	and	quality	

of its recommendations

in this spirit, the Commission proposes further consultation with national treasury and relevant government departments) 

following the tabling of the national budget.  
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5.5   Commission REsPonsE To 2009 mEDiUm TERm BUDgET 
PoliCY sTATEmEnT

1.  BACKGROund

•	 	 	This	 submission	 is	made	 in	 terms	of	 Section	 3	 (1),	 Part	 1	 of	 the	 Financial	 and	 Fiscal	 Commission	Act	 99	 of	 1997	 as	

amended which provides for the Commission to act as a consultative body for and to make recommendations to organs 

of state in the national, provincial and local spheres of government on financial and fiscal matters.. 

•	 	 	In	the	case	of	the	Medium	Term	Budget	Policy	Statement	(MTBPS),	Section	4	(4)	(c)	of	the	Money	Bills	Amendment	Procedure	

and	Related	Matters	Act	9	of	2009,	requires	Committees	of	Parliament	to	consider	the	Commission’s	recommendations	

when dealing with money bills and related matters. 

•	 	 	This	submission	highlights	the	key	issues	emerging	from	the	2009	Medium	Term	Budget	Policy	Statement	(MTBPS)	that	

the Commission believes need to be taken into consideration by the Committees in as far as those matters provide an 

indication of what factors will inform the budget for the 2010 fiscal year. a further issue is to make specific reference to 

matters that have a bearing on the Commission’s recommendations for 2010 division of revenue (consultations with 

government through the offices of the national treasury are still ongoing) that the Committee may wish to consider.

2.   OvERAl FISCAl FRAMEWORK And BlEAK ECOnOMIC OuTlOOK OvER THE nEXT MTEF PERIOd 

•	 	 	The	Medium	Term	Budget	Policy	Statement	 tabled	 in	Parliament	on	27	October	2009	contains	 the	proposed	budget	

framework for the next three years.

•	 	 	The	extent	of	the	global	financial	crisis	influence	on	the	MTBPS	is	discussed	in	this	submission.	The	assumptions	about	

growth underpinning government’s Mtef are shown below. 

the Medium-term spending priorities over the Mtef are:

•	 	 	Expanding	employment	and	safeguarding	social	security	through	skills	building	and	the	new	phase	of	the	EPWP	(Expanded	

public works programme)

•	 	 	Improving	the	quality	of	education	and	skills	development

•	 	 Enhancing	the	quality	of	healthcare

•	 	 	Rolling	out	of	a	comprehensive	rural	development	strategy

•	 	 	Creating	a	built	environment	to	support	economic	development,	and	

•	 	 A	broad	based	approach	to	fighting	crime	

 % 2009 2010 2011 2012

gross domestic product (gdp) -1.9 1.5 2.7 3.2

household consumption -3.1 0.9 2.3 2.5

Capital formation 3.5 4.4 7.1 6.6

Consumer price inflation 7.1 6.3 6 5.7

National Treasury’s Macroeconomic Outlook

Source: National Treasury, MTBPS
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3.  ASSuMPTIOn undERPInnInG THE MTBPS

•	 	 	The	Commission	broadly	agrees	with	the	fiscal	easing	proposed	in	the	2009	MTBPS	given	the	sharp	recession	and	weak	

economic outlook

•	 	 	The	substantially	bigger	borrowing	requirement	is	linked	to	large	infrastructural	investment	projects	that	would	be	key	for	

long term growth as well as the being of future generations. (eskom& transnet)

•	 	 	These	assumptions	lead	government	to	forecast	revenue	reductions	in	real	terms	when	compared	to	the	February	2009	

Budget. the reduction in collections is shown in the table below:

•	 	 	Even	though	the	revenue	collection	shows	an	improvement	in	nominal	terms	from	the	point	of	tabling	the	2009	Budget	

review, such an adjustment is insignificant when offset against inflation.

•	 	 	In	 the	context	of	 the	global	economic	climate	 the	assumptions	underpinning	Government’s	projections	on	economic	

growth, revenue growth, and hence the division of revenue are largely not unexpected. 

•	 	 	In	the	same	light,	the	Commission’s	own	modelling	raises	the	possibility	that	the	assumptions	underpinning	Government	

projections about growth might be optimistic. for this reason, the Commission would like to caution against the possibility 

that the anticipated recovery in industrial economies may not come as early as predicted. the recession may continue 

much longer than what government’s assumptions suggests. therefore things may get much worse before they get any 

better.

•	 	 	Should	the	recovery	be	delayed,	Government’s	assumptions	with	regard	to	growth	and	inflation	for	the	next	three	years	

upon which the budgetary parameters were based may be overly optimistic. going forward, the Commission suggests 

focusing on the issue of cutting indicative allocations in circumstances where projections indicate that revenue collection 

is likely to plummet. 

•	 	 	With	respect	to	job	creation	through	EPWP,	the	Commission	would	like	to	re-emphasise	its	previous	position	that	there	

be an evaluation of the performance of the first epwp programme. such an evaluation will go a long way in enhancing 

government insight into its successes and failures. 

•	 	 	On	the	expenditure	side,	the	Minister	of	Finance	is	proposing	a	large	easing	of	Government	expenditure	driven	largely	

through its budget and public enterprise investment. with declining government revenue induced by the recession, the 

budget deficits are inevitable. the budget deficit for the next three years has therefore had to be increased from forecasts 

of 3.8%, 3.2%, and 1.9% of gross domestic product in the february 2009 Budget to 7.6%, 6.2% and 5.0% of gdp.

•	 	 	Within	the	government	budget,	the	main	drivers	of	the	high	budget	deficit	are	a	substantial	discretionary	fiscal	impulse	

in the form of a continued increase in infrastructure investment, an expansion of the social safety net and a larger 

than anticipated wage bill (driven by the implementation of the occupation specific dispensation (osd) in health and 

education.

R billions **2009/10 **2010/11 **2011/12 **2012/13

revenue MtBps 657.5 743.5 833.4 921.3

revenue Budget review 642.9 709.1 781.2 -

difference 14.6 34.4 52.2 921.3

Revenue Projections

Source: National Treasury, MTBPS
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•	 	 	The	Commission	broadly	agrees	with	this	fiscal	easing	proposed	in	the	2009	MTBPS	given	the	sharp	recession	and	weak	

economic outlook. in fact Chapter 2 of the Commission’s 2010/11 annual submission on the division of revenue, supports 

this position (see Box 1 below).

•	 	 	Looking	at	the	non	financial	sector	public	enterprises,	we	note	that	there	is	increased	funding	for	Eskom	and	Transnet.	

The	public	sector	borrowing	requirement	rises	cumulatively	over	the	three	years	by	R331	billion	compared	with	what	was	

budgeted for in february or a large r1.11 trillion over the next four years.  given that the increases in the budget deficit will 

drive public investment in the next three years, we find the proposal sound and understandable. the substantially bigger 

borrowing	requirement	is	linked	to	large	infrastructural	investment	projects	that	would	be	key	for	long	term	growth	and	

well being of future generations.

Revenue Projections

quantitative effects of ffC’s model simulations finds that a strategy that increases public investment in the areas 

identified strike broadly the right balance between supporting demand and maintaining macroeconomic stability. the 

FFC’s	computable	general	equilibrium	model	was	used	for	simulating	the	dynamics	of	the	economy	under	a	package	

of public infrastructure increases and maintenance. we find that these policies would raise output and employment by 

about 2 percentage points, at the expense of higher inflation (by about 2 percentage points), higher trade deficit (by about 

0.5 percentage point of gdp), and a mild crowding out of private investment, relative to a counterfactual of no discretion-

ary policies. these results can be extrapolated for working as a demand stimuli in the current depressed environment.

Source: The 2010/11 Annual submission can be downloaded from the FFC website: http://www.ffc.co.za/

•	 	 	Although	the	Commission	did	not	go	on	to	make	a	specific	recommendation	in	Chapter	3	of	its	Annual	Submission	on	

an assessment of social grants, the Chapter confirmed that south africa has a well-developed social assistance system 

and its social grants are very well targeted and have a significant mitigating impact on poverty. it pointed out though that 

considerable uncertainty remains about some of the incentive effects of these grants and their long term sustainabil-

ity. government to some extent has taken into account this long term sustainability. other than interest payments, the 

highest proposed functional growth is for housing and community development rather than for social services such as 

education, health and welfare.

•	 	 	The	 Commission	 is	 however	 concerned	 about	 the	 unanticipated	wage	 bill.	While	 the	 Commission	 understands	 and	

supports government in honouring its commitments to pay the rising wage bill, the Commission is of the view that such 

increases should not use a blanket approach but be targeted to specific employees and retraining those that are not in 

possession	of	the	requisite	skills	in	their	employment	so	as	to	improve	efficiency.	The	Commission’s	view	is	that	there	

should be a deliberate attempt to synchronise the centralized bargaining process of the public sector with the budget 

process to ensure that provinces and municipalities are not unnecessarily overburdened by decisions over which they 

have no direct control. this assumes greater importance during a period of recession wherein the country should not 

borrow to fund personnel costs but rather benefit infrastructure development which will result in job creation. there is 

a need for collective responsibility to be taken if a balance is to be struck between bargaining chamber agreements and 

investments that create jobs.

4.   PROvInCIAl And lOCAl GOvERnMEnT FISCAl FRAMEWORK 

•	 	 	Table	4.2	of	the	MTBPS	shows	the	provincial	and	local	government	fiscal	framework.	Transfers	to	provinces	from	national	

government have in the past had a healthy growth of more than 10 per cent on average. provincial baselines are expected 

to grow by only 7.5 per cent over the 2010/11 Medium term. with an assumed Cpi of 6.5 percent, the real growth of the 

provincial fiscus is therefore only 1.0 per cent. a year on year growth gives a true picture of the extent of the slowdown in 

the growth especially the outer year which show a 4.7 per cent growth from 8.9 per cent in 2010/11. government projects 

a growth of 8.9 per cent in 2010/11, 8.5 per cent in 2011/12 and 5.0 per cent in 2012/13.
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•	 	 	The	Table	below	is	also	a	representation	of	the	division	of	revenue	or	expenditure	allocation	between	the	three	spheres	of	

government. the table shows that the total expenditure by the three spheres is r692.5 billion as at 2009/10, broken down 

in to 50.1 per cent for national, 42.6 per cent to provinces and 7.3 per cent to local government. this position changes 

slightly in to the new Mtef, with national declining in share as and both provinces and local government steadily increase. 

the overall expenditure is projected to be r833.2 billion in 2012/13, after a total baseline addition of r78 billion.  of this 

r78 billion, provinces receive the highest amount at r39 billion, national r25 billion and Local government r12.4 billion.

  2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2010  Average an-
nual growth 

R million Revised Medium-term estimates MTEF  2009/10 –  
2012/13     

National  346,642   356,350   368,986   390,531    4.1% 

Provincial  295,353   321,369   348,720   366,983    7.5% 

Equitable	share  236,878   260,623   280,317   294,386    7.5% 

Conditional grants  58,475   60,747   68,403   72,597    7.5% 

Local  50,533   59,322   67,964   75,718    14.4% 

Equitable	share  24,356   30,468   34,390   37,984    16.0% 

Conditional grants  19,377   21,312   25,043   28,776    14.1% 

general fuel levy sharing with  
   metropolitan municipalities

 6,800   7,542   8,531   8,958    9.6% 

Total  692,528   737,042   785,670   833,232    6.4% 

Percentage shares      

National 50.1% 48.3% 47.0% 46.9%    

Provincial 42.6% 43.6% 44.4% 44.0%    

Local 7.3% 8.0% 8.7% 9.1%    

Changes to baseline      

National  3,565   3,730   8,200   13,788   25,718  

Provincial  10,834   11,670   12,800   15,412   39,882  

Equitable	share  8,995   10,330   10,930   11,530   32,790  

Conditional grants  1,839   1,340   1,870   3,882   7,092  

Local  835   1,600   3,000   7,800   12,400  

Equitable	share  509   1,200   2,500   4,500   8,200  

Conditional grants  326   400   500   3,300   4,200  

general fuel levy sharing with  
   metropolitan municipalities

 –    –    –    –    –  

Total  15,233   17,000   24,000   37,000   78,000  

Table 4.2  division of revenue, 2009/10 – 2012/13

Source: National Treasury

•	 	 	As	far	as	the	division	of	revenue	amongst	the	three	spheres	 is	concerned,	revenue	allocated	to	national	government	

will continue to decline steadily over the Mtef from 50.1% to 46.9% of the budget between 2009/10 and 2012/13. the 

revenues allocated to local government will steadily rise from 7.3% in 2009/10 to 9.1% 2012/13. finally, the provincial share 

of revenue rises from 42.6% to 44.0% over the same period.

•	 	 	A	larger	portion	of	the	R39.9	billion	added	to	the	provincial	framework		sees	the	equitable	share	rise	by	an	additional	

r32.7 billion (or  8.6 percent) off its baseline of the revised r236.9 billion in 2009/10, conditional grants increase by r7.1 

billion ( or 28.3 per cent), of the revised baseline of r58.4 billion. this signifies a considerable increase in the pace at which 

non-discretionary funding increases compared to the discretionary part over the Mtef.
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•	 	 	The	Commission	notes	in	particular	the	revision	in	the	Provincial	Equitable	Share	(PES)	baseline	due	to	the	shifting	of	the	

further education training (fet) colleges funding to the national sphere of government. there is an immediate downward 

revision of the pes baseline. 

•	 	 	If	this	funding	reverts	to	national	government	in	the	form	of	a	conditional	grant.	It	would	be	important	for	government	to	

indicate	what	the	quantum	or	amount	is	that	will	be	taken	from	the	PES	and	what	criteria	will	be	followed	to	allocate	it	

back to provinces.  the Commission further advises that the positive lessons learnt when social security was transferred 

to the national sphere of government should be used.

•	 	 	Another	possible	challenge	is	the	budgetary	procedure.	If	such	A	shift	was	to	be	made	in-year,	consideration	must	be	

given to minimizing disruption of provincial budgets. if possible, government may need to defer such a shift until the 

economic outlook improves as this may impose further pressure on current provincial baselines especially if provinces 

were using this funds to cross subsidise other services.

•	 	 	Another	dimension	that	the	Commission	would	wish	to	raise	 is	that	of	a	constitutional	nature	 if	 the	conditional	grant	

route	is	taken.	Work	on	the	review	of	the	Provincial	Equitable	Share	formula	has	led	to	the	realisation	that	the	outright	

ring	fencing	of	the	Equitable	Share	can	be	unconstitutional	in	terms	of	the	provisions	of	Section	227	(3)	of	the	Constitu-

tion	of	the	Republic	of	South	Africa	Act	108	of	1996	as	amended.	That	provision	requires	a	prompt	and	without	deduction	

approach	to	allocation	of	the	provincial	equitable	share.

•	 	 	The	full	extent	of	the	economic	pressure	on	provincial	finances	is	already	evident	from	the	Treasury’s	2009	Early	Warning	

system (summary of provincial Budgets and expenditure as at 31 august 2009) which shows a projected overall over 

expenditure of r12 billion by provinces.

•	 	 	As	pointed	out	earlier,	except	for	roll-overs	in	conditional	grants	and	accruals	from	the	previous	financial	year,	the	biggest	

challenge is that budgetary pressures emanate from the area of personnel. given its nature and if allowed to grow out 

of control, personnel costs could be difficult to contain due to the nature of the carry through and mandatory costs 

associated with it. as a result, it’s not uncommon that provinces redirect funds away from “non core” to education and 

health	within	which	the	main	cost	drivers	is	personnel.	The	consequence	of	this	is	that	service	delivery	can	be	expected	

to slow down in preference to wage agreements. 

•	 	 	Going	forward	the	Commission	would	wish	to	suggest	that	the	current	trend	as	displayed	in	the	current	MTBPS	should	

be maintained. national policy priorities should be limited and be stable for a particular period to avoid a situation where 

new priorities erode older ones in terms of focus and funding commitment. these result in under-provision of services 

or piecemeal implementation of policies, especially because future funding streams or allocations do not usually find 

expression	in	subsequent	budgets	and	more	importantly	are	not	adequately	monitored.	Again,	provinces	are	at	different	

stages of development or capacity levels. therefore national policy priorities, in an attempt to achieve uniformity, must 

also recognise the capacity of various provinces to implement.

5.   ISSuES AROund THE lOCAl GOvERnMEnT OvER THE nEXT THREE yEARS 

•	 	 	Unlike	the	provincial	transfers,	allocations	to	local	government	have	grown	by	a	resilient	14.5	per	cent	over	the	MTEF.	

assuming that the Cpi is 6.5 percent, the real growth of the local government fiscus is 8.0 per cent.  the biggest increase 

is	in	the	equitable	share	(16	per	cent)	to	mainly	assist	municipalities	deal	with	electricity	increases,	while	local	government	

conditional grants framework (14.8 per cent) are the fastest growing to mainly expand the basic infrastructure services 

to households. revisions to this effect are directed towards the Municipal infrastructure grant (Mig). of the total r12.4 

billion	added	to	the	local	government	fiscal	framework,	R8.2	billion	or	66	percent	goes	to	the	equitable	share.	

•	 	 	In	making	allocation	to	this	sphere,	the	Commission	would	like	to	caution	against	increased	allocation	to	non-perform-

ing grants, including the Mig. the Commission would like to re-iterate its previous recommendation that there be link 
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between Mig and the Les. this is such that as infrastructure is rolled out through Mig, allocations to municipalities in the 

form of the Les should reflect the need associated with the infrastructure that is been rolled out. 

•	 	 	As	with	 the	 provincial	 framework,	 though	 the	 LES	 allocation	 illustrates	 positive	 growth	over	 the	 period,	 the	 pace	of	

growth becomes progressively slower, particularly over the outer years of the medium term as a result of the economic 

down turn. according to national treasury, Category B and C municipalities are particularly reliant on transfers from the 

centre. the number of Category B municipalities in particular, who rely on national transfers for 50% of their revenues 

has grown from 69 in 2004/05 to 97 in 2008/09. for Category C municipalities, the situation is as grim with 38 of the total 

46 Category C municipalities now reliant on national transfers for more 50% of their revenues.

•	 	 	The	Commission	commends	government	for	the	recognition	it	has	given	to	ensuring	that	there	is	expansion	of	access	to	

free basic services including the upgrading and rehabilitation of key municipal infrastructure. the Commission has raised 

the	issue	of	the	qquality	of	services	/	spending	in	its	Submission	for	the	Division	of	Revenue	for	2010/11	recommenda-

tions and would wish to reiterate the points made there within this context. the Commission suggested programme 

restructuring to improve outcomes in local government capacity building and for the built environment. the thrust here 

is effective functional allocations and programme design in achieving value for money and improving outcomes, rather 

than merely increasing allocations.

•	 	 	A	 related	 issue	underlying	 the	MTBPS	 is	 the	 replacement	of	 the	RSC	 levies	 for	district	municipalities.	 This	 raises	 the	

important issues of local government revenue enhancement and whether sub-national tax incentives such as property 

rates rebates would be appropriate. the Municipal fiscal power and functions act 12 of 2007 addresses issues relating 

local government tax. Municipalities can individually or collectively through saLga implement taxes assigned to them as 

long as they follow the prescripts of this act.

•	 	 	The	overspending	of	operational	budgets	versus	the	underspending	of	capital	budgets	presents	 two	additional	areas	

of concern reflecting poor financial management practice and which negatively affects the performance of municipali-

ties. over or underspending of budgets runs contrary to the principles of sound budgeting practice and reflects lack of 

credible budgets (in the case of operational expenditure) and poor planning with respect to capital projects. given that 

changes to the baseline allocation to conditional grants are projected to increase by r3 billion by the end of the Mtef, 

the	Commission	raises	concern	around	whether	municipalities	will	be	able	to	adequately	absorb	such	an	 increase	 in	

the absence of a radical approach to fundamentally reform and strengthen them or whether current inefficiencies will 

persist, with significant proportions of resources being unspent.. 

•	 	 	Adequate	capacity	is	a	critical	concern	for	municipalities.	The	availability	of	appropriately	skilled	human	capital,	capable	

of ensuring solid financial management practices and strategic planning, is an asset for any municipality. Lack of 

capacity in this regard has a definite impact on the performance of a municipality. Constant growth in capacity building 

grants should, as noted in the Commission submission on the division of revenue for 2010/11, take into consideration 

current weaknesses in the framework underpinning capacity building initiatives. the concern is that interventions are 

fragmented, uncoordinated and largely unresponsive to the nature and underlying causes of the challenges experienced. 

Thus,	allocating	additional	funding	within	this	context	would	not	be	fiscally	prudent	and	would	certainly	not	adequately	

address current capacity challenges.

•	 	 	Finally,	the	recapitalisation	of	the	Development	Bank	of	Southern	Africa	(DBSA)	(allowing	an	increase	in	its	callable	capital)	

is a significant development as it constitutes the first recapitalisation in over a decade. this raises significant issues in 

terms of the current focus of dBsa lending (largely on highly creditworthy municipalities). the issue is whether it has 

exhausted its current lending capacity and the nature of the impact that it has had on the overall debt market. this may 

have	the	unintended	consequence	of	squeezing	out	private	lenders	or	actually	growing	the	size	of	lending	to	municipal-

ity. the Commission wishes to highlight these risks, as well as the need for the communication of clear policy objectives 

to the dBsa.
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•	 	 	The	Commission	further	re-iterates	its	previous	recommendation	that	the	DBSA	should	have	a	role	to	play	in	building	the	

creditworthiness of low capacity municipalities.

the Commission finally recommends that allocations flowing through the Bank including siyenza Manje, 

must	be	subjected	to	the	prescripts	and	reporting	requirements	of	the	Division	of	revenue	Act.		  
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5.6   Commission sUBmission on 2010/2011 FisCAl 
FRAmEwoRk AnD REvEnUE PRoPosAls

1.  The Context: Parliament’s Powers to Amend Money Bills

this submission is made in terms of section 4 (4c) of the Money Bills amendment procedure and related Matters act (act 9 

of	2009)	which	requires	Parliamentary	Committees	to	consider	any	recommendations	of	the	Financial	and	Fiscal	Commission	

(hereafter the Commission) during their deliberations on Money Bills. 

the Commission’s submission is structured in four distinct but intertwined areas. the first section gives a brief description of 

the fiscal framework and how it has evolved since inception. the second section looks at the economic outlook and suggests 

areas for further enhancement. section 3 looks at specific revenue and tax proposals in the 2010 budget. section 4 raises 

what the Commission considers as important issues pertaining to consolidating transparency and addressing contingent 

liabilities.

it is important to point out that 2010 appropriation Bill is the first ever of its kind and as such this submission to the Committees 

has not benefited from any previous experience gained by the Commission. the submission should therefore be viewed as 

the beginning of a learning experience not only for the executive and legislature, but also for the Commission and indeed all 

stakeholders in helping with the implementation of this very important legislative mandate.

2.  Review of basic fiscal framework principles

1.   the south african constitution is the supreme law upon which the underpinnings of the fiscal framework are enshrined. 

various chapters of the constitution set out the legal framework for the collection and estimation of revenue, expenditure, 

borrowing and contingency reserves within the prevailing macroeconomic fundamentals.

2.   the Money Bills amendment procedure and related Matters act defines the fiscal framework for a specific financial year 

that gives effect to the national executive’s macro-economic policy to include:

  a.   estimates of all revenue, budgetary and extra-budgetary specified separately, expected to be raised during that 

financial year;

  b.   estimates of all revenue, budgetary and extra-budgetary specified separately, for that financial year;

  c.   estimates of borrowing for that financial year;

  d.   estimates of interest and debt servicing charges; and

  e.   an indication of the contingency reserve necessary for an appropriate response to emergencies or other temporary 

needs, and other factors based on similar objective criteria.

3.   the national fiscal framework, as defined above, can be specified for a single financial year. with the acceptance of the 

Medium term expenditure framework (Mtef) process by cabinet in 1998, the national fiscal framework now forms part 

of the rolling three year budgeting cycle. in addition to the current financial year, a three year forward estimate of the 

fiscal framework is also tabled so as to improve fiscal planning over the medium term. 

4.   the Mtef set out to improve the allocation of resources to priority services, enable spending agencies to plan ahead 

with certainty, provide a framework within which policy proposals are assessed, improve transparency, reduce roll over’s 

and demonstrate how fiscal targets will be met. the ultimate aim of these reforms has been to deliver a more stable 

environment in which firms and households could plan and make decisions with confidence. 
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5.   the fiscal framework complements the monetary policy framework of inflation targeting that is run by the (independent) 

reserve Bank. Both frameworks sought to reconcile commitment to medium term objectives with the need for short 

term flexibility through the principle of constrained discretion. while the monetary policy framework is reliant on interest 

rate adjustments, fiscal policy has three fiscal targets as follows:

  a.   taxation raising, spending and borrowing for each organ of the public sector consistent with the underlying 

macroeconomic conditions. within this broad objective, government further aims to achieve fiscal sustainability, 

that is, ability to finance a given level of expenditure for an extended period of time and without shifting the burden 

to future generation and stifling future economic growth prospects.

  b.   allocation of expenditure across different spheres of government that matches the distribution of functions and 

their relative priority, as well as across and within various sectors.

  c.   within each sphere of government, utilise resources in a manner that minimise costs and maximise delivery of 

services. this encompasses both fiscal discipline (staying within budget constraints and not underspending) as well 

as eliminating unproductive, wasteful and fruitless expenditures (increasing operational efficiency).

6.   upon the end of a period of fiscal consolidation associated with growth, employment and redistribution (gear) policy, 

government adopted discretionary stimulus fiscal policy as opposed to revenue, debt and deficit restraining fiscal rules. 

the post fiscal consolidation period, that is the period between 2002/03 and 2008/09, was somewhat conducive to 

expansionary fiscal policy due to buoyant economic conditions. as a result, the budget deficit averaged 0,6 percent of 

gross domestic product (gdp) while revenue averaged around 30 percent of gdp.  this healthy fiscal situation has over 

time lessened the need to impose explicit tighter fiscal rules or targets on the fiscal framework.

7.   for the 2010 Mtef, government has set itself an implicit and maximum budget deficit of 7,3 percent of gdp. the increased 

government	borrowing	requirement	is	necessary	in	part	as	a	counter	cyclical	instrument	and	also	to	fulfil	government	

commitment to services delivery. some countries tend to employ the golden rule that over the economic cycle, 

government only borrows to invest in capital and not to fund current spending (current consumption) 

8.   the current political nature of the vertical division of revenue makes it difficult to determine with certainty the expenditure 

items to which the debt finance is apportioned. this makes the determination of rules rather difficult. however, in future 

government may wish to make explicit fiscal rules in order to ensure time-consistency of policy and reduce political 

rent-seeking. fiscal rules should apply to all policy areas which may affect future resources. Both the public finance 

Management act and the Municipal finance Management act are a step in that direction, particularly by adding a rule for 

public investment, or to allow policy makers to borrow for public investment. 

3.   Responding to exceptional circumstances – the macroeconomic outlook underlying 2010 Budget

1.   as set out in the 2010 Budget speech of the Minister of finance pravin gordhan, a major economic shock that has hit the 

economy has been the global recession. that shock has brought out the point that economic prospects are subject to 

exceptional uncertainty. 

2.		 	The	Financial	and	Fiscal	Commission’s	economic	outlook	based	on	a	dynamic	computable	general	equilibrium	model	

suggests that the world economic crisis produces a huge drop in gdp (figure 1). for both assumptions made about the 

severity of the scenario (mild and severe), gdp falls in 2008 and 2009 and then increases again, but it does not return 

to its business as usual (Bau) value even by 2015. in other words, without positive shocks or deliberate and successful 

interventions that stimulate the economy and counteract the negative impact of the world economic crisis, gdp will not 

recover to what it would have been in the absence of the crisis, that is, the Bau scenario.

3.   government is somewhat more optimistic regarding south africa’s gdp growth performance, in the near future. national 
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treasury forecasts that gdp will contract by 1.9% in 2009, where after growth will start to pick up. growth of 1.5% was 

forecast for 2010 rising to 3.2% by 2012 in the most recent issue of the Medium term Budget policy statement (MtBps) 

(national treasury, 2009). the 2010 Budget is even more optimistic. Based on the belief of a pick up in growth in China, 

government’s growth expectation for 2010 is now 2.3 per cent, rising to 3.6 per cent by 2012.

1
Figure 1: Evolution of Real GdP in BAu, Moderate and Severe scenarios
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4.   in these circumstances, the role of the fiscal framework is to ensure fiscal policy has the flexibility to respond appropri-

ately, while remaining committed to clear, transparent long term goals. so, to achieve its objectives as outlined in the 

2010 Budget, the government will depart temporarily from the fiscal rules until the global shocks have worked their way 

through the economy in full. 

5.   irrespective of minor differences in projections between the financial and fiscal Commission and government, it is 

clear that south africa entered into an economic downturn, with the first recession in over 17 years. this will no doubt 

have persistent implications for the public finances. to this end, government has developed a substantial fiscal stimulus 

package, supported by a big budget deficit.

6.   the Commission agrees with this fiscal policy stance at this point in time. however, an important issue is really not in 

the minor differences between our projections but rather on whether the country should explicitly adopt a temporary 

operating rule such as measures to improve cyclically adjusted current budget each year once the economy emerges 

from the downturn so that it reaches balance and debt is falling as a proportion of gdp once the global shocks have 

worked their way through the economy in full. this could be formalised in some kind of a fiscal pact or stability pact. for 

instance the pact will clearly establish the level of debt and what the debt can or cannot finance, possibly guarantee a 

move towards current budget surplus (cyclically adjusted). the point is that a successive government will have to agree 

to cutting debt incurred by the previous government.

7.   the Commission has raised already in its response on the division of revenue Bill the point that national government’s 

net loan debt is to rise sharply from r526 billion at end-2008-09 to r1,3-trillion in 2012-13. Consolidated government debt 

service costs are to rise from 2,4 percent of gdp, or r57,6 billion, in 2009-10 to 3,2 percent, or r104 billion, in 2012-13 

(see Business day of 19 february 2010). the public sector wage bill had almost doubled in five years. this scenario might 
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imply that significant amounts of the debt service cost increases are driven by personnel expenditure. if this is indeed the 

case, it would be important that this development is reversed as soon as possible. Large amounts of debt that are driven 

by current consumption as opposed to the financing of capital assets are known to ultimately compromise economic 

growth and destabilise the domestic financial system. setting clearly fiscal rules pertaining to debt in a crisis would be 

one way of increasing transparency in this way.

4.   Revenue estimates and tax proposals

1.   with a recession of the magnitude just witnessed, government revenue is expected to decrease. indeed, based on the 

modelling exercise of the financial and fiscal Commission mentioned above, direct taxes are decreasing (as a share 

of households and firm income), and taxes on products are also decreasing for most sectors (due to the decreases in 

imports and production). half of government income comes from direct taxes and around a third from indirect taxes on 

products. thus one can expect its revenue to decrease. figure 2 represents the variations of the share of government 

income in gdp as well as government savings as a percentage of gdp for the Bau anticipated by the Commission.

2
Figure 2: Revenue/GdP and Savings /GdP for government2 
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2  We compute here, Government income / Gross Domestic Product (YG/GDP) as well as Government Savings/ Gross Domestic Product (SG/GDP). BAU refers 

to the situation without crisis (Business As Usual), MOD and SEV respectively refer to Moderate scenario and severe scenario.

2.   the 2010 revenue estimates tabled by government does acknowledge these depressive effects of the recession on 

government revenue. the expectation now is that government will raise r69 billion less in tax this year than was budgeted 

for. Consolidated revenue will be r658 billion in 2009/10, which is r32 billion less than in the past fiscal year with the drop 

coming from value-added tax (r22 billion less than the february budget estimate and 5.1 per cent lower than last year), 

Corporate income tax (r30 billion less than expected, and over 20 per cent less than the amount we collected in 2008/09), 

Customs duties (r6 billion below target) and personal income tax (r4 billion lower and secondary tax on companies r3 

billion less). the Commission did raise this possibility of larger than anticipated revenue shortfalls in its commentary on 

the 2009 MtBps that it tabled to parliament in october 2009. the Commission is happy that government has revised 

its projections downward in line with its 2009 predictions and this downward revision brings in more credibility to the 

forecasts.
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3.		 	A	 related	question	 that	 the	Commission	 feels	 the	Standing	and	Select	Committees	on	Finance	should	be	concerned	

about is the evolution of the budget deficit. according to our modelling scenarios up to 2015 and shown in figure 2, in the 

absence of a globally induced recession the government income/gdp would have stayed around 28 percent. this share 

increases in the recession scenarios due to the huge drop of gdp. Because our modelling assumptions were based on 

the actual revealed policy stance of government that transfers national government makes to other agents are fixed, this 

leads to a sharp decrease in its savings (government’s expenditure is fixed as well as transfers) or more conventionally an 

increase in the budget deficit presently observed. as shown in figure 2 therefore, savings over gdp of about 3 percent 

of gdp in 2008 would have decreased to reach a small surplus in 2015 had there been no shock. note that in the base 

year,	the	deficit	is	quite	low,	and	then	there	is	a	decrease	in	prices	in	the	absence	of	a	globally	induced	recession	(as	the	

economy is becoming more and more efficient through time). it is therefore easy to understand why government savings 

become positive in the long run. with the crisis of course, we do not observe the same pattern in the short run. indeed, 

the deficit reaches 15 percent of gdp in 2008 and 2009 in the severe scenario, and around 5 percent for the moderate 

scenario. in the long run, the situation improves somewhat, but remains far below what it would have been had there 

been no global crisis.

  a.   with sub-national government spending slower to decelerate than revenue, deficits at all levels of government 

are expected to widen significantly. fiscal policy responses to the dilemma of deficit financing include raising tax 

revenue, reducing or deferring expenditure and improving spending efficiencies.

  b.   in order to stabilize their fiscal environment, the sub-national governments will need to undertake a combination of 

these three responses over the coming three years.

4.   government’s preferred method of achieving higher revenues spelt out in the 2010 Budget is through base broadening, 

closing loopholes and improving tax compliance. additional environmental taxes will be explored both to raise more 

revenue and to meet environmental objectives. government could also raise taxes in the future to fund public spending 

commitments. government therefore makes the following revenue proposals:

	 	 •	 	 	Personal	Income	Tax	relief	for	individuals	valued	at	R6.5	billion

	 	 •	 	 Discontinuation	of	the	SITE	system

	 	 •	 	 Increase	in	fuel	taxes	of	25.5	cents	per	litre

	 	 •	 	 A	carbon	emissions	tax	on	new	vehicles

	 	 •	 	 	An	increase	in	taxation	on	smoking	(a	packet	of	20	cigarettes	will	cost	R1.24	more)

	 	 •	 	 	An	increase	in	taxation	on	alcohol	consumption	(a	750ml	bottle	of	wine	will	cost	R0.12	more,	a	750ml	bottle	of	spirits	

will cost r2.22 more while a can of beer will cost r0.07 more).

5.   the Commission views these proposed measures as credible given the environment in which the country finds itself in. 

it is sensible to postpone any major tax reform exercise to a period when the economic environment is stable. the rest 

of the Commission’s commentary on the tax proposals are as follows:

  a.   tax relief on individuals – in times of low economic activity, tax cuts are an important fiscal instrument to curb the 

impacts of a recession and increase aggregate demand in an economy. with consumption spending being one of the 

economic variables most impacted by the recession, increasing an individual or household’s disposable income will 

ensure increased buying power and demand in the economy. an important attractive feature of the proposal is that 

most of the tax relief is provided to lower income tax payers, thereby enhancing the progressivity of the tax regime. 



 |  FFC - Annual Report 2009/1066

having said that, there is an issue of bracket creep that has not been explicitly explained in the received documen-

tation. the Commission would wish to advise the Committees to seek clarification on whether bracket creep due to 

inflation	may	actually	outweigh	the	direct	effects	of	the	relief	offered.	Some	estimates	quoted	in	a	recent	issue	of	

the star newspaper claim that this phenomenon may have the effect of increasing individuals’ tax bill by r22 billion 

compared to the r6.5 billion relief that was granted. this would reverse the intended effects of the tax relief policy. 

More generally, government needs to explain explicitly how the issue of bracket creep has been attended to if at all.

  b.   fuel levy increase – the proposal is to raise fuel taxes by 25.5 cents per litre. in the Commission’s previous work on 

fuel taxes published in the south african Journal of economic and Management sciences recently, an assessment 

of the economic effects of a hypothetical fuel levy increase was explored. the welfare effects of increasing the 

fuel	levy	by	10	per	cent	are	negative	but	very	small.	Similarly,	the	marginal	excess	burdens	for	efficiency	and	equity	

(poverty)	are	quite	low,	suggesting	much	smaller	impacts	of	the	intervention	on	both	economic	activity	and	equity.	

furthermore, a fiscal policy reform that raises fuel levy by 10 per cent is progressive as it has stronger negative 

effects on higher income households than the lower income households. on the basis of this, it is the Commission’s 

view that the proposed measure is reasonable. however, continued increases in the fuel levy need to be heeded 

with caution, given the large increases in the tax in last year’s budget as well as south africa’s high dependence on 

oil.

  c.   ‘sin’ taxes – the proposal to raise revenue through increasing sin taxes should generally be supported as sin taxes 

are an important revenue source for national government and an instrument of improving social living standards and 

curb the negative social impacts of alcohol and cigarette abuse. however, government needs to review the potency 

of the tax instrument to achieve the latter goal. alcohol and cigarettes are addictive goods. government should 

not run the risk of over increasing taxes on these goods to such an extent that it impacts negatively on household 

expenditure and promote instances where individuals spend most of their disposable incomes on these goods 

due to addiction. there would thus be negative social returns to the tax as household expenditure on food and 

other necessities are sacrificed. a further more subtle issue is the differential treatment of the alcoholic beverages 

that can have distortionary effects on the system and the fiscal framework needs to clarify that. in particular the 

Committees	may	wish	to	request	further	explanation	of	why	the	alcoholic	beverages	are	treated	differently	when	

the idea is to discourage this harmful consumption? is it the policy to encourage wine consumption at the expense 

of spirits and beers for example? or put more forcefully is it government policy to prefer jobs in wine industries over 

those generated in beer and whisky industries/breweries? the simple point is that differential taxation can have 

distortionary effects that need to be anticipated and explained clearly to the public.

  d.   Carbon dioxide tax on new vehicles – the proposed carbon dioxide emissions tax on new vehicles is welcome as it 

is meant to alter behaviour of individuals towards cutting down of environmentally damaging expenditures. 

  e.   Mineral royalties - the introduction of mining royalties, which is considered a non tax revenue source, was postponed 

by a year due to the recession to lessen the burden on the mining sector. the royalty is to be imposed on disposal 

of or exported minerals on 1 March 2010. the Commission feels that this could be too soon for the imposition of 

the royalty given the fact that the mining sector and domestic imports were severely impacted on by the global 

recession and the fall in commodity prices. 

  f.   further research on broader environmental tax reforms – the Commission welcomes the stance of further research 

on a broader environmental tax reform. the Commission feels that introducing broad sweeping environmental taxes 

in the midst or aftermath of a recession would have sent wrong signals that government’s intentions are revenue 

raising when in fact the idea is to encourage desirable behavioural change. the Commission is also carrying out 

work on environmental fiscal reform for the next research cycle. 

  g.   Local Business tax as replacement for rsC Levy: the Commission is aware that saLga has been doing some work 
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on this as a potential revenue source and will be making it’s recommendations in terms of the Municipal fiscal 

powers and functions act provisions

6.   while the Commission agrees with this broad stance of tax policy proposed by government, we think the bigger and 

more	important	question	that	needs	to	be	clarified	is	the	need	for	there	to	be	consistency	with	long-run	fiscal	objectives:	

spending increases and tax cuts in the face of a recession lead to budget deficits in the short term as we have seen. 

Because government debt tends to “crowd out” capital, higher deficits, if persistent, slow economic growth in the long 

term. given the large projected fiscal imbalance in the medium and long run under the Commission’s two scenarios 

above, new fiscal actions will need to be spelt out that best meet the country’s long-run fiscal needs if our present 

actions are to avoid enlarging the long term fiscal gap. to achieve that goal, near-term increases in government spending 

or reductions in taxes would need to be followed by offsetting reductions in spending (which have not been spelt out and 

seems unlikely given political pressures not to do so) or increases in taxes after the economy recovers (which again have 

not been spelt out except that government reserves the right to increase taxes in the future).

7.   a related and perhaps more important point pertains to the fiscal risk perceived or real related to personnel expenditure 

and transfers to households. these have increased considerably in recent years (7 percent and 8 percent in real terms 

respectively from 2005/06 – 2008/09). over the next few years, that is, 2009/10 – 2012/13 growths in these items is 

expected to decline to approximately 1.5 percent for personnel costs and approximately 3 percent for transfers to 

households in real terms in order to account for increased debt payments, which is predicted to increase by approximate-

ly 15 percent in real terms. there are concerns over these predictions as personnel expenditure and social grants are 

fiscally rigid expenditure items. with increased volatility on the revenue collection side, this could exacerbate perceptions 

of increased fiscal risk, which could also impact on the country’s credit rating. government has already taken some hard 

choices (e.g. the coverage of social grants versus the level of entitlement), but will have to also balance expansion of the 

public service including addressing the high vacancy rates with wage increase expectations.
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5.   Further issues on fiscal frameworks, transparency and contingent liabilities

1.   the exceptional uncertainty at present underlines the importance of providing the public with key information on the 

fiscal position. underlying assumptions should be set out in detail and subjected to audit, in particular those that make up 

for	the	fiscal	forecast.	This	will	enhance	further	the	credibility	of	revenue	forecasts	used	for	equitable	distribution	among	

the three spheres of government.

2.   in line with international best practice it may be important to explore the establishment of an independent office along 

the lines suggested by the Commission in its submission on the division of revenue Bill for 2007. 

3.   the fiscal situation in south africa, especially for provincial and local governments, is very weak. stimulus money from the 

national fiscus, prevented massive public employee layoffs this year, but given the current state of revenue projections 

sketched	above,	it	is	highly	questionable	whether	additional	funds	will	be	forthcoming	soon.	Given	the	slow	state	of	the	

economic recovery and the inherent lag in provincial and local government tax revenue growth, many provinces and local 

governments will eventually be forced to enact large cuts in public spending. unfortunately, public education and health 

are likely to be hit very hard. it is here that the Commission wishes to  ensure that cuts will be limited to non-core areas, 

and done in a reasonable way so that basic service delivery is not compromised, nor the progressive realisation of socio-

economic rights.

4.   Looking at the non financial sector public enterprises, we note that there is increased funding for parastatals. the public 

sector	borrowing	requirement	rises	cumulatively	over	the	three	years	by	R331	billion	compared	with	what	was	budgeted	

for	 in	 February	 or	 a	 large	 R1.11	 trillion	 over	 the	 next	 four	 years.	 	 The	 substantially	 bigger	 borrowing	 requirement	 is	

partly linked to large infrastructure investment projects that would be key for long term growth and well being of future 

generations. however, the Commission is increasingly concerned about contingent liabilities associated with increased 

guarantees to parastatals as well as increased levels of concessionary finance in the industrial policy strategy. these 

contingent liabilities might become an actual liability and a loss and depend on something in the future, which may be 

beyond government’s control. these should therefore be monitored carefully.

5.   finally and related to this, the recapitalisation of the development Bank of southern africa (dBsa) (allowing an increase 

in its callable capital) is a significant development as it constitutes the first recapitalisation in over a decade). this raises 

significant issues in terms of the current focus on dBsa lending (largely on highly creditworthy municipalities). the issue 

is whether it has exhausted its current lending capacity and the impacts of the recapitalisation on the overall debt market. 

This	may	have	 the	unintended	consequence	of	squeezing	out	private	 lenders	or	actually	growing	 the	size	of	 lending	

to municipalities. the Commission would wish to point out these risks involved, as well as the need for clear policy 

objectives to be transmitted to the dBsa.
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3  The Appropriation Bill is piece of legislation that serves to appropriate money from the National Revenue Fund for the requirements of the national 

government in order to provide for subordinate matters incidental thereto.  

5.7   Commission’s REsPonsE To THE 2010 APPRoPRiATion Bill

 

1.  Introduction

the submission on the appropriation Bill3 is made in terms of sect 4 (4) 2 of the Money Bill amendment procedure and related 

matters	act	of	2009.	The	section	requires	the	Committee	to	consider	any	recommendations	of	the	Commission.

for the 2010 Budget process the Commission has already made submissions on the division of revenue in terms of the igfr 

act and on the fiscal framework in terms of the Money Bills amendment procedure and related Matters act.

2.  Commission’s Approach to this Submission

the approach followed in analyzing and making comment on the appropriation Bill includes;

-   an analysis of the table of priorities contained in the division of revenue Bill 2010 (table w1.1)

-   Last year and current expenditure by data as contained in the; 

	 	 •	 	 Estimates	of	National	Expenditure	2010	and	

	 	 •	 	 Provincial	Budget	and	Expenditure	Review	2009.

all figures that are used in the analysis are expressed in real terms or stripped off inflation.

an assumption made in tracking the funding of priorities within government program was that the appropriation Bill publishes 

only a single year budget allocation for all votes whilst the state incorporates the agreed priorities over a three year Medium 

term expenditure framework. it can be expected that although the priorities are identified, they can not necessarily be 

expected to be fully funded in the first year from additional funding.

3.   national (Executive’s) priorities versus the State’s (MTEF) Funding.

in this year’s division of revenue Bill, government identified top five policy priorities for the 2010/11 financial year namely;

1.  Job creation and infrastructure;

2.  education and skills development;

3.  health care;

4.  rural development;

5.  Justice, crime prevention and policing.

the division of revenue bill 2010 also includes the funding for human settlement and Local government as budget priorities.

table 1, provides a clear indication which and by how much the national executive’s priorities are funded. 

a sectoral categorization of the budget priority table indicates that a total additional r112 billion was added to the fiscus 

this year as per table w1.1 of the dor Bill 2010. at a national executive level five key priorities were identified, and these are 

encapsulated by the state into its plan over the Medium term expenditure framework (Mtef). the executive will need to 
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recognise that because the budget was made under a recessionary environment most of the funding towards the identified 

priorities is deferred towards the latter two years of the Mtef. 

the funded priorities that would help track consistency between the executive’s priorities and state funding are:

3.1    Improvement in Education and Skills development

The	 quality	 of	 educational	 spending	 can	 only	 be	 judged	 in	 terms	 of	 learner	 performance.	 Short-term	 funding	 inputs	 are	

directed at programmes such as the dinaledi schools, increased funding to higher education subsidies, improvement of 

conditions of service for educators and recapitalisation of further education and training colleges. these programmes 

receive an additional r14.1 billion. the Commission views this as a fulfilment of the executive mandate by the state, and an 

investment in human capital. 

3.2   Enhancing the quality of Health Care

The	health	sector	receives	R12.4	billion,	to	mainly	maintain	a	frontline	attack	on	HIV	and	Aids	and	ensure	improved	quality	of	

service through better payment to health workers and infrastructure funding to hospitals. 

3.3  Fight against Crime and Corruption

an amount of r4.8 billion is added by the state to the sector Justice, crime prevention and policing. this amount is earmarked 

for additional policing personnel, osd for correctional service workers, and a review of defence force’s remuneration. also 

included is the modernization of landward defence; and the implementation of the Children’s, Child Justice and sexual 

offences acts.

3.4  Job creation, Infrastructure and Environment 

an amount of r16.3 billion or 14 percent is added to the fiscus in the area of Job creation, infrastructure and environment as a 

direct response to employment creation priority.   Job creation and infrastructure is reflected through conditional grants and 

public utility subsidies designed to provide regional or municipal water, electricity, road and sanitation infrastructure, public 

transport	and	national	fuel	pipelines,	by	means	of	labour-intensive	techniques.	

also included are subsidies to the clothing and textile and automotive industries to preserve jobs. an inclusion in the clauses 

of the appropriation Bill 2010 allows for subsidies to non-state entities such as private companies.

3.5   Rolling out a Comprehensive Rural development Strategy

an amount of r2.4 billion is added to the fiscus to assist with the rural development programme alongside the funding for the 

Land Bank to recapitalise its finances.

however in this case the commission has expressed its concern that due to lack of a cluster coordination of this priority, it 

might be difficult to attain the desired goal for this priority.
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R million 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13  Total 

Provincial equitable share  6,400  7,000  7,600  21,000 

includes general adjustment and wage increases    

Compensation of employee adjustments  3,600  4,000  4,400  12,000 

Social grants  1,785  3,598  6,809  12,192 

Education and skills development    

workbooks  750  930  1,000  2,680 

dinaledi schools  –  70  100  170 

higher education subsidies  –  300  700  1,000 

further education and training colleges grant  400  430  450  1,280 

occupation-specific dispensation for educators  3,000  3,000  3,000  9,000 

Health care    

Comprehensive hiv and aids grant  1,700  2,800  3,900  8,400 

hospital revitalisation grant  140  –  –  140 

occupation-specific dispensation for health professionals  1,281  1,302  1,324  3,907 

Justice, crime prevention and policing    

additional policing personnel  200  230  250  680 

Military skills development system  50  70  100  220 

new sa national defence force remuneration system  600  730  850  2,180 

implementation of Children’s act, Child Justice act and  
sexual offences and related Matters act 

 30  60  90  180 

Landward defence modernisation  –  100  500  600 

occupation-specific dispensation for correctional  
services workers

 300  300  300  900 

Rural development  260  300  300  860 

Land Bank recapitalisation  750  750  –  1,500 

Job creation, infrastructure and environment

expanded public works programme incentive  567  800  1,100  2,467 

Clothing and textile production incentive  400  600  750  1,750 

automotive production and development programme  450  600  700  1,750 

regional bulk infrastructure  54  200  300  554 

Municipal infrastructure grant  –  –  2,500  2,500 

public transport, roads and rail infrastructure  468  1,052  1,329  2,849 

transnet fuel pipeline  1,500  1,500  1,500  4,500 

Human settlements and local government    

rural households infrastructure grant  100  350  750  1,200 

human settlements development grant  –  –  1,000  1,000 

Local	government	equitable	share  900  2,050  3,750  6,700 

Other adjustments  2,145  2,134  3,793  8,072 

Total  27,831  35,256  49,144  112,231 

Table 1: 2010 Budget priorities – additional MTEF allocations, 2010/11 – 2012/13

Source: Division of Revenue Bill 2010.
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according to table 2, the proportion of the national revenue fund to be used in government’s top five priorities is estimated 

to be 49 percent in 2009/10, 48 per cent  2010/11, 47 per cent in 2011/12 before slowing down to 45.2 per cent  the outer year 

2012/13. this implies that the share of revenue for the priority areas declines slightly over the 2010 Mtef, despite growth 

in the share of other items. one of these is the debt servicing cost, which rise from 10.per cent in 2009/10 to 13 per cent in 

2012/13.

the component other, which can be classified as  the “non-prioritized” components of spending, decline slightly to 19 per 

cent in 2011/12 from 20 per cent in 2009/10 before recovering to 21 per cent  in 2012/13. such a fluctuation could be set aside 

to create fiscal space for policy and hence budget reprioritization in the outer years of the 2010 Mtef.

the proportion of national revenue budgeted for priority job creation and infrastructure programmes remains stable around 

6 per cent over the Mtef. that for education and skills development priorities though falls from 21.9 percent to 20.3 per cent 

over the medium-term.

despite a relative decline in the health sector from 9.4 per cent to 8.2 per cent, the hiv-aids sub programme receives a 

significant boost which might mask the depreciation of this programme over the medium-term.

the share devoted to rural development indicates a steady decline over both the short-term and the medium-term. there is 

an evident decline from 1.3 percent to 1.0 per cent between 2009/10 and 2012/13.

the proportion of national revenue devoted to the justice, crime prevention and policing priority also steadily declines from 

10.3 per cent to 9.1. per cent over the Mtef.

however, contrary to the above, budgets for human settlements and local government increase from 6.4 per cent in 2009/10 

to 7.1 per cent in 2011/12 before slightly declining to 6.9 per cent in outer year of the Mtef. 

Table 2:  The proportional shares of priorities within the Budget

Percentage Contribution: Proportion on National 
Revenue Fund

Top Priorities

Estimates of National Expenditure 2010 or Provincial 
Budget and Expenditure Review 2009

 
2009/10 to 

2010/11
2010/11 to 

2011/12
2011/12 to 

2012/13
2009/10 to 

2012/13

Job creation, infrastructure and environment 5.79% 5.97% 6.08% 5.96%

education and skills development 21.89% 21.63% 21.00% 20.32%

health care 9.41% 9.45% 9.14% 8.83%

rural development 1.30% 1.17% 1.21% 1.03%

Justice, crime prevention and policing 10.35% 10.16% 9.66% 9.11%

Human settlements and local government 6.44% 7.04% 7.14% 6.92%

total - top 5 policy priorities 49% 48% 47% 45%

total - Budget priorities 70% 70% 69% 66%

debt servicing Costs 10% 11% 12% 13%

other 20% 19% 19% 21%

4.  Analysis of the Funded Priorities
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national revenue is projected to grow at 5.8 per cent over the 2010 Mtef. this is against that for the debt servicing costs, 

which rises by an average 14.7 per cent over the medium-term (Budget review-2010). the debt service cost however slows in 

growth from 17 percent in 2009/10 to 11 per cent in 2011/12 before resurging to 15 per cent in 2012/13.

the impact of this growth in debt results in a relatively low growth spending of  4.7 per cent over the short- and medium-term.

the human settlements and local government priority experience a healthy 15.8 per cent growth in the 2009/10 financial year 

but sharply declines to a minimum 2.7 per cent in 2011/12 before recovering to 8.3 per cent in the outer year of the Mtef. this 

can be expected due to the nature of infrastructure related projects that are funded under this portfolio.

Job creation and infrastructure displays the second highest growing priority at an average of 6.8 percent over the Mtef, an 

amount higher the average.

education and skills development priority grow at below average rate of 4.6% between 2009/10 and 2010/11 and 3.2 per cent 

over the medium-term. this result is heavily influenced by budgeted wage restraint on the personnel budgets. Maths and 

science teaching is consistently emphasized over the medium-term but fet college grants decline in the outer years.

health spending receives above average growth in the short-term (6.4 per cent) but real declines in the hospital revitalization 

grant in the outer years. the hiv-aids grant grows strongly over the medium-term.

real average annual growth for justice, crime prevention and policing is slow at 1.3 per cent over the medium-term, while that 

for poverty-reducing social grants grow at a below average rate of 3.3 per cent over the medium-term.

5. Commission’s General Observations on the Bill

the appropriations bill is fairly thin on content. the bill should be viewed as an evolving document that will most certainly be 

strong both in terms of the clause contained and attached schedules.

•	 	 	Except	for	the	first	clause,	clause	2,	the	commission	finds	the	rest	of	the	clauses	as	only	providing	a	guide	as	to	what	the	

state needs to do and these may be covered or are already covered by other pieces of legislation like the pfMa.

the state can improve on the way it presents the attached schedule of budget vote and main divisions in the future.

Table 3: Trends in funded priorities over the MTEF

Growth Trends

Top Priorities

Estimates of National Expenditure 2010 or Provincial 
Budget and Expenditure Review 2009

 
2009/10 to 

2010/11
2010/11 to 

2011/12
2011/12 to 

2012/13
2009/10 to 

2012/13

Job creation, infrastructure and environment 9.19% 7.42% 3.78% 6.77%

education and skills development 4.60% 2.40% 2.45% 3.15%

health care 6.37% 1.98% 2.34% 3.54%

rural development -4.42% 9.03% -9.33% -1.87%

Justice, crime prevention and policing 4.01% 0.26% -0.19% 1.34%

Human settlements and local government 15.80% 6.89% 2.71% 8.33%

total - top 5 policy priorities 5% 3% 2% 3%

total - Budget priorities 6% 3% 2% 4%

debt servicing Costs 17% 17% 11% 15%

other 0% 7% 17% 8%
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•	 	 	It	is	challenging	to	determine	whether	the	responsible	department	really	did	incorporate	the	funded	priorities	into	the	

respective votes and main division unless the bill provides further detail as to whether these priorities are currently 

funded and how the votes and main divisions express these priorities. for this reason, the Commission therefore limits its 

comment to the relationship it can draw between the priorities and the attached funding and which sphere is to execute 

the implementation of such priorities.

6. Conclusion

the commission concedes that the appropriations for 2010/11 address government’s top priorities and therefore supports 

the passing of the 2010 appropriation Bill as tabled.  
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5.8   ADDiTionAl 2009/2010 Commission sUBmissions 
 

during the course of the year under review, the Commission also made the following submissions:

5.5.1  funding of traditional Leadership government act, 2003: Limpopo treasury april 2009

5.5.2  alternative intergovernmental fiscal relations system in south africa: Cogta august 2009

5.5.3  Local government policy recommendations: saLga executive Management august 2009

5.5.4  financial Management of gauteng provincial Legislature Bill: gauteng Legislature august 2009

5.5.5  eighteenth Constitution amendment Bill: department of Justice and Constitutional development Bill september 2009

5.5.6  strategic planning: standing Committee on appropriations september 2009

5.5.7  possible Continuation and/or Lapsing of Municipal taxes (other than property rates) that existed prior to the Municipal 

fiscal powers and functions act: department of finance february 2010

5.5.8  seventeenth Constitution amendment Bill: department of Justice and Constitutional development March 2010Comment 

on the Money Bills amendment procedures and related Matters Bill 2008

5.5.9	 	Comment	 on	 the	National	 Policy	 for	 an	 Equitable	 Provision	 of	 an	 Enabling	 School	 Physical	 Teaching	 and	 Learning	

environment notice no. 1438 gazette no. 31616 dated 21 november 2008.
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cHApter 6

6.1   APPRovAl oF THE AnnUAl FinAnCiAl sTATEmEnTs
 

the annual financial statements which appear on pages 83 to 99 have been approved and authorised for issue on date of 

signature by the Commission and is signed on its behalf by:

 

dr Bethuel  setai      

accounting officer  

31 May 2010

ANNUAL FiNANCiAL STATEMENT 
FOr ThE YEAr ENdEd 31 MArCh 2010
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6.2   REPoRT oF THE ACCoUnTing oFFiCER FoR THE FinAnCiAl YEAR
EnDED 31 mARCH 2010 

report by the accounting officer to the parliament of the republic of south africa. 

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

the Commission has been an integral part of the effort to improve financial accountability and implement prudent financial 

management	as	required	by	the	Public	Management	Act.	This	has	been	evidenced	by	consistent	unqualified	audits.	

this however has been achieved at a price. the ongoing financial crises and the demands that have been placed on the 

Commission by the implementation of the Money Bills amendment procedures and related Matters act of have placed an 

ever increasing burden on the Commission’s resources and its ability to deliver fully on its mandate.

2. Services rendered by the department

 not applicable. 

3. Trading activities

not applicable.

4. Trading entities

not applicable. 

5. Public entities

not applicable.

6. Public/private partnerships

not applicable. 

7. Risk management and fraud prevention

the Commission has developed and implemented a comprehensive risk Management framework.

8.  discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued 

not applicable.

9. new/proposed new activities

the Commission plans to embark on a comprehensive stakeholder management programme. 

10. Events after the accounting date

none.

11. Other

none.

Approval

 

dr Bethuel setai  

Chairperson/Chief executive  

31 July 2010
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6.3   REPoRT oF THE AUDiToR-gEnERAl To PARliAmEnT on THE 
FinAnCiAl sTATEmEnTs oF THE FinAnCiAl AnD FisCAl 
Commission FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010 

report on the finanCiaL stateMents

Introduction

1.   i have audited the accompanying financial statements of the financial and fiscal Commission, which comprise the 

statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in 

net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information, as set out on pages 83 to 99.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2.   the accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with south african standards of generally recognised accounting practice (sa standards of grap) and in the manner 

required	by	the	Public	Finance	Management	Act	of	South	Africa,	1999	(Act	No.	1	of	1999)	 	 (PFMA).	This	responsibility	

includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 

appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.		 	As	required	by	section	188	of	the	Constitution	of	South	Africa,	section	4	of	the	Public	Audit	Act	of	South	Africa,	2004	(Act	

no. 25 of 2004) (paa) and section 25 of the financial and fiscal Commission act of south africa, 1997 (act no. 99 of 1997) 

(ffC act), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

4.   i conducted my audit in accordance with international standards on auditing and general notice 1570 of 2009 issued in 

Government	Gazette	No.	32758	of	27	November	2009.		Those	standards	require	that	I	comply	with	ethical	requirements	

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 

material misstatement.

5.   an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements.  the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  in making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 

the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

6.   i believe that the audit evidence i have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

7.   in my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the financial 

and fiscal Commission as at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 

accordance	with	SA	Standards	of	GRAP	and	in	the	manner	required	by	the	PFMA.

Emphasis of matters

i draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters:
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Restatement of corresponding figures

8.   as disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2009 have been restated as 

a result of an error discovered during 31 March 2010 in the financial statements of the Commission at, and for the year 

ended, 31 March 2009.

Fruitless and wasteful and irregular expenditure 

9.   as disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of r147 955 was incurred, as result 

of interest and penalties being levied for the late submission of eMp201 returns and late payments to the south african 

revenue service.

10.   as disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of r53 196 was incurred, as a result of an 

incorrectly authorised long-term service bonus payment  made by the Commission.

report on other LegaL and reguLatory requireMents 

11.  in terms of the paa and general notice 1570 of 2009, issued in government gazette no. 32758 of 27 november 2009, 

i include below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with the pfMa, the ffC act, the 

treasury regulations of 2005 (tr) and financial management (internal control).

Findings

Predetermined objectives

12. no matters to report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and Treasury Regulations of 2005 (TR)

non adherence to legislation

13.	 	Contrary	to	the	requirements	of	section	38(1)(e)	of	the	PFMA,	the	Commission	did	not	comply	with	tax	legislation,	as	they	

did not submit the eMp201 returns and effect payments to the south african revenue service by the prescribed due 

dates. 

14.	 	Contrary	to	the	requirements	of	the	National	Treasury	Practice	Note	No.8	of	2007/2008	and	section	38(1)	(a)(iii)	of	the	

pfMa, the accounting officer did not always obtain a valid tax clearance certificate from suppliers.

15.	 	Contrary	 to	 the	requirements	of	 the	National	Treasury	Practice	Note	No.8	of	2007/2008	and	section	38(1)(a)(iii)	of	 the	

PFMA,	the	accounting	officer	did	not	compile	a	list	of	prospective	suppliers	to	be	used	for	their	procurement	require-

ments.

16.	 	Contrary	 to	 the	 requirements	of	TR	16A8.2	and	section	38(1)(a)(iii)	of	 the	PFMA,	 the	officials	 involved	 in	supply	chain	

management, did not adopt the national treasury’s Code of Conduct.

Financial and Fiscal Commission Act of South Africa, 1997 (Act No. 99 of 1997) (FFC Act)

non adherence to legislation

17.	 	Contrary	to	the	requirements	of	section	9(1)	of	the	FFC	Act,	the	Commission	did	not	obtain	approval	from	the	President’s	

office prior to paying a long-term service bonus to a Commissioner. 
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internaL ControL 

18.   i considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predetermined objectives 

and compliance with the pfMa, the ffC act and the tr, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of internal control. the matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies identified during the audit.

Leadership

Oversight responsibility over reporting

19.  the financial and fiscal Commission did not have sufficient monitoring controls to ensure adherence to the operational 

policies and procedures and as a result, instances of non-compliance with the pfMa, tr and the ffC act were noted as 

detailed under the report on compliance with laws and regulations section of this report.

pretoria

30 July 2010
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6.4   REPoRT oF THE AUDiT CommiTTEE FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010
 

Introduction

we are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 in terms of the public finance Management 

act, 1 of 1999 section 38(1)a, (4)d and 77, and treasury regulations 3.1.11.

Membership and attendance

the audit Committee consists of the members listed below.  all the audit Committee members are independent, which is 

in line with the industry corporate governance practice.  during the year under review, the audit Committee held four (4) 

meetings as per the approved terms of reference.

 

Audit Committee Responsibility

the audit Committee confirms that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1) (a) of the public finance 

Management act (pfMa) and treasury regulations 3.1.13.

the audit Committee has regulated its affairs in compliance with its approved charter and has discharged all its responsibili-

ties as contained therein.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the audit Committee is informed by the reports submitted 

by internal audit and management, who are responsible for the development and maintenance of the internal control system.

the system of control is design to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and 

working	capital	are	efficiently	managed.		In	line	with	the	PFMA	and	the	King	II	report	on	Corporate	Governance	requirements,	

internal audit provides the audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and 

effective.  this is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and 

suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.

from the various reports of the internal auditors, the audit report on the annual financial statements together with the 

management report of the auditor-general, it was noted that, except for the issues reported on by the auditor-general, no 

other significant or material non compliance with prescribed policies and procedures have been revealed.  accordingly we 

can report that the system of internal control for the period under review was efficient and effective.

the internal control environment has been continuously improving as evidenced by the willingness to address the control 

weaknesses identified by the auditors.

Risk Management 

the audit Committee has an oversight responsibility over ffC internal risk management processes.  in the year under review 

the	Committee	monitored	the	implementation	of	Risk	Management	and	reviewed	progress	quarterly.

Review	and	assessments	of	FFC	strategic	risk	will	continue	to	be	done	on	a	quarterly	basis	by	the	Audit	Committee.

Name Attended

Jerry sithole 4

tania ajam 3

Mkuseli Bashe 14

Martin kuscus 15

4  Appointed in January 2010

5  Retired 30 June 2009
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the quality of Management and Monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the pfMa

The	Audit	Committee	is	satisfied	with	the	content	and	quality	of	monthly	and	quarterly	reports	prepared	and	issued	by	the	

management of the ffC during the year under review.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

the audit Committee has:

•	 	 	Reviewed	and	discussed	the	audited	annual	financial	statements	to	be	included	in	the	annual	report,	with	the	Auditor-

general and the management;

•	 	 	Reviewed	the	Auditor-General’s	management	report	and	management’s	response	thereto;	and

•	 	 	Reviewed	significant	adjustments	resulting	from	the	audit.

the audit Committee concurs and accepts the auditor-general’s conclusions on the annual financial statements, and is of the 

opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the auditor-general.

Jerry sithole  

Chairperson of audit Committee

31 July 2010
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6.5  sTATEmEnT oF FinAnCiAl PosiTion As AT 31 mARCH 2010

    

Notes 2010
R

2009
R

ASSETS

Non-current assets                   919,104             1,474,134 

Property,	Plant	and	Equipment 2                   867,060              1,444,901 

intangible assets 3                     52,044                   29,233 

Current assets                   182,426                705,543 

trade and other receivables 4                     52,335                 116,539 

Cash	and	cash	equivalents 13                   130,091                 589,004 

Total assets                1,101,531             2,179,677 

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves            (1,402,482) -889,629

Capital contribution 5                   918,752                 918,752 

accumulated (deficit)              (2,321,234)            (1,808,381)

Current liabilities                2,315,327             2,866,465 

trade and other payables 6                1,955,374              2,532,581 

provisions 7                   359,953                 333,884 

Non current liabilities                   188,686                202,841 

financial obligation 8                   188,686                 202,841 

Total capital reserves and liabilities                1,101,531             2,179,677 
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6.6   sTATEmEnT oF FinAnCiAl PERFoRmAnCE  
FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010

Notes 2010
R

2009
R

Operating revenue 9              26,580,000           26,125,000 

government grant              26,580,000            26,125,000 

Other revenue                     97,255                239,966 

interest received 10                     96,053                 218,557 

sundry income                       1,202                   21,409 

Total revenue              26,677,255           26,364,966 

Operating expenses

employee costs            (17,640,745)          (15,189,205)

depreciation and amortisation                 (780,328)               (976,687)

professional services              (2,500,802)            (3,913,251)

other operating expenses              (6,110,540)            (6,992,718)

Loss	on	sale	of	plant	and	equipment                            -                    (3,548)

Total operating expenses            (27,032,416)         (27,075,409)

Surplus/(deficit) before interest 11                 (355,161)              (710,443)

and finance charges

interest paid 12                 (157,692)               (141,002)

Net (deficit) / surplus for the year                 (512,853)              (851,445)
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Capital contri-
bution

R

Accumulated 
surplus/(deficit)

R

Total
R

at 1 april 2008                   918,752                 (266,920)                651,832 

deficit for the year 2009                   (851,445)                (851,445)

Balance at 1 april 2009                   918,752              (1,118,365)              (199,613)

prior period error                   (690,016)              (690,016)

Balance at 1 april 2009 as restated             918,752              (1,808,381)              (889,629)

deficit for the year 2010                 (512,853)              (512,853)

     

Balance at 31 March 2010              918,752              (2,321,234)           (1,402,482)

6.7  sTATEmEnT oF CHAngEs in nET AssETs 
   FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010



 |  FFC - Annual Report 2009/1086

6.8  CAsH Flow sTATEmEnT 
   FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010

Notes 2010
R

2009
R

Cash flow from operating activities

Receipts              26,677,255           26,364,966 

grants              26,580,000            26,125,000 

interest received                     96,053                 218,557 

other receipts                       1,202                   21,409 

Payments              26,910,868           25,856,894 

employee Costs              17,614,676           15,158,487 

suppliers                9,138,500           10,557,405 

interest paid                   157,692                 141,002 

Net Cash flows from operating activities 13             (233,613)                508,073 

Cash flows from Investing Activities

Purchase	of	property,	plant	and	equipment                 (159,275)                (58,094)

Proceeds	from	sale	of	property,	plant	and	equipment                            -                      3,210 

purchase of intangible assets                   (66,025)                (36,268)

Net Cash flows from investing activities             (225,300)                (91,152)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equiva-
lents                 (458,913)                416,921 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                   589,004                172,083 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13               130,091                 589,004 
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6.9   sTATEmEnT oF ACCoUnTing PoliCiEs 
FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010

ACCOunTInG POlICIES

 

the principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. these policies 

have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.  

1.  Basis of  preparation

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with south african statements of generally recognised 

accounting practice (grap) including any interpretations of such statements issued by the accounting practices Board, with 

the effective standards of generally recognised accounting practices (grap) issued by the accounting standards Board 

replacing	the	equivalent	GAAP	statement.

1.1 Revenue recognition

revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Commission and these 

benefits can be measured reliably. revenue comprises of government grants and interest received

government grants are recognised in the statement of financial performance over the period necessary to match them with 

the costs for which they are intended to compensate. grants that do not meet this criteria are deferred and recognised in the 

statement of financial position.

interest is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking account the principal outstanding or invested and the effective rate 

over the period to maturity when it is determined that such income will accrue to the Commission.

1.2  Property, plant and equipment

Property	and	equipment	is	stated	at	historical	cost	less	accumulated	depreciation	and	any	accumulated	impairment	cost.		

depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets to their residual values over their 

estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer	equipment	 	 	 3	years 

furniture and fittings   5 years 

Motor vehicle    5 years 

Office	equipment	 	 	 	 5	years 

Leasehold improvements   3 years

no depreciation is provided on paintings, which are considered investment assets.

the assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods applied are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each 

statement of financial position date.

1.3 Intangible Assets

Acquired	computer	software	is	classified	as finite assets	and	capitalised	on	the	basis	of	cost	incurred	to	acquire	and	bring	

to use the specific software and is amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of three years less any 

impairment cost. the amortisation method applied is reviewed and adjusted if appropriate. if there has been a change in the 

expected pattern of consumption, the amortisation method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. after initial recognition, 

an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.
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1.4 use of Estimates

The	preparation	of	financial	statements	require	management	to	make	estimates	and	assumptions	that	affect	the	reported	

amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statement. estimates are 

based on current conditions and on other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. significant 

items subject to judgment and such estimates include estimated useful lives and the recoverability of the carrying value of 

assets.

1.5  leases

Leases under which the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, are classified as operating 

leases. obligations incurred under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight line 

basis over the period of the lease, except when an alternative method is more representative of the time pattern from which 

benefits are derived.

When	an	operating	lease	is	terminated	before	the	lease	period	has	expired,	any	payment	required	to	be	made	to	the	lessor	

by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

1.6  Provisions

provisions are recognised when Commission has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 

probable	that	an	outflow	of	resources	embodying	economic	benefits	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation,	and	a	reliable	

estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. 

1.7 Employee benefits

the Commission operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee- adminis-

tered funds. this plan is funded by payments from employees and the Commission.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to a defined contribution plan in respect of services in a particular period are recognized as an expense in that 

period.

1.8  Foreign currencies

 

Transactions

foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in rand, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the rand and foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

1.9  Financial instruments

financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, receivables and trade 

creditors. the particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each 

item.

Recognition

financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value when the Commission becomes party to the contractual arrange-

ments of the instrument.



89CHAPTER 6: Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2010  |   89

6

Measurement

Subsequent	to	initial	recognition	these	instruments	are	measured	as	set	out	below:

Trade and other receivables

trade and other receivables are stated at fair value less provision for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	are	carried	at	cost.

Financial liabilities

the Commission’s principal financial liabilities are accounts payables stated at fair value.

1.10  Cash and cash equivalents

For	the	purpose	of	the	cash	flow	statement,	cash	and	cash	equivalents	include	cash	on	hand	and	where	relevant,	deposits	

held on call with banks, investments in money market instruments and bank overdrafts.
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2.  Property, plant and equipment

2010
Paintings

R

Computer
Equipment

R

Motor
Vehicle

R

Furniture
& Fittings

R

Leasehold
Improvement

R

Total 
R

Opening Balance            

Cost                38,806             1,848,669                   65,494           2,744,307                 351,443             5,048,720 

accumulated depreciation                           -               (1,591,316)                 (58,944)           (1,660,695)                 (292,864)           (3,603,819)

Net Book Value            38,806           257,353                6,550        1,083,613               58,579           1,444,901 

         

Movement for the year:            

additions                          -                  159,275                           -                            -                              -                  159,275 

disposals                  (373,798)                    (6,922)                (380,720)

depreciation on disposed asset                  373,798                     6,922                  380,720 

depreciation                           -                  (245,096)                           -                (433,446)                 (58,574)              (737,116)

                      -                 (85,820)                        -             (433,446)               (58,574)             (577,841)

Closing Balance            

Cost                38,806             1,634,147                   65,494            2,737,385                351,443             4,827,275 

accumulated depreciation                          -               (1,462,614)                 (58,944)           (2,087,219)              (351,438)       (3,960,215)

Net Book Value             38,806             171,533                6,550           650,166                        5              867,060 

   

Paintings
R

Computer
Equipment

R

Motor
Vehicle

R

Furniture
& Fittings

R

Leasehold
Improvement

R

Total 
R

2009

Opening Balance            

Cost             38,806             2,766,537                   65,494            2,795,433                 351,443             6,017,713 

accumulated depreciation                           -               (2,176,363)                 (58,944)           (1,348,905)                 (175,716)           (3,759,928)

Net Book Value             38,806             590,174                 6,550        1,446,528             175,727           2,257,785 

           

Movement for the year:            

additions                          -                    31,296                   26,798                            -                    58,094 

disposals                           -          (949,164)                 (77,923)                            -       (1,027,087)

depreciation on disposed asset                           -                  942,405                  77,923                            -               1,020,329 

depreciation                           -                  (357,358)               (389,713)                 (117,148)              (864,219)

                      -              (332,821)                          -             (362,915)             (117,148)            (812,884)

Closing Balance            

Cost                38,806             1,848,669                  65,494          2,744,307                 351,443           5,048,720 

accumulated depreciation                           -            (1,591,316)                 (58,944)           (1,660,695)            (292,864)           (3,603,819)

Net Book Value             38,806              257,353                6,550        1,083,613               58,579          1,444,901 

6.10   noTEs To THE AnnUAl FinAnCiAl sTATEmEnTs 
FoR THE YEAR EnDED 31 mARCH 2010 
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2010

R

2009

R

3.  Intangible assets

Computer software

Opening Balance

Cost                   795,691                 771,977 

accumulated amortisation                 (766,459)               (666,544)

Net Book Value                     29,232                105,433 

Movement for the year:

additions                     66,025                  36,268 

disposals                (12,554)

amortisation on disposed assets                  12,554 

amortisation                   (43,213)               (112,469)

                    22,812                (76,200)

Closing Balance  

Cost                   861,716                 795,691 

accumulated amortisation                 (809,672)               (766,459)

Net Book Value                     52,044                  29,233 

4.  Trade and other receivables

rental deposit                     52,154                   52,154 

other receivables                          180                   64,385 

                    52,334                116,539 

5.  Capital contribution

Value	of	assets	acquired	from	National	Treasury                   918,752                 918,752 
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2010
R

2009
R

6.  Trade and other payables

trade creditors            1,407,644        1,842,565 

accruals               547,730            690,016 

           1,955,374        2,532,581 

7.  Provisions

Opening 
balance

Utilised 
during

the year
Additions Closing

balance

Reconciliation of the provisions - 2010

 Leave pay benefits
                   

333,884 
                  

(29,469)
                    

55,537 
               
359,953 

Reconciliation of the provisions - 2009

Leave pay benefits
                   

203,720 
                  

(50,527)
                  

180,691 
               
333,884 

8. Financial Obligation

 accrual in respect of straight line lease
                  

188,686 
 

               
202,841 

9.  Revenue

revenue comprises grants received from 
national treasury

             
26,580,000 

 
          

26,125,000 

10.  Interest received

this is interest on available funds held in current 
accounts with financial institutions.

Bank interest 95,875  217,921

interest on staff loan 178  636

                    
96,053 

               
218,557 
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2010
R

2009
R

11. deficit

Net deficit  for the year has been arrived at after

debiting

auditors remuneration                   792,081                584,278 

 Current year fee                   792,081                584,278 

professional services                2,500,802             3,913,251 

      

Commissioners’ expenses                   192,068                  51,439 

operating leases:

Office	premises/equipment                   896,536                676,936 

depreciation and amortisation                   780,328                976,687 

employee costs              15,524,701           13,801,734 

included in staff costs are:

defined contribution plan expense (see note 17)                2,116,044             1,387,470 

And after crediting:

interest received:

Bank Current account                     95,876                 217,921 

staff loans                          177                        636 

                    96,053                218,557 

number of employees at year end 34 30

12. Interest paid

interest                       9,737                 130,074 

Late payment of tax                   147,955                   10,928 

                 157,692                141,002 
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2010

R

2009

R

13.  notes to the Cash flow statement

(a)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	included	in	the	cash	flow	
statement comprise the following 

Cash on hand                       2,601                    4,124 

Bank balance                   127,490                584,880 

                  130,091                589,004 

(b) Property, plant and equipment

During	the	year,	the	Commission	acquired	property,	plant	and	equipment	with	an	aggregate	cost	of	R255	300	which	was	ac-

quired	by	means	of	operational	grant	from	National	Treasury.	Cash	payment	of	R	159	275	and	R66	025	were	used	to	purchase	

plant	and	equipment	and	software	respectively.	

(c) Reconciliation of net cash flows from operating activities to deficit

deficit                 (512,853)              (851,445)

Non-cash Movements                   279,240             1,359,519 

depreciation                   737,116                864,218 

amortisation                     43,213                112,469 

(decrease)/increase in accounts payable                 (577,207)                126,397 

increase in provisions relating to employee costs                     26,069                130,167 

straight line  lease                   (14,155)                  88,068 

Loss on sale of asset                            -                      3,548 

decrease in accounts receivable                     64,204                  34,652 

net cash flows from operating activities                 (233,613)                508,074 

14. Related parties transactions

all national departments of government and state-controlled entities are regarded as related parties in accordance with  

Circular 4 of 2005.the financial and fiscal Commission is a constitutional institution reporting to parliament and national 

treasury from which it received grants in the current and prior years. the following transactions and balances were  

recorded relating to transactions with related parties as defined.
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2010
R

2009
R

Grants Received

national treasury              26,580,000           26,125,000 

Service provided by related parties

south african Broadcasting Corporation                          500                       450 

south african revenue services                2,992,371             3,741,462 

telkom                   122,117                199,620 

               3,114,988             3,941,532 

Loans to Commissioners

B. khumalo                     53,196 

                    53,196 

The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and is payable on 31 July 2010.

15. Irregular expenditure, Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

opening Balance                            -                           -   

add: irregular expenditure: current year                     53,196                         -   

add: fruitless and wasteful expenditure: current year                   147,955 

irregular expenditure awaiting for 
condonation

201,151                         -   

analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age 
classificaton

Current year Late payment of tax 147,955                         -   

Long services  Bonus 53,196                         -   

total 201,151                         -   

16.  Financial Risk Management

Credit risk

financial assets which potentially subject the Commission to concentrations of credit risk is principally of receivables. re-

ceivables are of a sundry nature and the credit risk is therefore limited, the credit risk is managed through periodic reviews 

of the level of bad debts. accordingly the Commission has no significant concentration of credit risk and management has 

taken a decision not to implement any sensitivity analysis.
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Interest rate risk

The	Commission	has	cash	and	cash	equivalents	placed	with	financial	institutions	and	is	therefore	exposed	to	interest	rate	

fluctuations and such changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of cash. the interest rate risk embodies not only 

the potential for loss but also the potential for gain and is managed through the cash management policy.

Fair Values

At	31	March	2010	the	carrying	amounts	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents,	accounts	payable	and	accounts	receivable	approxi-

mated their fair value due to the short term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

17. deficit
 

the Commission recorded a deficit of r512 853, which is attributable to non-cash items such as depreciation and increase in 

the Commission’s research and support activities. the Commission has not incurred any bank overdraft in 2009/10.

 

18.  Retirement benefits information
during the year, the financial and fiscal Commission contributed to Momentum provident fund for all its employees. this  

constituted  a defined contribution fund governed by the pension fund act (act 24 1956, as amended). in terms of the rules 

of the fund, the Commission is committed to contribute 12.5% of  pensionable emoluments towards the retirement fund and 

3.5% of pensionable emoluments towards an accident compensation fund. an amount of r 2 116 044  (2009: r1 387 470) was 

recognised as an expense during the year for contributions to the retirement fund. ffC has no liability to members beyond 

what is contributed to the fund.

19. Operating lease commitments

R R

not later than 1 year                   637,765                849,949 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years                1,108,752             1,557,831 

               1,746,517             2,407,780 

operating lease payments represents rental payable by the Commission for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an 

average term of five years and have an 8% escalation clause. no contingent rent is payable.

20.  Prior year Adjustments

the management of financial and fiscal Commission approved the performance bonuses for staff in July 2010. since the 

financial records for the year 2008/9 were finalised at the time such amounts were initially recorded in the 2010/11 financial 

year as it was the date on which the decision was made. during the audit it was agreed that the amount should be accounted 

for in the financial year 2008/9 as it relates to the performance of 2008/9. as this transaction pertains to the previous financial 

year, statement of financial position figures are restated as follows:
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Computer
Equipment

R
 

Motor
Vehicle

R

Furniture
& Fittings

R

Total
R

2009    

Opening Balance            

actual Cost                1,932,929                        72,044            2,875,814         4,880,787 

actual accumulated deprecia-
tion

             (1,681,193)                      (65,494)           (1,786,582)        (3,533,269)

Net Book Value              251,736                     6,550            1,089,232      1,347,518 

 

Correction  

Correction of adjustment 
estimates

            89,878                        6,550              125,889           222,317 

Correction of classification                 5,618                 -5,618                      - 

           

restated  Cost                 1,848,669                      65,494            2,744,307          4,658,470 

restated accumulated depre-
ciation

              -1,591,315                      -58,944             -1,660,693        -3,310,952 

Corrected Net Book Value                   257,354                        6,550            1,083,614          1,347,518 

CAPITAl, RESERvES And lIABIlITIES

 

Balance Sheet Extract

Actual 2008/9  Correction  Corrected Actual 2008/9

Capital and reserves

accumulated deficit              -1,118,365                 (690,016)           -1,808,381 

Current liabilities

trade and other payables               1,842,565                   690,016             2,532,581 

the net effect of a correction of error has resulted in an increase in the accumulated deficit.

 

During	the	2007/08	and	2008/9	financial	year	management	changed	the	estimated	useful	lives	of	plant	and	equipment	to	

comply	with	the	International	Accounting	Standard	(IAS	16)	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment.	These	changes	were	incorrectly	

recorded	to	the	cost	and	depreciation	of	the	individual	assets	(i.e.	Computer	equipment,	Furniture	and	Fittings	and	Motor	

vehicle). during the 2009/10 audit it was agreed that the correction be recorded in the respective years  in which the error 

occurred. the restated figures are as follows:
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21. Remuneration for Commission Members

year ended 31 March 2010

Salary 
R

Pension contributions
R

Other 
contributions

R

Total
R

Executive Commissioners

B setai - Chairperson                 1,087,490                  123,334                 54,288 1,265,112

B khumalo- deputy Chairperson                    950,060                              -                 72,587 1,022,647

        -

2,037,550                  123,334              126,875 2,287,759

Non Executive Commissioners

t ajam 67,068                            -                              -   67,068

n shezi                      19,139                            -                              -   19,139

d savage                      30,855                            -                              -    30,855

L abrahams                      23,763        23,763

               186,148                            -                            -             186,148

TOTAL              2,223,698                    123,334               126,875 2,473,907
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year ended 31 March 2009 

Salary 
R

Pension contributions
R

Other 
contributions

R

Total
R

Executive Commissioners

B setai - Chairperson                882,342                  103,485                2,762       988,589 

B khumalo               660,385                 76,679            7,724    744,788 

         1,542,727                  180,164           10,486 1,733,377 

Non Executive Commissioners

t ajam                  24,840                            -                          -       24,840 

M kuscus                    2,484                            -                          -              2,484 

Mosley Lefatola                    2,311                            -                          -              2,311 

k kumar                    3,920             3,920 

n shezi                  14,904          14,904 

d savage                8,694             8,694 

              57,153                              -                     -    57,153 

         1,599,880                    180,164            10,486 1,790,530 

 

22. Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance

Reconciliation of budget surplus with the deficit in the statement of financial performance

net deficit per the statement of financial 
performance

(512,853)

Adjusted for:

depreciation and amortisation               780,328 

straight line lease               (14,155)

net surplus per approved budget                253,321 

the Commission  prepares its budget on an accrual basis to match the inflow of income with commitments. however the 

budget for capital goods is recorded in the  statement of financial performance when it is received whereas the deprecia-

tion to match the cost of such capital goods is released to the statement of financial performance over the useful life of an 

asset.



 |  FFC - Annual Report 2009/10100

7.1   ovERviEw oF HUmAn REsoURCE ACTiviTiEs 
 

the financial and fiscal Commission has utilised the 2009/10 reporting period to address implementation of aspects of the 

human resources strategy and policy that was aligned to the Commission’s 2009 to 2014 strategic plan. 

a key development in terms of human resources has been the implementation of a reconstituted executive Manager division 

in the organisation. this post was originally accountable for the broad spectrum of Commission services, corporate affairs 

and support services. the reconfigured structure that was implemented during the reporting period has made distinction 

between the Commission services portfolio (now residing under the Commission secretary post) and the corporate services 

component of the function, human resources, information technology and facilities (under the recently appointed Corporate 

services Manager).

these developments will ensure that implementation of the Commission strategy receives appropriate focus and account-

ability within the designated functions.

during the reporting period the Commission also implemented a revision of the finance department structure. this 

revised structure was designed to improve the department’s pivotal role in providing input, guidance and monitoring to the 

Commission.

a feature of this structural revision has been the identification and development of current internal resources, through the 

establishment of mentor-supported trainee posts, to provide core functional expertise for financial accounting, procurement 

and accounts Clerical tasks.

the research and recommendations program developed and implemented a 5-year research strategy that provides policy 

guidelines and indicators for the future functioning and effectiveness of the Commission’s core business division.

Capacity expansion was evidenced through the appointment of ten staff members over the reporting period (including two 

fixed-term Contract employees). six of these appointments were made to the recommendations research program and four 

to Commission support services. 

seven of the 2009/10 appointments were at the Middle and senior Management Levels – in line with the capacity building 

initiatives identified in the strategy.

the Commission reported four terminations for the 2009/10 reporting period – two resignations and two expiries of fixed-term 

contracts. this is a decrease on previous reporting periods – staff terminations for 2008/09 were seven and eleven were 

reported for 2007/08.

this decrease in staff turnover is accounted for by initiatives implemented in terms of staff retention policies.

cHApter 7

hUMAN rESOUrCE MANAgEMENT
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these developments have resulted in an overall increase in the Commission staff complement, which at the close of the 

reporting period was recorded at 36 staff members.

during the reporting period the Commission implemented a revised performance Management framework based, in part, on 

the dpsa / national treasury guidelines for performance Management within the public sector.

the implementation process for the revised performance management system included executive Committee and general 

staff consultative workshops.

all staff performance agreements for 2009/10 were drawn in line with the provisions of the revised policy.

Mid-term performance reviews were conducted and in March 2010 the first annual performance evaluations, under the new 

system, were implemented for all applicable staff. 

The	FFC’s	Employment	Equity	Plan	has	identified	the	appointment	of	female	staff	at	the	Professional	 (09	–	12)	and	Senior	

Management	Services	(13	–	16)	Levels	as	a	key	equity	target.	The	Plan	targets	a	Male	/	Female	employee	ratio	of	60%	/	40%	

for both these occupational categories. 

during the 2009/10 reporting period this target was exceeded for the professional occupational Category – currently at 38.9% 

Male and 61.1% female. in the senior Management occupational Category the ratio is currently 87.5% Male and 12.5% female. 

for the sMs category the ffC will need to implement a targeted selection strategy for future appointments to meet the 

gender ratio. posts identified in the revised organisational structure and future recruitment strategy provide opportunity for 

this to be achieved. 

The	last	Employment	Equity	report	was	submitted	to	the	Department	of	Labour	in	October	2008	and	the	next	report	is	due	

in october 2010.

For	 the	2009/10	 reporting	period	 the	Commission	 invested	a	 total	of	R142	583	 (92	 training	day’s	equivalent)	 in	employee	

skills training and development. this translates to average training days per employee of 2.5 at an average cost of r3 961 per 

employee for the reporting period. a further r11 110 was invested in employee part-time educational assistance.

the statistical tables and information that follows provides further data applicable to ffC human resources Management. all 

hr information published can be verified through the office of the Commission secretary.
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7.2   ovERviEw oF HUmAn REsoURCE ACTiviTiEs

7.3  EmPloYmEnT AnD vACAnCiEs 

Table 2.1: Personnel Costs by Salary Bands, 2009/10 

Table 2.2: Salaries, Overtime and Medical Assistance by salary bands, 2009/10 

Table 3.1: Employment and vacancies by Salary Bands, 31 March 2010 

Salary Bands Personnel Expenditure % of Total Personnel Cost Average Personnel Cost 
Per Employee

salary levels 1 - 2 r  134 069.00 0.8 r 67 034.50

salary levels 3 - 5 r  801 297.22 5.0 r200 324.31

salary levels 6 - 8 r  475 568.29 3.0 r158 522.76

salary levels 9 - 12 r7 344 984.53 46.2 r386 578.13

salary levels 13 - 16 r7 147 386.39 45.0 r595 615.53

Total R15 903 305.43 100 R397 582.64

Salary Band Number of Posts Number of Posts 
Filled Vacancy Rate % Additional to the 

establishment

salary levels 1 - 2 2 2 0 0

salary levels 3 - 5 4 4 0 0

salary levels 6 - 8 2 2 0 0

salary levels 9 - 12 20 18 10% 0

senior Management (13 – 16) 12 10 17% 0

Programme Total 40 36 10% 0

Salary Bands Salaries Overtime Medical Assistance

Amount 
(R’000)

% of person-
nel cost

Amount 
(R’000)

% of person-
nel cost

Amount 
(R’000)

% of personnel 
cost

salary levels 1 - 2 r   80 371.18 60.0 0 0 r    37 866.00 28.2

salary levels 3 - 5 r  552 453.38 68.9 0 0 r  160 213.00 20.0

salary levels 6 - 8 r  395 777.27 83.2 0 0 r    12 828.00 2.7

salary levels 9 - 12 r6 098 852.60 83.0 0 0 r  499 441.00 6.8

salary levels 13 - 16 r6 220 250.96 87.0 0 0 r  402 067.00 5.6

Total R13 347 705.39 83.9 0 0 R1 112 415.00 7.0

Note: the FFC does not provide a Home Owners Allowance benefit.
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7.4  JoB EvAlUATion 
 

no Job evaluation was conducted at the financial and fiscal Commission for the reporting period 2009/10.

7.5  EmPloYmEnT CHAngEs  
 

Table 4.2 Profile of Employees whose Salary level Exceeds the Grade determined by Job Evaluation – 01 

April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 4.1: Employment and vacancies by Salary Bands, 31 March 2010 

Table 5.1: Employment and vacancies by Salary Bands, 31 March 2010 

Beneficiaries African Indian Coloured White Total

female 1 - 2 2 5

Male 4 - - - 4

Total 5 - 2 2 9

Occupation Number of 
Employees

Job Evaluation 
Level Remuneration Level Reason for 

deviation

research specialist 1 12 Between 12 - 13 retention strategy

senior researcher 2 12 Between 12 - 13 retention strategy

Manager: Library and kM 1 12 Between 12 - 13 retention strategy

facilities Manager 1 11 12
post previously bench-
marked against private 

sector rates

personal assistant 1 09 10 as above

driver / office assistant 1 05 08 as above

receptionist / travel desk 1 04 08 as above

general office assistant 1 03 06 as above

Salary Bands
Number of employ-
ees per Level as at 

01 April 2009

Appointments and 
Transfers In

Terminations and 
Transfers Out Turnover rate

salary levels 1 - 2 1 1 - +1

salary levels 3 - 5 4 - - -

salary levels 6 - 8 3 1 1 -

salary levels 9 - 12 13 5 1 +4

senior Management 13 - 16 9 3 2 +1

Total 30 10 4 +6
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Table 5.2: Reasons why Staff is leaving the FFC

Table 5.3: Promotions by Salary Band 

Termination Type Number % of total turnover

death 0 0

resignation 2 50

expiry of Contract 2 50

dismissal - organisational changes 0 0

dismissal - misconduct 0 0

dismissal - inefficiency 0 0

discharge due to ill-health 0 0

retirement 0 0

other 0 0

Total 4 100

Salary Band Employees 01 April 2009 Promotions to another sal-
ary level

Salary Band promotions as 
a % of employees by salary 

level

salary levels 1 - 2 1 - -

salary levels 3 - 5 4 - -

salary levels 6 - 8 3 1 33.3%

salary levels 9 - 12 13 1 7.7%

senior Management (13 – 16) 9 - -

Total 30 2 6.7%
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Table 6.1: Total number of Employees (FFC secretariat staff) in each of the following Occupational 

Categories as at 31 March 2010

Table 6.2: Total number of Employees (FFC secretariat staff) in each of the following Occupational 

levels as at 31 March 2010

Occupational Categories
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers

5 - - 1 1 - - - 7

professionals 4 1 1 1 6 2 - 3 18

technicians and associate 
professionals

- - - - - - - - -

Clerks 1 - - - 3 2 - - 6

service and sales workers - - - - - - - - -

skilled agricultural and fishery 
workers

- - - - - - - - -

Craft and related trades 
workers

- - - - - - - - -

plant and machine operators 
and assemblers

- - - - - - - - -

elementary occupations - - - - 2 - - - 2

Total Permanent 10 1 1 2 12 4 - 3 33

non-permanent employees 1 - - - - - - - 1

Total 11 1 1 2 12 4 - 3 34

persons with disabilities - - - - - - - - 0

Occupational Bands
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

top Management - - - - - - - - -

senior Management 5 - - 1 1 - - - 7

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced specialists and 
mid-management

3 1 - 1 2 2 - 1 10

skilled technical and academ-
ically	qualified	workers,	junior	
management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

1 - 1 - 4 - - 2 8

semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

1 - - - 3 2 - - 6

unskilled and defined 
decision making

- - - - 2 - - - 2

Total Permanent 10 1 1 2 12 4 - 3 33

non-permanent employees 1 - - - - - - - 1

Total 11 2 - 2 12 4 - 3 34

persons with disabilities - - - - - - - - 0

7.6  EmPloYmEnT EqUiTY 

Note: the FFC does not provide a Home Owners Allowance benefit.
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Table 6.3: Recruitment for the Period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

Table 6.4: Promotions for the Period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

Occupational Bands
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

top Management - - - - - - - - -

senior Management - - - - 1 - - - 1

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced specialists and 
mid-management

- - - 1 - 1 - - 2

skilled technical and academ-
ically	qualified	workers,	junior	
management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

1 - 1 - - - - 1 3

semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

- - - - - - - - -

unskilled and defined deci-
sion making

- - - - 1 - - - 1

Total Permanent 1 - 1 1 2 1 - 1 7

non-permanent employees 1 - - - 1 - - 1 3

Total 2 - 1 1 3 1 - 2 10

Occupational Bands
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

top Management - - - - - - - - -

senior Management - - - - - - - - -

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced specialists and 
mid-management

- - - - 1 - - - 1

skilled technical and academ-
ically	qualified	workers,	junior	
management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

- - - - 1 - - - 1

semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

- - - - - - - - -

unskilled and defined deci-
sion making

- - - - - - - - -

Total Permanent - - - - 2 - - - 2

non-permanent employees - - - - - - - - -

Total - - - - 2 - - - 2
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Table 6.5: Terminations for the Period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

Table 6.7: Skills development for the Period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010  

Table 6.6: disciplinary Action for the Period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

Occupational Bands
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

top Management - - - - - - - - -

senior Management - - - - - - - 1 1

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced specialists and 
mid-management

- 1 - - - - - - 1

skilled technical and academ-
ically	qualified	workers,	junior	
management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

- - - - - - - - -

semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

- - - - - - - - -

unskilled and defined deci-
sion making

- - - - - - - - -

Total Permanent - 1 - - - - - 1 2

non-permanent employees - - - - 1 - - 1 -

Total - 1 - - 1 - - 2 4

Occupational Bands
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers

2 - - - - - - - 2

professionals 1 - - - 2 - - 2 5

technicians and associate 
professionals

- - - - - - - - -

Clerks 1 - - - 1 - - - 2

service and sales workers - - - - - - - - -

skilled agricultural and fishery 
workers

- - - - - - - - -

Craft and related trades 
workers

- - - - - - - - -

plant and machine operators 
and assemblers

- - - - - - - - -

elementary occupations - - - - - - - - -

Total Permanent - - - - - - - - -

non-permanent employees - - - - - - - - -

Total 4 - - - 3 - - 2 9

persons with disabilities - - - - - - - - 0

Occupational Bands
Male Female

TOTAL
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

disciplinary action 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 7.1: Performance Rewards, by Race, Gender and disability, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010  

7.7  PERFoRmAnCE REwARDs 

Number of benefi-
ciaries

Total Number of 
employees in group

% of total within 
group Cost (R’000)

Average 
cost per 

employee

African

Male 4 13 30.8% 115 865 28 966

female 2 12 16.7% 38 548 19 274

Indian

Male 0 1 0 0 0

female 0 0 0 0 0

Coloured

Male 0 1 0 0 0

female 0 4 0 0 0

White

Male 0 2 0 0 0

female 2 3 66.7% 42 141 21 071

Total 8 36 22.2% 196 554 24 819

employees with 
disability

- - - - -

Table 7.2: Performance Reward by Salary Band for Personnel below Senior Management Service, 01 April 

2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 7.3: Performance Related Rewards by Salary Band, for Senior Management Service, 01 April 2009 to 31 

March 2010 

Salary Band Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within group Cost Average cost 

per employee

Total cost as % of 
total personnel 

cost

salary levels 1 - 2 0 2 0 0 0 0

salary levels 3 - 5 1 4 25% 8 074 8 074 1.0

salary levels 6 - 8 0 2 0 0 0 0

salary levels 9 - 12 5 18 27.8% 108 422 21 684 1.5

Total 6 26 23.1% 116 496 19 416 1.3

Salary Band Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within group Cost Average cost 

per employee

Total cost as % of 
total personnel 

cost

salary levels 13 - 16 2 10 20% 80 058 40 029 1.1

Total 2 10 20% 80 058 40 029 1.1
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Table 8.1: Foreign Workers by Salary Band, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 9.1: Sick leave 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

Table 9.2: disability leave (Temporary and Permanent), 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

 

no disability Leave for the reporting period.

Table 8.2: Foreign Workers by Major Occupation, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

7.8  FoREign woRkERs

7.9  lEAvE UTilisATion FoR THE PERioD 01 APRil 2009 – 31 mARCH 2010 

Salary Band Total 
days

% certifica-
tion

No. of 
employees 
using sick 

leave

% of total 
employees 
using sick 

leave

Average per 
employee

Estimated 
cost

Total days 
with medical 
certification

salary levels 1 - 2 8.5 82% 2 100% 4.25 2 649 7

salary levels 3 - 5 29 97% 4 100% 7.25 11 324 28

salary levels 6 - 8 27 70% 3 100% 9 20 784 19

salary levels 9 - 12 108.5 80% 16 84% 6.8 181 418 87

salary levels 13 - 16 44 75% 8 67% 5.5 152 805 33

Total 217 80% 33 82.5% 6.6 368 980 174

Salary Band
01 April 2009 31 March 2010 Change

Number % of Total Number % of Total Number % of Total

salary levels 1 - 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

salary levels 3 - 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

salary levels 6 - 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

salary levels 9 - 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

senior Manage-
ment (13 – 16)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Major 
Occupation

01 April 2009 31 March 2010 Change

Number % of Total Number % of Total Number % of Total

- - - - - - -

- - - - - - -

- - - - - - -

- - - - - - -

- - - - - - -

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 9.3: Annual leave, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 9.4: leave Payouts for the Period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2009

Table 11.1: Collective Agreements, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Salary Bands Total days taken Number of employees 
in grade Average per employee

salary levels 1 - 2 28.5 2 14

salary levels 3 - 5 91.5 4 23

salary levels 6 - 8 61.5 3 21

salary levels 9 - 12 317 19 17

salary levels 13 - 16 197 12 16

Total 695.5 40 17

Reason Total Amount (R’000) Number of employees Average payment per 
employee

Leave payout for 2009/10 due to 
non-utilisation

- - -

Current leave payout on termi-
nation of service

29 469 4 7 367

Total 24 469 4 7 367

total Collective agreements none

7.10  Hiv/AiDs AnD HEAlTH PRomoTion PRogRAms
 

the financial and fiscal Commission has an hiv/aids policy which was introduced in 2002. this policy was reviewed in 

2008/09 as part of the human resource policies and procedures review and updating process. 

the hiv/aids policy makes a clear statement regarding the issue of discrimination and protection of employees who are 

hiv-positive or perceived to be hiv-positive.

with regards to risk of occupational exposure, no specific units or categories of employee have been identified to be at high 

risk of contracting hiv and related diseases.

the 2009/2014 human resource strategy includes the implementation of staff hiv/aids awareness and health promotion 

programs. the organisation will be installing a first aid station on site and an official will trained in all aspects of first aid 

support. this resource will cover general occupational health and safety issues as well as hiv/aids related support in the 

workplace. 

the human resource strategy also includes implementation of an employee assistance program to address broader issues 

related to employee well-being and health.

7.11 lABoUR RElATions 
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Table 11.2: Misconduct and disciplinary Hearings Finalised, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 11.3: Grievances lodged for the period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 11.4: disputes lodged with councils for the period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 11.5: Strike actions for the period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Table 11.6: Precautionary suspensions for the period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional Counseling - -

verbal warning - -

written warning - -

final written warning - -

suspended without pay - -

fine - -

demotion - -

dismissal - -

Case withdrawn - -

Total - -

Occupational 
Categories Gender

No. of employ-
ees as at 01 
April 2009

Learnerships

Skills pro-
grammes and 

other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training Total

Legislators, se-
nior officials and 
Managers

female 1 - - - -

Male 8 - 2 - 2

professionals
female 8 - 2 2 4

Male 5 - 1 - 1

Clerks
female 6 - 1 - 1

Male 1 - 1 - 1

elementary 
occupations

female 1 - - - -

Male - - - - -

Total 30 - 7 2 9

number of grievances lodged none

number of disputes lodged none

strike actions for the period none

precautionary suspensions for the period none

Training provided 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

7.12 skills DEvEloPmEnT
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Nature of Injury Number % of total

Required	basic	medical	attention	only 0 0

temporary total disablement 0 0

permanent disablement 0 0

fatal 0 0

Total 0 0

Name Historically Disadvantaged 
Individual (HDI) Status Value

adcorp talent resourcing yes 23,515.92

american express Card no 800,767.70

american express travel yes 397,558.65

Aquazania	Premium	Water no 18,600.77

astrotech no 9,530.40

asyst intelligence no 21,117.36

atio Corporation (pty) Ltd yes 83,847.00

avis rent-a-Car no 105,652.28

avion information systems & services CC no 56,279.52

B C rens no 750.00

Banathi Catering yes 72,296.00

Broll property Management yes 722,004.27

Business day yes 2,137.44

Butterworths publishers Lexisnexis yes 4,364.03

Bytes technologies yes 175,142.30

Capello's no 39,442.04

Cape argus yes 1,046.13

Computer Consulting servicves no 65,538.60

CCtv direct no 10,260.00

ChM vuwani yes 15,342.12

 Churchills international express yes 20,101.31

City of Johannesburg n/a 246.00

College Campus no 7,490.00

damelin no 8,160.00

datapro no 467,682.74

datadeal no 145,572.88

dhL international (pty) Ltd no 8,065.83

Injury on duty, 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 

14.1: Suppliers

7.13 inJURY on DUTY

7.14 UTilisATion oF sUPPliERs AnD ConsUlTAnTs
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Name Historically Disadvantaged 
Individual (HDI) Status Value

diverso technology no 11,472.80

the document warehouse no 3,111.63

don gresswell Library products cc no 1,322.40

dot office stationery no 26,032.07

Mokotedi Mogadime yes 16,000.00

early worx no 5,792.40

econometrix no 53,694.00

europcar no 6,048.67

fax fix automotion yes 1,692.00

fig technology (pty) Ltd no 48,888.90

financial Mail yes 4,009.50

fleet street publications no 1,489.66

flower spot no 1,560.00

forest technologies no 102,087.00

gauteng printing yes 6,086.81

hencetrade195 (pty)Ltd nio 45,144.00

independent newspapers yes 5,575.80

is fax no 18,399.94

Jade Lee electrical yes 2,227.76

ken Malherbe no 2,421.00

kistan office removals yes 4,206.60

kroll Background screening (pty) Ltd no 4,180.38

La Chaumiere guest house no 6,624.00

Leriba Lodge no 135,347.80

Mail and guardian yes 1,786.00

Makro no 17,006.73

Moments frames & d' articles no 661.20

nashua MBL no 380,701.37

nashua kopano yes 70,022.36

nedfleet no 19,375.60

nedbank Credit Card 33,743.78

new generation solutions no 277,323.62

northern Cleaners CC no 400.00

optiplan no 1,704.30

parliamentary Monitoring group no 5,300.00

pat wood works cc yes 2,100.00

public investment Corporation n/a 599,015.77

quest Computer skill no 1,950.00

rentokil: Cape town no 35,612.65

rentokil: Midrand no 154,574.09

Request	 1,747.87

sabinet no 48,978.96
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Name Historically Disadvantaged 
Individual (HDI) Status Value

saBC n/a 500.00

shauns plumbing no 1,339.15

siphumelele Zacron yes 2,793.00

softline pastel no 12,129.00

south african reserve Bank n/a 280.00

stationery for africa no 1,216.38

steiner Cape town no 21,799.90

steiner Midrand no 27,773.53

steers afrovan no 8,327.70

south african post office n/a 1405.00

take Care no 3,971.84

tenaka’s tribe interactive yes 82,541.05

telkom n/a 138,753.28

tenaka's tribe productions (pty) Ltd yes 541,388.36

trisha delisha yes 6,274.35

unisa n/a 2,640.00

university of western Cape n/a 165.00

venditor international (pty) Ltd no 39,392.82

waltons stationery Midrand no 8,917.34

waltons stationery Cape town no 5,159.58

Zenprop property holdings no 46,511.56

Zimele traders yes 23,780.00

Name Historically Disadvantaged 
Individual (HDI) Status Value

auditor general n/a 798,237.88

CL Machete yes 42,000.00

J k sithole yes 20,051.00

eugene sklar no 18,696.00

hoosen wadiwala inc yes 15,390.00

kristina davidson no 11,200.00

evo Consulting services no 51,740.70

ismael fofana yes 203,040.00

pierre hugo no 18,000.00

Leshiretse Mphahlele yes 25,320.00

price waterhouse Coopers yes 90,052.59

se Makhubu and associates yes 606,673.60

university of stellenosch n/a 1,120,000.00

14.2: Consultants
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aBet adult Basic education and training

afdC aid to families with dependent Children

afs  annual financial statements

aMps  all Media and products survey

asgisa   accelerated and shared growth initiative for south africa

ausaid australian aid

Capex Capital expenditure

CCt  Conditional Cash transfer

CGE		 Computable	General	Equilibrium	Model

CMa Catchment Management agency

CMtp Consolidated Municipal transformation program

Cpi  Consumer price index

Crus Community rental units

Csg  Child support grant 

Cwss Community water and sanitation services 

dBsa development Bank of southern africa

dfid department of international development

dg  disability grant

dMtn domestic Medium term note

doe  department of education

dot  department of transport

dpLg department of provincial and Local government

dpw department of public works

drZ  designated restructuring Zones

dsd  department of social development

dwaf department of water affairs and forestry

eitC earned income tax Credit 

eMs emergency Medical services

energys   engineers now to ensure roll-out by growing young skills 

epwp expanded public works programme

eu  european union

fCg  foster Care grant

fifa   fédération internationale de football association 

ffC  financial and fiscal Commission

fMg financial Management grant

gdp gross domestic product

cHApter 8

AppENdiCES
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ghs  general household survey

gsdM greater sekhukhune district Municipality

haart highly active antiretroviral treatment

idp  integrated development plan

ies  incomes and expenditure survey

ihhsd  integrated housing and human settlement development grant

igp  infrastructure grant for provinces

isrdp  integrated sustainable rural development program

iwrM integrated water resources Management 

Led  Local economic development

LES		 Local	Government	Equitable	Share

Lgtp Local government transformation programme

Lgnet Local government network

LgrC Local government resource Centre

Lgseta  Local government sector education and training authority

Lgsp Local governance support programme

Mdgs Millennium development goals 

MfMtap  Municipal finance Management technical assistance programme

Mig  Municipal infrastructure grant 

Msig Municipal systems improvement grant

Msp Municipal support program

Mtef Medium-term expenditure framework

MtBps Medium-term Budget policy statement

naLedi  national Labour and economic development institute

nCBf national Capacity-Building framework

ndoh national department of housing

ndoh national department of health

ndot national department of transport

nersa national energy regulator of south africa

ngo non governmental organisation

nrB  national roads Board

nrf  national road fund

nsdp national spatial development plan

ntC  national transport Commission

oeCd  organisation for economic Cooperation and development

paLaMa  public administration Leadership and Management academy

PES		 Provincial	Equitable	Share

pfMa public finance Management act

phC  primary health Care

pig  provincial infrastructure grant 

pLtf provincial Land transport framework

ppp  public private partnerships

prwora  personal responsibility and work opportunity act 

ptis   public transport infrastructure and systems grant

rdp  reconstruction and development programme

rha rental housing act

saiCe south african institute of Civil engineers

saLga south african Local government association

sanraL south african national road agency Ltd
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sarCC south african rail Commuter Corporation

sassa south african social security agency 

sda  service delivery agreement

sdf  service delivery facilitator

seta sector education and training authority

sh  social housing

sha  social housing act

shf  social housing foundation

shis  social housing institutions

shra social housing regulatory authority

shrCg  social housing restructuring Capital grant

soCpen social pension system

ssp  sector skills plan

statssa statistics south africa

tanf temporary assistance to needy families

uif  unemployment insurance fund

urp  urban renewal programme

usaid  united states agency for international development

who world health organisation

wisa water institute of south africa 

wMa water Management areas 

wMi water Management institutions

wssCu water sector support Coordinating unit
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APPEnDix B:  PUBliCATions AnD oUTPUT oF REsEARCH AnD 
RECommEnDATions PRogRAm

Commission Papers

•	 	 	Financial	and	Fiscal	Commission	Submission	for	the	Division	of	Revenue	2010/11,	a	126	page	report	submitted	in	terms	of	

section 214 (2) and section 229 (5) of the Constitution, and section 9 of the intergovernmental fiscal relations act, 1997 

(no. 97 of 1997) 

•	 	 	Division	of	Revenue	Bill	2010/11	response	to	recommendations	

•	 	 	Financial	 and	 Fiscal	 Commission	 Submission	 on	 Draft	 Money	 Bills	 Amendment	 Procedure	 and	 Related	 Matters	 Bill	

[B75-2008] in order to promulgate Money Bills amendment procedure and related Matters act, 2009 (no. 9 of 2009)

•	 	 	Financial	and	Fiscal	Commission	Response	to	Medium	Term	Budget	Policy	Statement	(MTBPS)	

•	 	 Financial	and	Fiscal	Commission	Submission	on	Seventeenth	Constitutional	Amendment	Bill	[B8-2009]	

•	 	 Financial	and	Fiscal	Commission	Submission	on	Eighteenth	Constitutional	Amendment	Bill	of	2009	

Journal Articles

•	 	 	Amusa,	H.,	Amusa,	K.,	and	Mabugu,	R.,	(2009)	“Aggregate	demand	for	electricity	in	South	Africa:	an	analysis	using	the	

bounds testing approach to cointegration”, energy policy, 37 (10) oct : 4167-4175

•	 	 	Fofana,	I.	M	Chitiga	and	R.	Mabugu	(2009).	“Oil	prices	and	the	South	African	economy:	a	macro-meso-micro	analysis.”	

energy policy, 37 : 5509-5518

•	 	 	Mabugu,	R.	and	M.	Chitiga.	(2009).	“Liberalising	trade	in	South	Africa:	a	survey	of	computable	general	equilibrium	studies.”	

south african Journal of economics, 77 (3), sep 2009: 445-464

•	 	 	Mabugu,	R.,	M.	Chitiga	and	H.	Amusa.	(2009).	“The	economic	consequences	of	a	fuel	levy	reform	in	South	Africa.”	SAJEMS	

ns 12(3): 280-296

•	 	 	Wabiri,	N	and	H.	Amusa	(2010).	“Quantifying	South	Africa’s	crude	oil	import	risk:	a	multi-criteria	portfolio	model.”	Economic	

Modelling, (27) : 445-453

Recognition

•	 	 Mabugu,	R.

   your paper, “the impact of the international economic crisis in south africa”, was recently listed on ssrn’s top ten 

download	list	for	ERN:	General	Equilibrium	Models	(Topic).	As	of	01/28/2010,	your	paper	has	been	downloaded	11	times.	

you may view the abstract and download statistics at http://papers.ssrn.com/abstract=1532775.         

Chapters 

•	 	 	Amusa,	H.,	D.	Kallis	and	S.	Mtantato	 (2009).	Management	and	financing	of	 road	 infrastructure.	 In:	 	Technical	Report	 :	

annual submission on the division of revenue 2010-11 1/ editors tania ajam, Bongani khumalo, ramos Mabugu and 

Bethuel setai. Midrand: financial and fiscal Commission: 111-126.

•	 	 	Mabugu,	R.	E.	Rakabe	and	M.	Chitiga	(2009).	Public	infrastructure	investment.	In:		Technical	Report	:	Annual	Submission	
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on the division of revenue 2010-11 1 / editors tania ajam, Bongani khumalo, ramos Mabugu and Bethuel setai. Midrand 

: financial and fiscal Commission : 17-41

•	 	 	Madubula,	N.	and	S.	Poggenpoel.	(2009).	Performance	of	public	hospitals.	In:		Technical	Report	:	Annual	Submission	on	

the division of revenue 2010-11  / editors tania ajam, Bongani khumalo, ramos Mabugu and Bethuel setai. Midrand : 

financial and fiscal Commission : 89-98

•	 	 	Makube,	T.	(2009).	Assessment	of	universal	access	to	water	and	sanitation	services	in	South	Africa.	In:		Technical	Report	

: annual submission on the division of revenue 2010-11  / editors tania ajam, Bongani khumalo, ramos Mabugu and 

Bethuel setai. Midrand : financial and fiscal Commission : 127-139

•	 	 	Mtantato,	S.	and	S.	Poggenpoel	(2009).	Funding	and	delivery	of	housing:	rental	housing.	In:		Technical	Report	:	Annual	

submission on the division of revenue 2010-11  / editors tania ajam, Bongani khumalo, ramos Mabugu and Bethuel 

setai. Midrand : financial and fiscal Commission : 99-109

•	 	 	Rakabe,	E.	(2009).	Assessing	of	the	institutional	and	fiscal	capacity	support	mechanisms	of	local	government	in	South	

africa. in: technical report : annual submission on the division of revenue 2010-11  / editors tania ajam, Bongani 

khumalo, ramos Mabugu and Bethuel setai. Midrand : financial and fiscal Commission : 141-160

•	 	 	Rakabe,	E.,	J.	Martinez-Vasquez	and	J.	Alm	(2009).	Review	of	the	provincial	equitable	share	formula.	In:		Technical	Report	

: annual submission on the division of revenue 2010-11 / editors tania ajam, Bongani khumalo, ramos Mabugu and 

Bethuel setai. Midrand : financial and fiscal Commission : 1-16

Working Papers

•	 	 	Maisonnave,	H.,	B.	Decaluwé	and	M.	Chitiga.	(2009).	Does	South	African	affirmative	action	policy	reduce	poverty?	A	CGE	

analysis. Cirpée. Cahier de recherché / working paper; 09-36,  aôut/august 2009, 19pp.

•	 	 	Maisonnave,	H.,	R.	Mabugu,	M.	Chitiga,	Véronique	Robichaud	and	Bernard	Decaluwé,	(2009).	”	The	Impact	of	the	interna-

tional economic crisis in south africa.”  Cirpée.  Cahier de recherché / working paper; 09-52, décembre/december 2009, 

36pp.

Workshops / Conference Papers Presented

•	 	 	Amusa,	 H.	 (2009).	 “Approaches	 to	 tax	 reform:	 the	 case	 of	 post-democratic	 South	 Africa”.	 	 Paper	 presented	 at	 the	

conference on “effective audit & investigation for improved tax Compliance africa 2009”, 11th – 14th May, abuja, nigeria

•	 	 	Mabugu,	R.	and	Chitiga,	M.	(2009)	“Towards	understanding	the	impact	of	the	international	financial	crisis	on	child	poverty	

in south africa: a perspective based on Cge” stellenbosch university, department of economics, 29 July 2009

•	 	 	Chitiga,	M,	R.	Mabugu,	H.	Maisonnave,	V.	Robichaud,	B.	Decaluwé	(2009).	“The	impact	of	the	international	economic	crisis	

in south africa.” draft paper presented  to a conference on “rethinking african economic policy in Light of the global 

economic and financial Crisis.”  african economic research Consortium (aerC), 6-8 december 2009, nairobi. 

•	 	 	Ramos	Mabugu,	Debra	Shepherd	and	Servaas	van	der	Berg	with	Margaret	Chitiga,	Bernard	Decaluwé,	Hélène	Maisonnave,	

Véronique	Robichaud,	Judith	Streak	and	Dieter	von	Fintel	(2010)		“Towards	understanding	the	impact	of	the	international	

financial crisis on child poverty in south africa: the child poverty context” paper presented at the unicef/odi conference, 

London, november 2009

•	 	 	Decaluwé,	 B.	 and	 H.	 Maisonnave	 (2009).	 “Trade	 policy,	 fiscal	 constraint	 and	 the	 long	 term	 impact	 of	 government	

expenditure.” paper presented at the gtap 12th Conference.
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•	 	 	Maisonnave,	H.	(2010)	“The	impact	of	the	international	economic	crisis	on	child	poverty	in	South	Africa	:	results	from	the	

macro side.”  ppt presentation at the ffC and uniCef Conference, 9th february 2010

•	 	 	Maisonnave,	H.	(2010).	“Methodology.”	PPT	Presentation	at	the	FFC	and	UNICEF	Conference,	9th	February	2010

•	 	 	A	national	conference	in	collaboration	with	Unicef	was	hosted	by	the	Commission	on	the	findings	of	the	study	on	the	

global crisis on february 09, 2010 at Manhattan hotel in pretoria. 



Just as nature constantly seeks balance and 
harmony, the Financial and Fiscal Commission
strives to create that very same balance in the 
South African system of intergovernmental 
fiscal relations.
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The broad principles governing government’s 

response include avoiding the risk of unfairly placing 

the burden of the global economic downturn on the 
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